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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

OTTAWA, Tuesday, November 19, 2002
(6)

[English)

The Standing Senate Committee on Energy, Environment and
Natural Resources met at 5:07 p.m. this day, in room 257, East
Block, the Honourable Tommy Banks, Chair, presiding.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Banks, Buchanan, P.C., Christensen, Eyton, Kenny, Milne,
Spivak and Watt (8).

In attendance: From the Library of Parliament: Lynne Myers,
Researcher, Science and Technology Division and James
McQueen, Researcher, Economics Division.

Also in attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of Reference adopted by the Senate on
Tuesday, October 22, 2002, the committee proceeded to study
Bill C-5, An Act respecting the protection of wildlife species at
risk in Canada. (For complete text of Order of Reference, see
proceedings of the committee, Issue No. 2, October 24, 2002.)

WITNESSES:
AS A PANEL:
From the Land Resource Partnership.
David Pope, Director.
From the Ontario Property and Environmental Rights Alliance:

Bob Woolham, President, Association of Rural Property
Owners (member organization and eastern Ontario
representative of the OPERA coalition).

From Justice Canada:
David Near, Senior Counsel.

David Pope and Bob Woolham each made a statement.
Together the witnesses answered questions.

At 6:02 p.m., the meeting was suspended.
At 6:11 p.m., the meeting resumed.
David Near answered questions.

At 6:40, the committee proceeded in camera, pursuant to
rule 92(2)(f) for the purpose of studying a draft budget.

It was agreed, — That the following budget application for the
committee’s special study be approved for submission to the
Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and Administration:

Summary of Expenditures

Professional and Other Services $ 37,900

Transportation and Communications $ 153,390

Other Expenditures $ 2,000

TOTAL $ 193,290

PROCES-VERBAUX

OTTAWA, le mardi 19 novembre 2002
(6)

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de [’énergie, de
I’environnement et des ressources naturelles se réunit
aujourd’hui a 17 h 07 dans la piece 257 de I’édifice de 1’Est,
sous la présidence de ’honorable Tommy Banks (président).

Membres du comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs Banks,
Buchanan, c.p., Christensen, Eyton, Kenny, Milne, Spivak et
Watt (8).

Aussi présents: De la Bibliotheque du Parlement: Lynne Myers,
attachée de recherche, Division des sciences et de la technologie et
James McQuenn, attaché de recherche, Division de I’économie.

Egalement présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a 1’ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat le
mardi 22 octobre 2002, le comité poursuit I’examen du projet de
loi C-5, Loi concernant la protection des especes sauvages en péril
au Canada. (Le texte intégral de 'ordre de renvoi figure dans le
fascicule n° 2 des délibérations du comité du 24 octobre 2002.)

TEMOINS:
EN TABLE RONDE:
Du Land Resource Partnership:
David Pope, directeur.
De I'Ontario Property and Environmental Rights Alliance:

Bob Woolham, président, Association of Rural Property
Owners (organisation membre et représentant de 1’est de
I’Ontario pour la coalition OPERA )

De Justice Canada:
David Near, avocat-conseil.

David Pope et Bob Woolham font chacun une déclaration.
Ensemble, les témoins répondent aux questions.

A 18 h 02, la séance est suspendue.
A 18 h 11, la séance reprend.
David Near répond aux questions.

A 18 h 40, la séance se poursuit a huis clos, conformément &
I’alinéa 92(2)f) du Réglement, aux fins d’examen d’un budget
provisoire.

Il est convenu — Que la demande de budget suivante, pour
I’étude spéciale du comité, est approuvée en vue d’étre présentée
au Comité de la régie interne, des budgets et de I’administration:

Sommaire des dépenses

Services professionnels et autres 37900 $
Transport et communications 153 390 §
Autres dépenses 2000 §$
TOTAL 193 290 $
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At 6:50 p.m., it was agreed that the committee adjourn to the
call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Thursday, November 21, 2002
@)
[English)

The Standing Senate Committee on Energy, Environment and
Natural Resources met at 8:35 a.m. this day, in room 257, East
Block, the Honourable Tommy Banks, Chair, presiding.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Baker, Banks, Buchanan, P.C., Christensen, Cochrane, Eyton,
Finnerty, Kenny, Milne, Spivak and Watt (11).

Other senator present: The Honourable Senator Sibbeston (1).

In attendance: From the Library of Parliament: Lynne Myers,
Researcher, Science and Technology Division and James
McQueen, Researcher, Economics Division.

Also in attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of Reference adopted by the Senate on
Tuesday, October 22, 2002, the committee proceeded to study
Bill C-5, An Act respecting the protection of wildlife species at
risk in Canada. (For complete text of Order of Reference, see
proceedings of the committee, Issue No. 2, October 24, 2002.)

WITNESS:
From the Western Canada Wilderness Committee:
Gwen Barlee, Endangered Species Coordinator.

The Honourable Senator Watt shared with the other members
his concerns regarding the non-derogation clause contained in this
Bill.

It was agreed, — That the Steering Committee discuss this
matter and decide how to deal with this issue.

At 9:10 a.m., Gwen Barlee made an opening statement and
answered questions.

At 10:25 a.m., it was agreed that the committee adjourn to the
call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

A 18 h 50, la séance est levée jusqu’a nouvelle convocation de
la présidence.

ATTESTE:

OTTAWA, le jeudi 21 novembre 2002
(N

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de [’énergie, de
I’environnement et des ressources naturelles se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 8 h 35, dans la piece 257 de 1’édifice de I’Est,
sous la présidence de I’honorable Tommy Banks (président).

Membres du comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs Baker,
Banks, Buchanan, c.p., Chritensen, Cochrane, Eyton, Finnerty,
Kenny, Milne, Spivak et Watt (11).

Autre sénateur présent: L’honorable sénateur Sibbeston (1).

Aussi présents: De la Bibliothéque du Parlement, Lynne Myers,
attachée de recherche, Division des sciences et de la technologie,
et James McQueen, attaché de recherche, Division de I’économie.

Egalement présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

En conformité avec ’ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat le
mardi 22 octobre 2002, le comité entame son examen du projet de
loi C-5, Loi concernant la protection des espéces sauvages en péril
au Canada. (Le texte en clair de I'ordre de renvoi se trouve dans le
compte rendu des délibérations du comité, fascicule n’ 2, en date du
24 octobre 2002.)

TEMOIN:
De Western Canada Wilderness Committee:
Gwen Barlee, coordonnatrice, Espéces sauvages en péril.

L’honorable sénateur Watt explique aux autres membres ses
préoccupations concernant I’article de non-dérogation inclus dans
le projet de loi a I’étude.

Il est entendu — Que le comité de direction en discutera et
décidera de la manieére d’y donner suite.

A 9 h 10, Gwen Barlee fait un exposé, puis répond aux
questions.

A 10 h 25, il est entendu — Que le comité s’ajourne jusqu’a
nouvelle convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE:

La greffiére du comité,

Josée Thérien

Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Tuesday, November 19, 2002

The Standing Senate Committee on Energy, the Environment
and Natural Resources, to which was referred Bill C-5, respecting
the protection of wildlife species at risk in Canada, met this day
at 5:07 p.m. to give consideration to the bill.

Senator Tommy Banks (Chairman) in the Chair.

[English)

I call the meeting to order, sadly in the absence of members of
the opposition. They are otherwise detained.

Today we are considering and hearing evidence and
representations from witnesses on Bill C-5, respecting the
protection of wildlife species at risk in Canada.

With us today are Senator Christensen of the Yukon, Senator
Lorna Milne of Ontario and Senator Charlie Watt of Quebec. My
name is Tommy Banks, and I am the chairman of the committee
and from Alberta. All of the senators here present are Liberals.
We await our colleagues from across the floor, who will, I hope,
arrive shortly.

Our first witnesses are Mr. Bob Woolham and Mr. David
Pope, who are here representing respectively the Ontario Property
and Environmental Rights Alliance and the Land Resource
Partnership, which I think is also based in Ontario; am I right,
Mr. Pope?

Mr. David Pope, Director, Land Resource Partnership: No, this
is exclusively Alberta.

The Chairman: I am glad that you are here. You are appearing
as a panel, so I presume you have commensurate interests.
Mr. Pope, would you care to speak to us first?

Mr. Pope: [ am a lawyer and a rancher in the High River area. |
was instrumental in putting together the Land Resource
Partnership, which is a coalition of oil and gas, mining, forestry
and agricultural groups throughout the province. We speak for,
we believe, a majority of the people and the companies that will be
impacted the most by this negative piece of proposed legislation.

Thank you.

The Chairman: Would you tell us why you think it is a negative
bill?

Mr. Pope: It does not address the fair and reasonable
compensation for a public-interest regulatory taking of land.

The Chairman: Would you tell us where it talks about taking
land, so we are sure what you mean?

Mr. Pope: The specific clause that I am concerned with, of
course, deals with the federal government. How it impacts on
federal line land is certainly within their jurisdiction, but
clause 61, if you want to get into the details now, provides for

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le mardi 19 novembre 2002

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de 1’énergie, de I'environnement
et des ressources naturelles, auquel a été renvoyé le projet de loi C-5
concernant la protection des espéces sauvages en péril au Canada, se
réunit aujourd’hui, a 17 h 07, pour en faire I’examen.

Le sénateur Tommy Banks (président) occupe le fauteuil.

[Traduction]

Je déclare la séance ouverte, en dépit de ’absence des membres
du comité représentant ’opposition, qui sont retenus ailleurs.

Nous examinons aujourd’hui le projet de loi C-5 concernant la
protection des espéces sauvages en péril au Canada, au sujet
duquel nous allons entendre des témoignages.

Sont présents aujourd’hui le sénateur Christensen, du Yukon,
le sénateur Lorna Milne, de I’Ontario, et le sénateur Charlie Watt,
du Québec. Je suis Tommy Banks, de I’Alberta, et c’est moi qui
préside le comité. Tous les sénateurs présents sont des libéraux.
Nous attendons I’arrivée de nos collégues d’en face, ce qui, nous
I’espérons, ne saurait tarder.

Nos premiers témoins sont MM. Bob Woolham et David Pope
qui représentent respectivement 1’Ontario Property and
Environmental Alliance et le Land Resource Partnership, qui
est lui aussi un organisme ontarien, si je ne me trompe. C’est bien
cela, monsieur Pope?

M. David Pope, directeur, Land Resource Partnership: Non.
Notre organisme est exclusivement albertain.

Le président: Je suis heureux de vous accueillir. Vous étes 1a en
tant que groupe de témoins. Je peux donc supposer que vous avez
des intéréts communs. Monsieur Pope, aimeriez-vous prendre la
parole en premier?

M. Pope: Merci. Je suis avocat et jéleve du bétail dans la
région de High River. J’ai contribué a la mise sur pied de Land
Resource Partnership, qui est une coalition d’associations
pétroliéres, gaziéres, forestiéres et agricoles d’un peu partout
dans la province. Elle représente la grande majorité des
particuliers et des entreprises de I’Alberta qui seront les plus
touchés par ce mauvais projet de loi.

C’est tout ce que j’avais a dire.

Le président: Pourriez-vous nous dire pourquoi le projet de loi
est mauvais?

M. Pope: 11 ne régle pas la question de I'indemnisation juste et
raisonnable de ceux dont les terres sont expropriées dans I'intérét
public.

Le président: Pourriez-vous nous préciser ou il est question
d’exproprier des terres, pour que nous comprenions bien de quoi
vous parlez?

M. Pope: L’article du projet de loi qui me préoccupe est, bien
sar, celui qui concerne le gouvernement fédéral. La fagon dont les
terres fédérales sont touchées reléve certes de sa compétence, mais
a larticle 61, si vous tenez a entrer dans le détail tout de suite, il
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impact of habitat species at risk on provincial land.
Clause 64 provides for discretionary compensation — that is,
the federal government may or may not pay fair and reasonable
compensation for any negative impact on land habitat of these
species at risk, or their residence.

The Chairman: In the parlance we have been using so far, we
call that the “safety net provision,” just so you will know if a
senator brings it up.

Mr. Pope: It is still the same thing as far as I am concerned, sir.
The safety net is provided within the discretion of the federal
government. In the event they think the individual provinces are
not doing enough, whatever that might be, they have the
jurisdiction, the power and the authority to regulate and take
over both Crown provincial lands and private lands under
clause 64, with no fair and reasonable compensation being
provided specifically in that event, unlike what they do for a
highway, power line, airport or what have you.

The Chairman: Everything that you have said, in the first place,
is correct. It says, “The minister may provide compensation.”
You are right in that it does not say, “Shall provide
compensation.”

The deputy chair of the committee, Senator Mira Spivak, has
joined us.

Welcome, senator.

The Chairman: Mr. Pope, do you have anything specific to add
to that?

Mr. Pope: No. That is all. You have my submission. I
understand this is a question-and-answer session, and I will
answer any questions that I can later. That was my introduction.

The Chairman: Mr. Woolham, do you wish to say any words
to us?

Mr. Bob Woolham, President, Association of Rural Property
Owners (member organization and Eastern Ontario representative
of the OPERA coalition): I would like to reiterate to a large extent
what David Pope has said so far about compensation. I represent
the Ontario Property and Environmental Rights Alliance, which
is based in Ontario. Its early origins stem in large measure from
the taking of land, if you like, through provincial pieces of
legislation, specifically the Planning Act and, under it, provincial
policies that impact things like wetland, significant habitat and so
on. As you know, in Ontario there already is species at risk
legislation, which has given us a good deal of experience in how
these things are developed.

The concerns of the people in the alliance firstly deal with the
business of what is meant by “compensation” or “safety nets” in
the context of property that is impacted by the legislation and the
regulations. We have not been very successful in bringing this to
the government’s attention so that they will deal with that up
front before it is turned into law.

est question d’espeéces en péril sur des terres provinciales.
L’article 64 prévoit une indemnisation dont le montant est laissé
a la discrétion du ministre — c’est-a-dire qu’on laisse le
gouvernement fédéral juger s’il convient de verser une indemnité
juste et raisonnable pour tout impact négatif touchant ’habitat de
ces especes, en d’autres mots, la ou elles vivent.

Le président: Pour reprendre les termes que nous avons utilisés
jusqu’ici, vous parlez du filet de sécurité. Je vous le précise au cas
ou un sénateur en parlerait, plus tard.

M. Pope: Je n’y vois pas de différence, monsieur. Le filet de
sécurité qui est prévu est laissé a la discrétion du gouvernement
fédéral. S’il estime quun gouvernement provincial n’en fait pas
assez pour protéger I’habitat, quel que soit le probléme, il a, aux
termes de I’article 64, la compétence et le pouvoir voulus pour
prendre des réglements et confisquer des terres de la Couronne
provinciale ou des terres privées. Or, aucune compensation juste
et raisonnable n’est prévue dans pareil cas, comme on a ’habitude
de le faire pour une autoroute, des lignes de transport d’électricité,
un aéroport ou je ne sais quoi encore.

Le président: Tout ce que vous avez dit est juste. Le projet de
loi dit bien que le ministre peut verser une indemnité, non pas
qu’il y est obligé.

Le sénateur Mira Spivak, vice-présidente du comité, vient de se
joindre a nous.

Soyez la bienvenue, madame le sénateur.

Le président: Monsieur Pope, avez-vous autre chose a ajouter?

M. Pope: Non. C’est tout ce que j’avais a dire. Vous avez regu
mon mémoire. J’avais cru comprendre que je venais ici pour
répondre a des questions, ce que je ferai volontiers tout a I’heure.
Jai fait ce petit exposé uniquement en guise d’introduction.

Le président: Monsieur Woolham, avez-vous quelque chose a
nous dire?

M. Bob Woolham, président, Association of Rural Property
Owners (association membre et représentante de la coalition
OPERA pour P’est de I’Ontario): Je souscris a ce que vient de
dire David Pope au sujet de l'indemnisation. Je représente
I’Ontario Property and Environmental Rights Alliance, qui a
son siége en Ontario. Elle a été formée a la suite de lois adoptées
par la province en vue d’exproprier des terres, notamment la Loi
sur la planification et ’aménagement du territoire, et, dans son
cadre, de politiques provinciales relatives, entre autres, aux terres
humides, aux habitats et ainsi de suite. Comme vous le savez, il
existe déja en Ontario des lois protégeant les espéces en péril, de
sorte que nous connaissons tres bien le sujet.

Les membres de I’alliance se préoccupent tout d’abord de ce
que I’on entend par «compensation» ou «filet de sécurité» dans le
contexte de propriétés touchées par la loi et son reglement
d’application. Nos efforts en vue de porter a l’attention du
gouvernement ces préoccupations pour qu’il y donne suite avant
que ne soit adoptée la loi n’ont pas eu grand succes.
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Aside from the compensation, the other concern we have is the
business of the risk of liability and the way it is written. It is under
the Criminal Code, and it is extremely tightly bound in that
context. It goes well beyond the requirements and gives us cause
for concern about using a particular species that has been listed as
endangered, for example, if it appears on one’s property, at the
instigation of a recovery or advocacy group. As you know, one of
the species is the loggerhead shrike, which gets a great deal of
publicity. There are pairs that have been used out of McGill. The
government has provided over $1 million to a recovery program
for the shrike. It is primarily based in Ontario, although there are
some in Quebec. Last August, they were busy releasing banded
birds around Perth. What happens to property owners, because
they have people from the Ottawa naturalist club looking for
banded shrikes, when shrikes are found on their property? It is
almost like planting evidence under the Criminal Code.

One of the key concerns of most landowners is what will
happen. “Species” covers a multitude of living things. It is not the
Bambis of the world, the alligators or the things that we know and
love. It covers mosses, algae, fish and so on. Anyone with the kind
of tools that are available today can certainly come to my land,
my farm, and find, I am sure, an endangered species or a species
at risk. What happens under the current bill almost turns me into
a criminal.

That is the kind of clarification that we would like to see put on
the table, and, if possible, we would like to see some amendments
brought forward that would give us that kind of protection.

The Chairman: Can you tell us what amendments you would
see as being useful?

Mr. Woolham: One amendment would be to take out this
business of liability. If a person accidentally does something,
unwittingly or unknowingly, that should be a legitimate excuse or
defence in court, rather than being considered guilty until proven
innocent. That is a pretty serious piece of proposed legislation,
particularly when it is in the context of the Criminal Code. I do
not see any way in which this bill could be removed from the
Criminal Code under the existing provincial-federal government
arrangement in terms of mandate, responsibilities and so on. That
is certainly one area.

A second area that we would like to see considered is some
kind of exemption for people who are in some way certified as
credible in a certain fashion. One of my problems is that I really
do not want anyone to come onto my land for any purpose
anymore. I do not want to see hunters or trappers, because |
cannot trust what they are there for and what they are doing. I
think this is a travesty, because there are lots of people out there
that I would like to welcome and show them what I have.

Par ailleurs, le risque de responsabilité en cas d’infraction et la
fagon dont le texte est libellé nous préoccupe également. De
pareilles infractions relévent du Code criminel, et les mesures
prévues dans ce contexte sont trés rigoureuses. Elles vont bien au-
dela de ce qu’exige la situation et sont une source de
préoccupation en ce sens qu’elles pourraient étre invoquées par
un groupe de défense d’intéréts, par exemple, a propos d’une
espéce en particulier qui se trouve sur la propriété. Comme vous le
savez, une de ces espéces est la pie-gricche migratrice qui a fait
I’objet de beaucoup de publicité. Des couples d’oiseaux ont été
étudiés par des chercheurs de McGill. Le gouvernement a
débloqué un million de dollars pour un programme de
rétablissement de la population. Cette espéce se trouve surtout
en Ontario, bien qu’il y en ait aussi au Québec. En aott dernier,
on s’affairait a relacher des oiseaux bagués aux alentours de
Perth. Qu’arrivera-t-il aux propriétaires fonciers lorsque des pies-
griéches seront découvertes sur leur propriété, car des membres
d’un club de naturalistes d’Ottawa sont a la recherche des oiseaux
bagués? Dans le contexte du Code criminel, cela revient presque a
dissimuler des preuves pour les incriminer.

La plupart des propriétaires fonciers s’inqui¢tent de ce qui
arrivera. Le mot «espéce» désigne une multitude d’organismes
vivants. Ce ne sont pas tous de petits Bambis, des alligators et ces
autres animaux que nous aimons. Il inclut aussi des mousses, des
algues, du poisson et j’en passe. Quiconque dispose du genre
d’outils qui sont offerts sur le marché peut trouver sur ma ferme,
sur ma terre, une espece en voie de disparition ou en péril. Ce que
prévoit le projet de loi a 1’étude fait presque de moi un criminel.

Voila le genre de précisions que nous aimerions obtenir et, si
possible, les changements que nous aimerions voir apporter, de
maniére a nous protéger.

Le président: Pouvez-vous nous préciser quels changements
seraient utiles?

M. Woolham: Il faudrait entre autres éliminer ce concept de
responsabilité. Si quelquun commet un acte par mégarde, par
ignorance ou sans le vouloir, il devrait pouvoir le faire valoir a sa
décharge en toute légitimité devant le tribunal, plutdt que d’étre
présumé coupable jusqu’a preuve du contraire. Nous parlons ici
de mesures plutot graves, surtout dans le contexte du Code
criminel. Je ne vois pas comment on pourrait soustraire le projet
de loi a I’étude de I'application du Code criminel dans le cadre
existant des arrangements fédéraux-provinciaux pour ce qui est
du mandat, des responsabilités et ainsi de suite. Ce serait certes un
domaine ou il faudrait apporter des changements.

Nous aimerions aussi qu’on envisage d’inclure une exemption
quelconque pour ceux qui sont en quelque sorte considérés
comme étant crédibles. Un des problémes, c’est que je ne veux
plus que qui que ce soit vienne sur mes terres, pour quelque raison
que ce soit. Je ne plus voir de chasseurs et de trappeurs, parce que
je ne peux plus me fier a la raison de leur présence ou a ce qu’ils
sont en train de faire. C’est dommage, parce que jaime bien
accueillir des gens et leur montrer mes terres.
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Paul Catling from Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada came to
my property to examine something I could not identify. Then he
came back with his son and spent a day in some sand dunes I have
there looking for tiger beetles. He promised, even though he took
samples away, he would not record exactly where they came from.

There may be some way in which it would be possible to
protect landowners who have capacities without their being
subjected to the rigours of a very competitive, highly marketable
product called “wildlife” these days. It is something that is very
attractive in the sense of raising tremendous amounts of money. It
is that power and control that gives us additional cause for
concern.

I am long-winded, sir. Forgive me.

The Chairman: It shows you have thought a great deal about
what you have to say.

Mr. Pope, before honourable senators start asking questions,
do you have anything further to add along the lines of what
Mr. Woolham said with respect to specific amendments?

Mr. Pope: The other big concern we have is these tremendous
fines for crimes against land, ranging from $50,000 and/or one
year in jail to $1 million and/or five years in jail for each incident.
The word “corporation” is used for the million-dollar fine, but
many farms and ranches in Alberta, and throughout the country,
are incorporated, so the new crimes being created are just
outrageous.

The Chairman: The crimes or the penalties for committing
them?

Mr. Pope: They are creating new crimes. The new crimes
concern damaging a portion of the habitat of a listed species at
risk. T am speaking for oil and gas, mining, forestry and
agriculture, but to me as a grazer of cattle, that could mean
that if I am clearing brush to build a new fence or to repair an
existing one, and that brush happens to be the habitat of a species
at risk, a bird or whatever, and I am not aware of that, under the
strict liability provisions of clauses 97 and 98 — with these
horrendous fines and incarceration — I have to prove that I did
not do it, and it is a heavy burden.

There are things, like clearing land for fixing or building a new
fence, that have been normal activities as a part of raising cattle. |
could also mention clearing a site for drilling a well or logging
trees on private property. These are the new crimes about which |
am speaking.

The Chairman: We have been joined by Senator Kenny, who is
the third member of our steering committee.

Senator Spivak: I think if I had been drafting this bill, I would
not have picked out the landowners for compensation or liability.
In my experience, particularly when I was at Waterton, the

Paul Catling, d’Agriculture et Agroalimentaire Canada, est
venu sur ma propriété examiner quelque chose que je n’arrivais
pas a identifier. Il est ensuite revenu accompagné de son fils et a
passé la journée dans des dunes de sable, a la recherche de
cicindéles. Il m’a promis, méme s’il a prélevé des échantillons,
qu’il ne décrirait pas exactement 1’endroit ou il les avait trouvées.

Il existe peut-étre un moyen de protéger les propriétaires
fonciers sur les terres desquelles pourraient se trouver ces especes
sans les soumettre aux rigueurs du marché actuellement trés
concurrentiel et profitable du produit qu’on appelle la «fauney.
La faune est trés intéressante, en ce sens qu’elle permet de réunir
beaucoup de fonds. C’est ce pouvoir et ce contrdle qui rajoutent a
nos préoccupations.

Jai parlé longtemps, monsieur. Je m’en excuse.

Le président: Cela prouve que vous avez beaucoup réfléchi a ce
que vous alliez dire.

Monsieur Pope, avant que mes collégues commencent a vous
poser des questions, avez-vous autre chose a ajouter a ce qu’a dit
M. Woolham au sujet de changements a apporter au projet de loi?

M. Pope: L’autre grande source de préoccupation de nos
membres est la lourdeur des pénalités prévues. En effet, elles
varient d’'une amende de 50 000 $, d’un an d’emprisonnement ou
des deux a la fois a une amende de un million de dollars, une peine
d’emprisonnement de cinq ans ou les deux a la fois et ce, pour
chaque incident. Il est précisé que 'amende de un million de
dollars s’applique aux personnes morales seulement, mais de
nombreuses fermes agricoles et fermes d’élevage de bétail de
I’Alberta et du reste du Canada sont constituées en personnes
morales, de sorte que les nouvelles infractions sont tout
simplement scandaleuses.

Le président: Qu’est-ce qui est scandaleux, les infractions ou les
pénalités auxquelles on s’expose pour les avoir commises?

M. Pope: On crée de nouvelles infractions pour la destruction
d’une partie de I’habitat d’une espéce en péril énumérée a
I’annexe. Je parle au nom d’associations miniéres, gaziéres,
pétroliéres, forestiéres et agricoles, mais en tant moi-méme
qu’éleveur de bétail, je pourrais débroussailler en vue de
construire une nouvelle cloture ou d’en réparer une et, si cette
broussaille se trouve a servir d’habitat a une espéce en péril, un
oiseau ou que sais-je encore, et que je l'ignore, en vertu des
dispositions de responsabilité stricte des articles 97 et 98 — qui
prévoient d’effroyables pénalités —, il faut que je prouve que je
n’ai pas commis d’infraction, et c’est la un lourd fardeau.

Quand on éléve du bétail, il est normal de débroussailler pour
réparer une cloture ou en construire une. Je pourrais aussi
mentionner le déboisement d’un lieu pour y forer un puits ou la
coupe d’arbres sur une propriété. Voila les nouvelles infractions
dont je parle.

Le président: Le sénateur Kenny, troisieme membre de notre
comité de direction, vient de se joindre a nous.

Le sénateur Spivak: S’il n’en tenait qu’a moi, je n’aurais pas
parlé d’indemnités ou de responsabilités pour les propriétaires
fonciers. L’expérience m’a appris, particulierement a Waterton,
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ranchers are very much aware of preserving the environment and
maintaining their lifestyle. I think this onerous burden of liability
and compensation is perhaps a diversion that might have been
avoided.

Canada has signed a Biodiversity Convention and it is, of
course, very important to maintain biodiversity. I am wondering
what your thoughts are as to how we could follow those
particular undertakings. How would it be possible for
landowners to become cooperatively engaged in this kind of
enterprise without what you consider to be a very onerous
burden?

Mr. Pope: We have addressed this issue within the Land
Resource Partnership, as well as among some of the grazers. The
way we would approach it would be for government, scientists
and landowners to get together. The scientists would define the
species at risk.

Senator Spivak: That is true.

Mr. Pope: They would then also define the habitat of the
critters. After that, the next step would be a cooperative
agreement between the parties concerned and, as the chairman
mentioned, it is a safety net. I think the first line would be in the
provinces, to sit down over the kitchen table, as they do with
farmers and ranchers who are negotiating a deal with an oil
company to drill a well. You cannot keep them out, but you can
negotiate a deal, sit down and point out specifically what the
species are as well as where their habitat is. Then, in Alberta, as in
most provinces, there is a surface rights act that defines certain
heads of damages.

If you want to get into them, there are six and I can provide
them to you later, if you like. In any event, after defining the
habitat, it usually means that to protect it, you have to cut back
on grazing cattle or alter your production cycle in some way. For
us, it would probably mean fencing off some property. Define the
terms in the contract, what the species are, get the scientific input
on how long it would take before the number of breeding pairs is
at an acceptable threshold, and make it reviewable. I am on the
Alberta ESA committee and, in my mind, 20 to 25 years would be
a likely term, but with a review every four to five years to see how
you are doing. It would be a cooperative thing, where
compensation would be paid under existing legislation, and it
would be totally voluntary.

It would work because you are involving the people who own
the land. They are not being threatened with having the land
taken away, with no compensation and not really knowing what
the habitat is, and you would get a lot of cooperation. I know you
would from people in southern Alberta.

Senator Spivak: This is the third incarnation of this bill. I
presume you presented these ideas previously, but they were not
taken up.

que les éleveurs de bétail sont trés conscients de la nécessité de
préserver I’environnement et leur mode de vie. On aurait peut-étre
pu éviter d’imposer le lourd fardeau que représentent la
responsabilité et I'indemnisation.

Le Canada a signé la Convention sur la biodiversité, qu’il est
bien sr trés important de protéger. Je me demande si vous avez
réfléchi aux moyens que nous devrions, selon vous, prendre pour
respecter ces engagements. Comment pourrait-on convaincre les
propriétaires fonciers de coopérer a la réalisation de ces
engagements sans leur imposer ce que vous estimez étre un trés
lourd fardeau?

M. Pope: Le Land Resource Partnership, ainsi que des éleveurs
de bétail, se sont penchés sur la question. Ils préconisent de réunir
le gouvernement, les chercheurs et les propriétaires fonciers
autour d’'une méme table. Ce serait les chercheurs scientifiques qui
définiraient les especes en péril.

Le sénateur Spivak: C’est bien vrai.

M. Pope: Ensuite, ils définiraient aussi ’habitat de ces
créatures, aprés quoi il faudrait que les intéressés en viennent a
une entente de coopération et, comme 1’a mentionné tout a ’heure
le président, on aurait alors un filet de sécurité. La premiére étape
devrait se situer au niveau des provinces. Il faudrait tenir des
assemblées locales, comme cela se fait avec les agriculteurs et les
¢éleveurs qui négocient avec une pétroliére désireuse de forer un
puits. On ne peut pas les exclure du processus, mais on peut
négocier avec eux et préciser quelles sont les especes et ou se
trouve leur habitat. Ensuite, en Alberta comme dans la plupart
des autres provinces, il existe une loi visant les droits de surface
qui prévoit des chefs de dommage.

Il y en a six et, si vous y tenez, je peux vous en fournir la liste
plus tard. Quoi qu’il en soit, aprés avoir défini ’habitat, il faut
habituellement, pour le protéger, réduire le nombre de bétes qu’on
éleve ou modifier d’une fagon quelconque son cycle de
production. Cela signifierait probablement pour nous de
cloturer une partic de la propriété pour en interdire I’accés.
Définissez les modalités dans un contrat, dites quelles sont les
espéces, renseignez-vous sur combien de temps il faudrait avant
que le nombre de couples reproducteurs atteigne un seuil
acceptable et soumettez-le tout a un examen. Je fais partie du
Comité de la société d’entomologie de I’Alberta et il me semble
quune période de 25 a trente ans serait convenable, mais il
faudrait procéder a un examen tous les quatre ou cinq ans pour
faire un bilan. Il s’agirait de coopérer. La compensation serait
versée dans le cadre des lois existantes, et tout le processus serait
entierement facultatif.

Cela fonctionnerait, parce que vous y intégreriez ceux qui sont
propriétaires des terres. Ils ne seraient pas menacés de perdre leurs
terres sans compensation et sans vraiment savoir ce qu’est
I’habitat. Vous obtiendriez ainsi beaucoup de collaboration, du
moins des propriétaires du sud de I’Alberta.

Le sénateur Spivak: Il s’agit de la troisiéme version du projet de
loi. Je suppose que vous avez déja présenté ces idées, mais qu’on
ne les a pas retenues.
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Mr. Pope: Yes, ma’am, I have been involved for the last seven
years.

Mr. Woolham: I would just like to add to Mr. Pope’s
comments. I think transparency is essential for the landowner
or the person that may be affected, and to be involved. I do not
think I have ever been asked as a landowner, “What kind of land
do you have here?” 1 probably know more about it than most
people that might come onto it.

We talk about ecosystems and ecology and the relationship
between these species that are living there. We talk about habitat
as if it were only land, but habitat includes food. It also includes
sex and propagation of those species, so it needs a whole set of
dimensions. That food comes from other species. That really is
the purpose of life, as far as I can see, is to provide food for other
species. It goes around and around.

I have beavers in my swamp. The beavers flood the land and I
cannot take out the cedar trees that I like to use for my posts. I
can trap the beavers. In the process, I catch turtles. I catch the
stinkpot, the yellow-spotted turtle, the snapper and some painted
turtles. All those turtles are species at risk, or at least the stinkpot
and the yellow-spotted are. Someone will come along and say that
if you trap them, you might kill them; however, trapping does not
kill them. They just get stuck in the trap and you can let them out.
The problem is to which part of your ecology are you going to
give a higher priority? This is also where I think there has to be
more transparency. As landowners, we have to be alerted in
advance before things start to happen.

In the past, the tendency has been to sneak people onto your
property and sneak them out. With the technology today, of GPS
and BlackBerry, you can send information to your computer and
by the time you are home you have a map of everything you saw
there. It is dangerous.

Senator Spivak: I think what I am saying about landowners
probably would not apply to mining and forestry companies.
That is a different story, and it is on Crown land. I do not know
how you feel about that, but they have already transformed and
degraded the landscape to some extent.

In the brief from the Ontario Property and Environmental
Rights Alliance, you say that you do not like the Ecological Gifts
Program. You do not want non-governmental organizations to
receive bequests of land. I am wondering why, given the track
record of the Nature Conservancy in our country. Of course, they
are mostly not receiving bequests, but rather buying land. It seems
to me that bequests of land are a way in which we can maintain
some endangered habitat or endangered species. I am wondering
why you say that here.

M. Pope: Oui, madame. Je travaille a ce projet de loi depuis
sept ans.

M. Woolham: J’aimerais simplement renchérir sur ce qu’a dit
M. Pope. Jestime que la transparence est essentielle au
propriétaire foncier ou a la personne touchée et qu’il faut
qu’elle participe au processus. Je ne me rappelle pas qu’on m’ait
demandé quel genre de terre je possédais. Je la connais
probablement mieux que la plupart de ceux qui pourraient y
venir.

On parle d’écosystémes, d’écologie et des liens entre les espeéces
qui y vivent. On parle de I’habitat comme si ce n’était qu’un
endroit ou elles vivent, mais il est aussi une source de nourriture.
C’est 1a que les especes s’accouplent et se reproduisent. L’habitat
n’est donc pas unidimensionnel. La nourriture est fournie par
d’autres espéces. Voila en réalité ce qu’est le cycle de vie, de
fournir de la nourriture a d’autres espéces. C’est toute une chaine.

Il y a des castors dans mon marais. Ils inondent mes terres, et il
m’est interdit d’y couper les cédres dont j’aimerais me servir pour
faire des poteaux de cloture. Je peux piéger les castors. Par le fait
méme, il arrive que des tortues se retrouvent dans le piége, des
tortues musquées, des tortues ponctuées, des tortues hargneuses et
certaines tortues peintes. Ce sont toutes des espéces en péril, du
moins la tortue musquée et la tortue ponctuée. Quelqu’un viendra
me dire que si je les piége, je pourrais les tuer. Or, le piégeage ne
les tue pas. Elles se font prendre. Il suffit de les relacher. Le tout
est de savoir a quelle partie de I’écologie vous accordez la plus
haute priorité. C’est également la qu’il faut qu’il y ait, selon moi,
le plus de transparence. Il faut qu’en tant que propriétaires
fonciers, nous soyons avertis d’avance, avant qu’il ne se produise
des incidents.

Dans le passé, la tendance était d’introduire des gens sur notre
propriété en douce et de les faire partir de la méme fagon. Avec la
technologie contemporaine, le systéme de positionnement global
et BlackBerry, vous pouvez envoyer de l'information a votre
ordinateur et, par le temps que vous étes de retour a la maison,
vous avez une carte de tout ce que vous avez visité. C’est

dangereux.

Le sénateur Spivak: Je crois que ce que j’ai dit au sujet des
propriétaires fonciers ne s’applique probablement pas aux
compagnies minicres et forestiéres. Il s’agit-la d’une autre paire
de manches, parce qu’elles se trouvent sur des terres domaniales.
Jignore quels sont vos sentiments a ce sujet, mais elles ont déja
transformé et détruit le paysage dans une certaine mesure.

Dans le mémoire présenté par 1’Ontario Property and
Environmental Rights Alliance, vous étes contre le programme
des dons écologiques. Vous ne souhaitez pas que des organismes
non gouvernementaux regoivent des terres en dons. Je m’interroge
sur la raison, étant donné le dossier peu reluisant du Canada en
matiére de conservation. Naturellement, ces organismes ne
recoivent pas la plupart du temps des dons. Ils achétent plutot
les terres. Il me semble que les dons sont un moyen de conserver
des habitats ou des especes en péril. Je me demande pourquoi
vous adoptez cette position.
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Mr. Woolham: The reason for that gets into the business of
wildlife as a commodity and the concepts of these different
groups. We have what I call the “X and Y bureaucracies.” One is
government and the other are advocates like the Nature
Conservancy and the World Wildlife Fund. There are many,
and most of them are charities. They collect funds with very clever
posters and then they go after their particular focus, which may
be, for example, the land trusts of the Nature Conservancy.

One of the difficulties is that if these gifts go forward, we have
to be cautious and see that they do so with full transparency.
What tends to happen is that they see a piece of habitat they like,
and they want to either purchase it or make a deal. If you are not
a farmer but just a landowner, they can offer you tax credits,
property returns, rebates and so on. However, if you decide you
do not wish to do this, then chapter 5 of the manual on how to
acquire a land trust in Ontario will tell you how you go about
using the Planning Act and endangered species that are found on
the land. You then take that to your local municipal councils and
get the planning changed to show that there is significant wildlife
or other features on the land. Then you go back and say, “Too
bad, your property is not worth what it used to be because it has
now been circled by the official plan.”

Senator Spivak: You are saying that there is abuse of this
system, not necessarily that you are opposed to the system.

Mr. Woolham: That is right. If it is above-board and
transparent, I am not opposed to it.

Some of these organizations certainly make deals. I am also
talking primarily about private landowners, not the corporate
giants like Domtar that trade 500 acres of hardwood for a huge
tax credit. That is fine. Most of those corporations are not
complaining. They know how to operate.

I am talking more about smaller landowners who are not
capable of reading the act or regulations and have no idea that
anything might happen to them. They might have thought that
they would build a dog kennel or something else, and suddenly,
they find out that they cannot. Their world has changed.

I do not know that there is a clear answer to all of these issues,
other than transparency and starting the process early. Start first
with what you are trying to do.

There are, as you know, biospheres. One has been recently
developed in the Thousand Islands and another at Niagara. These
are part of biodiversity.

Senator Spivak: I hope that other senators will pursue the
liability defence.

The Chairman: As do 1.

M. Woolham: La raison en est que les especes sauvages sont
considérées comme un produit. Il y a aussi les concepts de ces
différents groupes. Nous avons ce que j'appelle les
«bureaucraties X et Y.» Nous avons d’une part le
gouvernement et, d’autre part, les organismes de défense comme
Nature Conservancy et le Fond mondial pour la nature. Il y en a
beaucoup; la plupart sont des organismes de bienfaisance. Ils
recueillent des fonds au moyen d’affiches trés adroites et se
concentrent ensuite sur leur objectif principal qui peut étre par
exemple les fiducies fonciéres du Nature Conservancy.

Un des probléemes qui se pose c’est que ci si ces dons sont
effectués, nous devons étre prudents et nous assurer que tout se
fait dans la transparence. Ce qui a tendance a arriver c’est que
lorsque ces organismes voient un habitat qu’ils aiment, ils veulent
soit l’acheter soit conclure un accord. Si vous n’étes pas
agriculteur mais simplement propriétaire foncier, ils peuvent
vous offrir des crédits d’impét, des rendements sur le bien, des
dégrévements d’impot, etc. Cependant, si vous décidez de
procéder autrement, c’est le chapitre 5 du manuel sur la fagon
de se porter acquéreur d’une fiducie fonciére en Ontario qui vous
renseignera sur ['utilisation de la Loi sur ’aménagement du
territoire et sur les especes en voie de disparition qu’on trouve sur
le territoire. Vous vous adressez ensuite a vos conseils municipaux
pour faire changer le plan pour y indiquer que le territoire est
habité par beaucoup d’especes sauvages et signaler d’autres
caractéristiques. Vous revenez ensuite et dites: «Dommage, votre
propriété n’a plus la méme valeur parce qu’elle a été ciblée par le
plan officiel.»

Le sénateur Spivak: Vous dites qu’on abuse du systéeme, pas
nécessairement que vous vous y opposez.

M. Woolham: C’est exact. Si le plan est tout ce qu’il y a de plus
régulier et transparent, je ne m’y oppose pas.

Certains de ces organismes concluent assurément des accords.
Je parle surtout aussi des propriétaires fonciers privés, pas de
géants comme Domtar qui échangent 500 acres de feuillus contre
un crédit d’impot énorme. Cela ne pose pas de problémes. La
plupart de ces sociétés ne se plaignent pas. Elles savent ce qu’il
faut faire.

Je parle de propriétaires fonciers plus petits qui ne sont pas en
mesure de lire la loi ou le réglement et qui n’ont aucune idée que
n’importe quoi pourrait leur arriver. Ils ont peut-étre pensé qu’ils
pourraient acheter un chenil pour chiens ou que sais encore pour
se rendre compte tout a coup qu’ils ne peuvent pas le faire. Leur
monde a changé.

Je ne sais pas s’il y a une réponse claire a toutes ces questions
autres que la transparence et le déclenchement rapide du
processus. Commencez par ce que vous essayez de faire.

Il y a, comme vous savez, les biosphéres. L’'une d’entre elles a
été créée récemment aux Mille-Iles et une autre a Niagara. Cela
fait partie de la biodiversité.

Le sénateur Spivak: J’espére que d’autres sénateurs poursuivront
sur la route de la défense concernant la responsabilité.

Le président: Comme je le fais.
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Senator Milne: First, Bob Woolham and I went to university
together. We are “aggies” in our distant past. I have a certain
interest in agricultural land, ownership of land and some of the
problems that may face landowners because of species at risk
legislation.

Mr. Pope, I have been skimming through your brief. You write
about a number of clauses and the things about which you are
concerned, but I do not see any specific recommendations here for
a cure.

Mr. Pope: I will reiterate. The cure is simply for the
government, the scientists and the landowners — usually the
landowner knows the most about his land; I know the most about
my ranch — to sit down and set criteria for identifying species at
risk, their habitat and the specific number of acres or hectares that
will be impacted by altering the management of the land for their
protection. Then specific activities upon which all agree should be
developed. In my case, it might be activities that I will alter in
running beef cattle. That is to say, how will I change what I do to
protect the habitat and the species at risk?

I would then think about that for a while and determine that it
will cost me X number of dollars. That would fall under the
Surface Rights Act in Alberta.

I can talk about the six damage heads about which we are
concerned for an oil and gas well that is being drilled, which is
only about three or four acres. It could be a few acres. However,
to use the example of the burrowing owl in eastern Alberta, it
might be a section or more.

We would be concerned, in the compensation realm, with area
granted — that is, how much land would be involved — the
general disturbance to the property, the loss of use of land,
incidental damages, injurious affection and adverse affect. That
does not necessarily apply to all species at risk, but it could. This
is jurisprudence that we have had in Alberta for well over
40 years, and it has worked well.

If you sit down with a landowner and talk about specifics, as I
have outlined, there will be minimal opposition to protecting the
habitat of species at risk. However, the outcome will be different
if you cannot deal with the particular landowner.

Let us say that the Alberta government did not quite manage
to invoke the safety net, and the federal government became
involved because a deal could not be made with the landowner. If
the scientists and the government determine that the last two
burrowing owl pairs on the planet are on a certain section, there
should be a right to expropriate that land because it is in the
public interest.

Le sénateur Milne: Premiérement, Bob Woolham et moi-méme
avons fréquenté 1'université ensemble. Nous avons tous deux
étudié en agronomie. Je manifeste un certain intérét pour les terres
agricoles, la propriété des terres et certains des problémes qu’une
loi sur les espéces en péril risque de poser aux propriétaires
fonciers.

Monsieur Pope, j’ai parcouru votre mémoire. Vous commentez
un certain nombre d’articles et de choses qui vous préoccupent,
mais je ne vois aucune recommandation précise pour régler les
problémes.

M. Pope: Je vais le répéter. La solution est la suivante: il faut
tout simplement que le gouvernement, les scientifiques et les
propriétaires fonciers — le propriétaire foncier est habituellement
celui qui s’y connait le plus au sujet de ses terres; c’est mon cas —
s’assoient et fixent les critéresqui serviront a repérer les espéces en
péril, leur habitat de méme que le nombre précis d’acres ou
d’hectares qui seront touchés si I'on modifie la gestion des terres
pour assurer leur protection. Ensuite, il faudrait dégager des
activités précises sur lesquelles tout le monde s’entend. Dans mon
cas, il pourrait s’agir d’activités que je modifierais pour gérer mon
entreprise d’élevage de bovins de boucherie. C’est-a-dire comment
vais-je changer ma fagon de faire pour protéger ’habitat et les
especes en péril?

Je réfléchirais ensuite un certain temps afin de déterminer ce
qu’il m’en cottera. Cette question reléverait en Alberta de la
Surface Rights Act.

Je veux parler au sujet de six tétes de puits endommagées qui
nous inquictent en ce qui a trait a un puits de pétrole et de gaz que
I’on creuse, ce qui représente seulement trois ou quatre acres
environ. Cela pourrait étre quelques acres. Cependant, pour me
servir de I'exemple de la chevéche des terriers dans I'est de
I’Alberta, il pourrait s’agir d’au moins une section.

Nous nous inquiéterions, en ce qui concerne I'indemnisation,
de la superficie accordée — c’est-a-dire les terres touchées — de la
perturbation générale a la propriété, de la perte de I'utilisation du
terrain, des dommages accessoires, de I’effet préjudiciable et de
I’effet nuisible. Cela ne s’applique pas nécessairement a toutes les
espeéces en péril, mais c’est une possibilité. I1 s’agit de la
jurisprudence que nous avons eue en Alberta depuis bien au-
dela de 40 ans et les choses ont bien fonctionné.

Si vous vous assoyez avec un propriétaire foncier et
approfondissez la chose, comme je I’ai dit, il ne s’opposera pas
beaucoup a la protection de I'habitat des espéces sauvages en
péril. Cependant, le résultat sera différent si vous ne pouvez faire
affaire avec le propriétaire foncier.

Supposons que le gouvernement albertain n’est pas tout a fait
parvenu a invoquer le filet de sécurité et que le gouvernement
fédéral intervient finalement parce qu’il n’a pas été possible de
conclure une entente avec le propriétaire foncier. Si des
scientifiques et le gouvernement en viennent a la conclusion que
les deux derniéres chevéches des terriers vivent sur une certaine
partie de ces terres, il devrait étre possible d’exproprier cette terre
dans I'intérét public.
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Within such an act of expropriation, there should be legal
mechanisms that allow for reasonable and fair compensation to
be paid. Since people are selling against their will, the lawyer that
the landowner has to hire to put the arguments forward should be
paid by the government, as is done in the case of an airport,
sewage line, railroad or highway.

If there are built-in legal mechanisms, it will work. The public
interest would be served, and the landowner’s property rights
would be preserved.

Senator Milne: You were talking about land being denied for
use to generate income?

Mr. Pope: Yes.

Senator Milne: If that is the case, the land should be
expropriated with adequate compensation.

Mr. Pope: As I mentioned earlier, the agreement entered into
would be long term.

Senator Milne: It is a stewardship type of program.

Mr. Pope: I want to keep stewardship separate. Stewardship is
fine. You can give someone a plaque or something. Rewarding
good stewardship of the land is important, and we have
stewardship programs within our cattle organizations, both
provincially and country-wide. However, I am concerned with
how the protection of the habitat — that is, my land — for this
particular critter on the endangered species list will negatively
impact me.

I took exception to something earlier. Things have changed in
the last 20 years in the forestry and the mining business.
Sometimes, they do a good job.

However, compensation should be addressed in a hard-core
document. There should be an agreement on the terms and
conditions of a recovery program. Definitions of where things are
and what will be paid are very important.

Senator Milne: Basically, we are coming back to a method of
recompense for the land.

Mr. Pope: Of course. If it will shut me down or cut my use by
30 per cent.

Senator Milne: Mr. Pope, you mention the risk of liability in
your brief. Under point 3 on page 2, you list a number of clauses
that define strict liability, the offences and the penalties.

Looking at this practically, from the point of view of this
committee, you have come to us with a shopping list of problems
but offer no specific solutions. We will not pull these solutions out
of thin air.

Mr. Pope: 1 have just given you some solutions based on a
voluntary approach, a contractual arrangement with the
landowner touching upon the things that I have mentioned.

Une telle loi d’expropriation il devrait prévoir des moyens
légaux permettant le versement d’une indemnisation raisonnable
et juste. Comme les gens vendent a leur corps défendant, I’avocat
dont le propriétaire foncier doit retenir les services pour plaider sa
cause devrait étre payé par le gouvernement comme celui-ci le fait
dans le cas d’un aéroport, d’une canalisation d’égout, d’une voie
de chemin de fer ou d’une route.

Si la loi prévoit des moyens légaux, tout baignera dans I’huile.
On servirait l'intérét public et on protégerait les droits
patrimoniaux du propriétaire foncier.

Le sénateur Milne: Vous parliez de terres qu’il est interdit
d’utiliser pour générer des revenus?

M. Pope: Oui.

Le sénateur Milne: Si c’est le cas, les terres devraient étre
expropriées et une indemnisation adéquate devrait étre versée.

M. Pope: Comme je I’ai dit plus t6t, 'entente conclue serait a
long terme.

Le sénateur Milne: Il s’agit en quelque sorte d’un programme
d’intendance.

M. Pope: Les programmes d’intendance sont autre chose. Je
n’ai rien contre. Vous pouvez remettre a quelqu’un une plaque ou
que sais-je encore. Il est important de récompenser la bonne
intendance et nous avons des programmes au sein de nos
organismes d’éleveurs, tant a I’échelle nationale que provinciale.
Cependant, ce qui m’inquiéte c’est de savoir dans quelle mesure je
serai touché par la protection de I’habitat — c’est-a-dire mes
terres — en ce qui a trait a cette créature dont le nom figure sur la
liste des espéces en péril.

Jai trouvé a redire de quelque chose plus tét. Les choses ont
changé au cours des 20 derniéres années dans I'industrie forestiére
et miniére. Il arrive parfois qu’on y fait du bon travail.

Cependant, il faudrait préparer un document de base sur
I'indemnisation. On devrait s’entendre sur les conditions d’un
programme de rétablissement. Il est trés important de donner des
définitions d’ou sont les choses et de préciser les montants qui
seront versés.

Le sénateur Milne: Fondamentalement, nous revenons a une
méthode de récompense pour la terre.

M. Pope: Bien sir. Si cela m’oblige a fermer boutique ou a
réduire mon utilisation de 30 p. 100.

Le sénateur Milne: Monsieur Pope, vous parlez dans votre
mémoire du risque que représente la responsabilité stricte. Au
troisiéme point a la page 2 vous énumérez un certain nombre
d’articles qui définissent la responsabilité stricte, les infractions et
les peines.

D’un point de vue pratique, nous estimons que vous énumérez
les problémes sans offrir de solutions précises. Nous ne
trouverons pas les solutions comme par magie.

M. Pope: Je viens tout juste de vous donner certaines solutions
fondées sur une approche volontaire, une entente contractuelle
avec le propriétaire foncier.
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I have also given you an out if you were to encounter the two
per cent or three per cent of landowners with whom you cannot
deal. You could expropriate their land.

Our ranch has been in our family since 1894. My wife has been
there longer than I have. The worst thing that could happen
would be to have our land taken against our will.

I have given you an example of a situation where, if you need
to take property, it is in the public interest to take it under the
Expropriations Act. This is a lever that has been around in the
common law for 200 or 300 years. You do that and stay away
from throwing me in jail or fighting me out of existence or making
me to go to court and pay my own lawyers in order to take my
land or force me to enter into something that is unacceptable. |
think I have given you some pretty good options.

Senator Milne: You spoke ecarlier of farms that were
incorporated. Do you have any idea what percentage of ranches
or farms in Alberta would be incorporated or limited companies?

Mr. Pope: I do not have statistics on that. I would guess at least
50 per cent. We have people who run cattle in our province. We
have around 36,000 people who graze cattle for a living in
Alberta.

Senator Milne: Mr. Woolham, in Ontario, it seems to me that
most family farms over 100 acres are incorporated. Do you have
an idea what the percentage is?

Mr. Woolham: I would not say that. I think the rationale for
incorporating a farm depends on the policies and legislation put
out by Revenue Canada. It is governed by your tax liability as
much as anything. It is also a way of providing for certain
protections against family breakdowns on the one hand, and on
the other, the business of bequeathing the shares and maintaining
that kind of unit.

Yes, the larger farms are incorporated, but it is the old
20/80 per cent rule. Twenty per cent produce 80 per cent of the
product. One hundred acres is very small.

The other reason for incorporation is that to a certain extent,
you are able, if it is done properly, to perhaps limit liability in
some ways. There are certain things that are excluded from that
incorporation, such as your personal residence, and so on. If you
are not incorporated and something does happen, you could lose
that, too.

Senator Milne: I have been asking everyone about loss of
income and loss of use of land and how to repay the people who
are being placed in a position of stewardship through this
proposed legislation. It seems to me, Mr. Pope, from reading
through your brief and from what you have said, that you think
we should forget about legislation and go back to negotiating

Je vous ai aussi donné une porte de sortie si vous deviez avoir
affaire aux deux ou trois pour cent de propriétaires fonciers avec
lesquels vous ne pouvez conclure d’entente. Vous pourriez
exproprier leurs terres.

Notre ranch appartient a la famille depuis 1894. Mon épouse y
réside depuis plus longtemps que moi. Le pire qui pourrait arriver
c’est qu’on nous prenne nos terres a notre corps défendant.

Je vous ai donné ’exemple d’une situation ou, s’il vous faut
vous approprier les terres, dans I'intérét public il vous faut le faire
en vertu de la Loi sur les expropriations. C’est un moyen qui
existe dans la common law depuis 200 ou 300 ans. En vous en
remettant a cette loi, vous ne me jetez pas en prison, vous ne me
privez de mon existence, vous ne m’amenez pas a recourir aux
tribunaux et a payer mes propres avocats dans le but de prendre
mes terres ou m’obliger & conclure un marché inacceptable. Je
pense vous avoir donné quelques trés bonnes options.

Le sénateur Milne: Vous avez parlé plus tét d’exploitations
agricoles qui ont été constituées en sociétés. Avez-vous une idée
du pourcentage de ranchs ou d’exploitations agricoles en Alberta
qui seraient soient constitués en société soit des sociétés par
actions a responsabilité limitée?

M. Pope: Je n’ai pas de chiffres 1a-dessus. Je dirais a peu pres
50 p. 100. Nous avons des éleveurs de bovins de boucherie dans
notre province. Quelque 36 000 personnes font paitre des
animaux pour gagner leur vie en Alberta.

Le sénateur Milne: Monsieur Woolham, en Ontario, il me
semble que la plupart des exploitations familiales de plus de
100 acres sont constituées en sociétés. Avez-vous une idée du
pourcentage?

M. Woolham: Je ne dirais pas cela. Je crois que la constitution
en société d’une entreprise agricole dépend des politiques et des
lois émanant de Revenu Canada. Cela est régi par notre
assujettissement a 1'impdét plus que toute autre chose. C’est
aussi une fagon d’offrir certaines protections contre 1’éclatement
de la famille d’une part et, d’autre part, le legs d’actions et le
maintien de ce genre d’unité.

Oui, les exploitations agricoles de plus grande envergure sont
constituées en sociétés, mais il s’agit toujours de I’ancienne du
20/80 p. 100. Cent acres, c’est trés petit.

L’autre raison qui justifie la constitution en société c’est que,
dans une certaine mesure, il est possible, si cela est bien fait, de
limiter peut-étre la responsabilité de certaines maniéres. Certaines
choses sont exclues de cette constitution en société, par exemple
votre résidence personnelle, etc. Si votre entreprise n’est pas
constituée en société et que quelque chose arrive, vous pourriez
perdre aussi votre résidence.

Le sénateur Milne: Je me suis enquise auprées de tout le monde
de la perte de revenus et de la perte de l'utilisation de terres de
méme que de la fagon de rembourser les gens qui participent a des
programmes d’intendance par ’entremise de ce projet de loi. Il me
semble, monsieur Pope, en lisant votre mémoire et d’aprés ce que
vous avez dit, que vous étes d’avis que nous devrions oublier la
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ad hoc agreements with each individual landowner if the province
is not doing the job, and then use the Expropriations Act when all
else fails, rather than a unified approach?

Mr. Pope: I can only speak for Alberta. We have had great
conservation programs before. I started with Bill C-65, with
operation burrowing owl in the eastern part of the province,
where you had farmers cooperating with the Department of the
Environment and Department of Agriculture in Edmonton. The
burrowing owl is a complex peripheral. It is common in the
United States and Mexico. There are not many in Canada, but
people were taking an interest in looking after them.

In Cochran, an English lady took an interest in the swift fox
that had been extirpated in the 1930s. She started raising these
little foxes on her place, working with Alberta Environment and
releasing them on ranches in the Manyberries and Three Hills
areas in southeastern and central Alberta. She was starting to
bring them back.

We do not have enough time to get into all the voluntary
programs that have worked well in Alberta. In eastern Canada,
the wood duck was just about gone.

Also, in Alberta, the blue bird.

There are a lot of good, solid conservation programs that have
done quite well.

There is something to be said for voluntary conservation. For
the few people that you cannot deal with, and when you have to
do something, I think existing legislation would cover that quite
well.

There are a lot of people in Alberta, rural and urban, who
know the ramifications of this kind of proposed legislation, and I
feel queasy about how well this will actually work on the ground,
for not only the people, but also the species that are at risk. This is
making these species into liabilities, and they should not be
liabilities. I have never treated them as liabilities.

It has happened in the United States. You used the words. I do
not like to use the words, but you speak of “liabilities” when it is
going to ruin your whole operation. In the U.S., I know of cases,
from a 50 by 100 foot residential lot to a 1200-square-mile ranch,
that this has impacted. When it comes to survival, people
sometimes do irrational things.

The Chairman: That is an interesting point. This bill is seen by
its proponents, of whom there are many, as being a much more
reasonable approach than the American one, which is litigious
almost by definition and constantly in the courts. Until you said
the words “Existing legislation covers it,” and until you said the
word “expropriation” in your answer to Senator Milne’s previous
question, you pretty well described the first three-quarters of this
bill, which does deal with stewardship, not in terms of putting a

mesure législative et revenir a la négociation d’ententes
ponctuelles avec chaque propriétaire foncier si la province ne
fait pas son travail et recourir a la Loi sur les expropriations
lorsque tout le reste a été un échec plutét que d’adopter une
approche plus commune?

M. Pope: Je ne peux parler que pour I’Alberta. Nous avons de
bons programmes de conservation. J’ai commencé avec le projet
de loi C-65, avec I'opération chevéche des terriers dans la partie
est de la province ou des agriculteurs ont collaboré avec le
ministére de ’Environnement et le ministére de I’Agriculture a
Edmonton. La chevéche des terriers est une espéce complexe de
par sa répartition périphérique. C’est une espéce commune aux
Etats-Unis et au Mexique. On n’en trouve pas beaucoup au
Canada, mais des gens ont manifesté de l'intérét pour les
surveiller.

A Cochran, une dame anglaise s’est intéressée au renard véloce
qui a disparu dans les années 30. Elle s’est lancée dans 1’élevage de
petits renards en travaillant en collaboration avec le ministére
albertain de I’'Environnement et les a relachés sur des ranchs dans
les régions de Manyberries et Three Hills dans le sud-est et dans le
centre de I’Alberta. Elle a commencé a reconstituer 1’espece.

Nous n’avons pas suffisamment de temps pour vous parler de
tous les programmes volontaires qui ont trés bien fonctionné en
Alberta. Dans I’Est du Canada, le canard branchu avait presque
disparu.

De plus, en Alberta, il y a I’oiseau bleu.

Nous avons beaucoup de bons programmes de protection
solides qui ont connu un trés grand succes.

Il y a quelque chose a dire au sujet de la protection volontaire.
Pour ce qui est du peu de gens avec qui vous ne pouvez faire
affaire, lorsqu’il vous faut prendre des mesures, la loi actuelle
conviendrait trés bien selon moi.

I y a beaucoup d’Albertains, citadins et ruraux, qui
connaissent les ramifications de projets de loi de ce genre et je
suis mal a I’aise quant au succes réel sur le terrain, non seulement
pour les gens, mais aussi pour les especes en péril. C’est
transformer ces espéces en risques, ce qu’elles ne devraient pas
étre. Je ne les ai jamais considérées de la sorte.

C’est arrivé aux Etats-Unis. Vous avez utilisé les mots. Je n’ose
pas le faire, mais vous parlez de «risques» lorsque cela va ruiner
toutes vos activités. Aux Etats-Unis, je connais des cas, & partir
d’un terrain résidentiel de 50 par 100 jusqu’a un ranch de
1 200 milles carrés, qui a été touché. Lorsqu’on parle de survie, il
arrive parfois que les gens posent des gestes irrationnels.

Le président: C’est un point intéressant. D’aprés les promoteurs
de ce projet de loi, et il y en a beaucoup, la mesure constitue une
approche beaucoup plus raisonnable que celle des Américains qui
sont procéduriers presque par définition et se retrouvent
constamment devant les tribunaux. Tant que vous n’avez pas
dit que Ia loi actuelle le prévoyait et tant que vous n’avez pas
prononcé le mot expropriation dans votre réponse a la question
précédente du sénateur Milne, vous décriviez assez bien les trois
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plaque on your wall, but in terms of avoiding expropriation or jail
or any of those things to achieve that.

Mr. Woolham, the Ontario Environmental Protection Act
already contains strict liability provisions. Do you know of any
specific instances in which it has been abused by the government?
Also, the Fisheries Act, the Canadian Environmental Protection
Act, the Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act, the Canada
Wildlife Act, the Migratory Birds Act and the Wild Animal and
Plant Regulations Act all contain this same strict liability
provision. Do you know of any instances in which it has been
abused by either order of government?

Mr. Woolham: I must confess I was not aware that they use
that in the same context. I understood that strict liability in the
context of the federal legislation had to do with the Criminal
Code, and that it had different implications from it would have in
Ontario under legal jurisprudence. I am not a lawyer so I am not
sure of my ground on this.

The Chairman: Nor am 1.

Mr. Woolham: To that extent, yes, there have been charges laid
and fines levied, but not on the scale contemplated in the federal
bill.

Ontario already has a great deal of legislation, including on
significant wildlife habitat. I made a presentation to Dr. Pearce,
and he had not heard about that particular piece of legislation or
the guidelines, so I gave him my copy.

In this kind of process, one goal is to avoid, in the Criminal
Code, the strict liability.

Somehow, there must be some kind of compromise on the
process. The fear is that if people see something, the first thing
they will do is get rid of it. That is a problem in terms of trust,
education and a few other things. Perhaps that is where
stewardship and leadership come into this process.

We have had several cases about the taking of land, for
different reasons. A recent one was a quarry operation east of
Barrie. Somehow, someone discovered that that land might be a
habitat for loggerhead shrikes, and in fact I believe someone
found a couple where they had not been seen before. That stopped
that quarry operation until the matter went to court, and recently,
the decision came out in favour of the quarry operator. I have not
read the decision yet, but I will soon. However, this is the other
side of the way things happen.

We talked about biodiversity in the context of looking at
species at risk, because biodiversity implies the richness of
different living species — not in harmony, because animals do
not live harmoniously together. Then there are other groups that
will use the knowledge and technology they have garnered to try

premiers quarts de ce projet de loi qui parle d’intendance non pas
dans le sens d’afficher une plaque sur le mur mais dans celui
d’éviter ’expropriation ou la prison ou que sais-je encore.

Monsieur Woolham, la Loi sur la protection de
I’environnement de I’Ontario contient des dispositions en ce qui
a trait a la responsabilité stricte. Connaissez-vous des cas précis
ou le gouvernement a abusé de cette loi? En outre, la Loi sur les
péches, la Loi canadienne sur la protection environnementale, la
Loi sur le transport des marchandises dangereuses, la Loi sur la
faune du Canada, La Loi sur les oiseaux migrateurs et la
réglementation sur les espéces animales et végétales sauvages
renferment cette disposition relative a la responsabilité stricte.
Connaissez-vous des cas ou un ordre de gouvernement en aurait
abusé?

M. Woolham: Je dois dire que je ne connais pas de cas ou ils
ont utilisé cela dans le méme contexte. J’ai compris que la
responsabilité stricte dans le contexte de la loi fédérale avait
rapport au Code criminel et qu’elle avait des répercussions
différentes de ce qu’elles auraient en Ontario au regard du droit
jurisprudentiel. Comme je ne suis pas avocat, je ne suis pas sir de
ce que j’avance ici.

Le président: Moi non plus.

M. Woolham: A cet égard, oui, des accusations ont été portées
et des amendes ont été imposées mais pas a I’échelle envisagée par
le projet de loi fédéral.

L’Ontario dispose déja de quantité de textes législatifs, y
compris un texte important sur ’habitat des espéces sauvages. J’ai
présenté un exposé a M. Pearce. Comme il n’avait pas entendu
parler de cette mesure législative en particulier ni des lignes
directrices, je lui ai donné mon exemplaire.

Dans ce genre de processus, il faut éviter, dans le Code
criminel, la responsabilité stricte.

Pour une raison ou pour une autre, il doit faut faire un certain
compromis en qui a trait au processus. Ce que 1’on craint c’est que
si des gens voient quelque chose, la premiére chose qu’ils feront
c’est de s’en débarrasser. C’est un probleme de confiance,
d’éducation, et cetera. C’est peut-étre la que l'intendance et la
direction efficace interviennent dans ce processus.

Nous avons eu plusieurs cas de prise de terre, pour différentes
raisons. Je pense a un exemple récent: I’exploitation d’une carriére
a l'est de Barrie. Pour une raison ou pour une autre, quelqu’un a
découvert que des pies-grieches migratrices pourraient s’y trouver.
Je crois, en fait, que quelqu’un a trouvé un couple d’oiseaux la ou
il n’avait pas été vu auparavant. L’exploitation de la carriére a été
interrompue tant que l'affaire n’a pas été entendue par un
tribunal. Une décision a été rendue récemment en faveur du
propriétaire de la carriére. Je n’ai pas encore lu la décision, mais je
vais le faire bient6t. Cependant, c’est 'autre aspect de la fagon
dont les choses se produisent.

Nous avons abordé la question de la biodiversité dans le
contexte des especes en péril, parce qu’elle suggére la richesse des
espéces vivantes — non I’harmonie parce que ce n’est pas ainsi
que vivent les animaux. Par ailleurs, d’autres groupes vont utiliser
les connaissances et a la technologie qu’ils ont recueillies pour
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to stop someone from doing something, or at least get a couple of
hands into the pockets down the road. One of these groups is
called “bioblitz.” They are popular in the States and they are now
in Canada. There was a “bioblitz” on the old Highway 16 not
long ago. Someone spotted some surveying being done and
assumed there would be a bridge built. The next weekend, all the
specialists came out, and they found every kind of species all
around that land, because they know when they go to court, they
will try to stop its construction. However, it turned out the survey
stakes were for the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority. They
had just received the property and were putting in a walkway to
keep people from going into the grass and the scenery there.

There was another bioblitz in Richmond recently in connection
with a golf course; this is how these things are used sometimes. To
my way of thinking, there is something wrong with that. There
should be ways in which some kind of compromise can be
established.

In Ontario — and this gets back to the legislation — the private
property owners who go to court for any reason right now do not
stand a chance unless they have a lot of money. The ministries will
send down their best lawyers, and they have lots. When property
owners are confronted with three or four lawyers, with their
expert witnesses, they cannot afford to conclude the legal process.
I have firsthand experience of that. I spent two years with the City
of Ottawa at the OMB over wetlands. I am quite sure it cost the
City of Ottawa and the Ministry of Municipal Affairs at least a
quarter of a million dollars. It cost us a lot of money, but we had a
lawyer who donated most of his services, so $5,000 covered his
fee. Certainly we spent an incredible amount of time on that and
we did not get much out of it, frankly. We were backed into a
corner.

The Chairman: Did you win?
Mr. Woolham: No.

Senator Milne: I wanted to return to what you were saying,
Mr. Woolham, about the compromises within the bill. It seems to
me that the compromise they have tried to build into this bill
regarding strict liability is the due diligence defence. As long as the
landowner says that he has attempted to educate himself and has,
to the best of his knowledge, exhibited due diligence, that is an
absolute defence.

Senator Spivak: I wish to add something about due diligence.
The House of Commons would not go along with the minister
notifying all directly affected landowners. That is out of the bill. If
you do not even know about it, how will you do due diligence?

Mr. Woolham: The due diligence usually involves securing a
professional for services that you may not need.

tenter d’empécher qui que ce soit de mal agir ou, a tout le moins,
d’en prendre quelques-uns la main dans le sac. Un de ces groupes
qui s’appelle «BioBlitz» est déja populaire aux Etats-Unis et
s’'implante maintenant au Canada. Un «bioblitz» a été tenu sur
l’ancienne autoroute 16 il n’y a pas si longtemps. Quelqu’un qui
avait remarqué qu’on effectuait des levées de plan en avait conclu
quun pont allait étre construit. Le week-end d’aprés, tous les
spécialistes se sont rendus sur les lieux et ont découvert une
incroyable diversité d’espéces sur ce terrain. Ils savent que quand
ils iront en cour, ils tenteront d’empécher cette construction. Il
s’est avéré, cependant, que les levées de plan étaient effectuées au
nom de la Rideau Valley Conservation Authority qui venait a
peine d’acquérir la propriété et comptait construire une passerelle
pour que les gens ne piétinent pas I’herbe et n’abiment pas
I’environnement.

Un autre bioblitz a eu lieu a Richmond récemment a propos
d’un terrain de golf. C’est ainsi que 'on invoque parfois ces
dispositions et d’aprés moi, il y a quelque chose qui ne tourne pas
rond la-dedans. Il devrait y avoir moyen de parvenir a un
compromis.

En Ontario — et nous en revenons a la loi — les propriétaires de
terrains privés qui vont en cour, peu importe la raison, n’ont aucune
chance de gagner a moins d’avoir beaucoup d’argent. Les ministéres
vont faire intervenir leurs meilleurs avocats, et ils en ont beaucoup.
Quand les propriétaires terriens sont en présence de trois ou quatre
avocats accompagnés de leurs témoins experts, ils ne peuvent pas se
permettre de continuer jusqu’au bout la procédure judiciaire. Je le
sais d’expérience. J’ai siégé deux ans au CGO de la ville d’Ottawa
pour le dossier des zones humides. Je ne pense pas me tromper en
estimant a au moins un quart de million de dollars les frais qu’ont
di supporter la ville d’Ottawa et le ministére des Affaires
municipales. Ca nous a co(té beaucoup d’argent, sauf qu’un
avocat nous a offert gracieusement la plupart de ses services, si bien
que ses honoraires ne se sont élevés qu’a 5 000 $. Il n’y a aucun
doute que nous y avons consacré énormément de temps, et
franchement, pour pas grand-chose. Nous étions coincés.

Le président: Avez-vous gagné?
M. Woolham: Non.

Le sénateur Milne: J’aimerais revenir sur ce que vous dites,
monsieur Woolham, a propos des compromis. Il me semble qu’un
compromis relatif a la responsabilité stricte est bel et bien prévu
par ce projet de loi, et se présente sous forme de défense de
précautions raisonnables. Tant qu’un propriétaire affirme avoir
tenté de s’informer et, au meilleur de ses connaissances, avoir pris
des précautions raisonnables, sa défense est absolue.

Le sénateur Spivak: Je veux ajouter quelque chose a propos de
des précautions raisonnables. La Chambre des communes ne
permettrait pas au ministre de contacter directement tous les
propriétaires concernés. Ce n’est pas prévu dans le projet de loi. Si
vous ne savez méme pas ce qui se passe, comment pouvez-vous
prendre des précautions raisonnables?

M. Woolham: Pour ce faire, il faut d’habitude retenir les
services d’un professionnel dont vous n’avez peut-étre pas besoin.
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Senator Spivak: That was under the listing provisions.

Mr. Woolham: There have been changes to the bill that we
support. I will not mention those today; it is not necessary.
However, there have been changes that have had a positive
impact, and we would like to see more.

Senator Milne: If it came down to this bill with no changes, or
no bill at all, what would be your choice? I know Mr. Pope’s
choice.

Mr. Woolham: That very first day we got a lecture from the
padre, who said to us, “Now, kids, avoid downtown
entanglements,” whatever that meant, and the other thing he
said was, “Never let your schooling interfere with your
education,” and we did not.

The business of whether or not the bill should go ahead is a bit
of a trick question.

Senator Spivak: It is.

Mr. Woolham: One of the big difficulties with the bill in the
present form — and it is like Ontario’s nutrient management
plan — is we do not know what the regulations are going to bring
on. The way government operates now is to give a framework in an
act and then let the bureaucrats, with the advice of the minister, or
vice versa, make regulations. By the time you catch up with the
regulations, it is too late.

Quite frankly, yes, there could be another species at risk bill
that, from our perspective, could be much worse than the present
one. I do not think, given the political nature of the needs under
all sorts of things, that we expect the bill to be cancelled. It will
just keep coming. After the millions of dollars that have been
spent on getting the bill this far, to start all over again and redo it
would be another ball game in someone else’s field.

Mr. Pope: I should like to address due diligence. Due diligence
is something that usually is applied to a prospectus when you are
coming out with a share issue and you want the company to come
clean on everything that has been done, the finances and so forth.
Due diligence in this respect, however, on a farm or a ranch —
and this is what I live day in and day out, but you can apply it to
oil and gas, forestry, mining — means you have done everything
you reasonably can to prevent the bad stuff that is in this Bill C-5.
I would have to go out and hire a biologist, probably at the Ph.D.
level. Being a lawyer, I could probably find out what the critters
were. He would have to tell me if I had the critters on the place.
Then he would have to identify their habitat. I would then
probably have to hire an agricultural-management consulting
firm to tell me how I will have to change my operation to mitigate
the impact on the habitat of these species at risk.

I would have to do that to start with, to arm myself with some
evidence when I went to court after they accuse me, and then I
have to defend myself with due diligence. I would parade these
expert witnesses and say, “This is what I have done; I have cut my
cattle operations by X number and fenced off this portion,” and
so on. However, we are dealing here with constant change.
Burrowing owls in eastern Alberta come and go on almost a

Le sénateur Spivak: I en est question dans les dispositions
relatives a I'inscription.

M. Woolham: Nous soutenons certains amendements au projet
de loi, que je ne mentionnerai pas aujourd’hui. Certains ont eu un
impact positif, et nous aimerions en voir davantage.

Le sénateur Milne: Si vous aviez le choix entre ce projet de loi
inchangé, ou aucun projet de loi du tout, que décideriez-vous? Je
connais déja la réponse de M. Pope.

M. Woolham: Je me rappelle que le tout premier jour, le padre
nous a dit «les enfants, évitez les embrouilles», je ne sais toujours
pas ce que cela veut dire, et ensuite, «I’éducation passe avant la
scolarité» et nous I’avons écouté.

Cette question est une question piége.

Le sénateur Spivak: Effectivement.

M. Woolham: L’une des grandes difficultés que présente ce
projet de loi actuellement — comme c’est le cas avec le plan de
gestion nucléaire de 1’Ontario — c’est que nous ne connaissons
pas les effets des reglements. Aujourd’hui, le gouvernement
préfeére construire le cadre d’une loi et laisser les bureaucrates,
conseillés par le ministre, ou vice-versa, prendre les réglements.
Une fois cela fait, il est déja trop tard.

Franchement, un autre projet de loi sur les espéces en péril
pourrait étre bien pire que celui-ci, d’aprés nous. Nous ne nous
attendons pas a ce que le projet de loi soit abrogé, étant donné la
nature politique du sujet traité. Il est impossible de I'arréter.
Aprés avoir dépensé des millions de dollars pour en arriver 1a, il
serait inconcevable de recommencer a zéro.

M. Pope: Jaimerais revenir a la question des précautions
raisonnables qui s’appliquent d’habitude a la diffusion d’un
prospectus dans lequel une entreprise doit tout divulguer, ses
finances, et tout le reste. Dans le présent contexte, cependant,
dans une ferme ou un ranch — c’est ce que je vois tous les jours,
mais on pourrait dire la méme chose des secteurs du pétrole, de la
foresterie, de I’exploitation miniére — les précautions
raisonnables signifient que vous avez fait tout votre possible
pour éviter les écueils du projet de loi C-5. Il me faudrait sirement
retenir les services d’un biologiste, de préférence avec un doctorat.
En tant qu’avocat, je pourrais probablement identifier les
bestioles. En revanche, il devrait confirmer si jen ai sur mon
terrain, et ensuite identifier leur habitat. Ensuite, il faudrait
probablement que j’engage une firme d’experts-conseils en gestion
agricole pour me dire comment modifier mon exploitation afin
d’en atténuer 'impact sur I’habitat de ces espéces en péril.

Et ce n’est que le début; une fois accusé, il faudrait que je
recueille des preuves a présenter devant le tribunal, puis que je me
défende en parlant des précautions raisonnables que j’aurais
prises. Il me faudrait faire défiler tous ces témoins experts et dire
«voila ce que j’ai fait; j’ai réduit mon bétail de X tétes et j’ai fermé
cette parcelle de mon terrainy, etc. Le probléme, c’est que la
situation change constamment. Les chevéches des terriers dans
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yearly basis. Therefore, to really be prepared for the court
challenge, which could come from any 18-year-old who decides to
gather evidence, I might have to do this once a year.

I have told my people at home to prepare for this kind of
litigation; a proper due diligence would cost thousands of dollars
a year.

It is outside of what we usually do. Why should we have to do
this when there is, as I have outlined a couple of times, a better
way to do it, with a voluntary approach? Why should we have to
do that? After we get to court, the question will always be whether
we have done enough, as it always is under due diligence. The
other side’s lawyers will ask, “Mr. Pope, have you done this and
this?” The question will be whether I have done enough. I will
only know after the judge makes his or her decision, following a
prohibitively expensive litigation process. I would expect this kind
of litigation at the trial division to cost $200,000.

Senator Milne: I hope the next panel of witnesses are in the
room and will be prepared to answer some of these questions.

The Chairman: That concludes our time, gentlemen. I hope you
will stay with us to hear the following panel.

Mr. Pope: 1 have a presentation to make in High River
tomorrow and I must catch an airplane.

The Chairman: Mr. Woolham and Mr. Pope, I appreciate you
being clear about what you think.

Our next witness is Mr. David Near. Mr. Near is a senior
counsel from Justice Canada.

Mr. Near, I thank you for coming to see us again, and
welcome back. We should like to hear you in regard to turning
around the presumption of innocence, which is said by some to
exist in Bill C-5.

Mr. David Near, Senior Counsel, Justice Canada: Honourable
senators, it is a pleasure to be back. I certainly would not
characterize the discussion as relating to turning around the
presumption of innocence. I was told the discussion would be
with respect to the difference between mens rea offences and those
referred to as “strict liability offences.” Sometimes these are also
called “public welfare offences” or “regulatory offences.”
Basically, they are the types of offences you will find in either
provincial or federal legislation, as opposed to the Criminal Code
specifically.

The Chairman: However, the penalties that obtain are not the
same as for, for example, a speeding ticket. You used the right
term, “strict liability,” which requires, as I understand it, the
person who has been charged to demonstrate that he is not guilty.

Mr. Near: Perhaps I will go through the two types offences by
way of introduction and to make the distinction between the two.
Classically, pure criminal-type offences, or those that require
mens rea, require the Crown to prove what is called the actus reus,

I’est de I’Alberta vont et viennent presque tous les ans. Par
conséquent, pour me préparer a un éventuel procés, qui pourrait
d’ailleurs étre intenté par n’importe quel jeune décidant de
recueillir des preuves, il faudrait que j’entreprenne ces démarches
tous les ans.

Jai prévenu mes proches de se préparer pour ce genre de litige;
prendre des précautions raisonnables pourrait cofiter des milliers
de dollars par année.

Cela dépasse le cadre de notre travail habituel. Pourquoi
devrions-nous le faire si, comme je 1’ai mentionné a quelques
reprises, il serait beaucoup plus facile d’adopter une approche
volontaire? Pourquoi devrions-nous le faire? Aprés le procés, on
se demandera toujours si on en a assez fait, comme c’est toujours
le cas dans le contexte des précautions raisonnables. Les avocats
de la Couronne me demanderont: «Monsieur Pope, avez-vous fait
ceci et cela?» Il s’agira toujours de savoir si j’en ai assez fait. Je ne
le saurais seulement qu’apres la décision du juge, a I'issue d’un
procés extrémement cotiteux; en effet, en premiére instance, il en
colterait dans les 200 000 §.

Le sénateur Milne: J’espére que les prochains témoins sont
présents et préts a répondre a quelques-unes de ces questions.

Le président: C’est ainsi que nous terminons, messieurs, mais
jespére que vous allez assister a la table ronde.

M. Pope: J’ai un exposé a faire a High River demain et je dois
prendre I’avion.

Le président: Monsieur Woolham et monsieur Pope, je vous
remercie d’avoir été aussi clairs.

M. David Near, avocat-conseil a Justice Canada, est notre
prochain témoin.

Monsieur Near, merci de revenir nous voir et bienvenue. Nous
aimerions avoir votre point de vue au sujet du revirement quant a
la présomption d’innocence qui, selon certains, apparait dans le
projet de loi C-5.

M. David Near, avocat-conseil, Justice Canada: Honorables
sénateurs, c’est un plaisir d’étre de nouveau parmi vous. Je ne
dirais certainement pas nous allons discuter du revirement quant
a la présomption d’innocence. On m’a dit en effet que le débat
allait porter sur la différence entre I'infraction commise avec
intention coupable et celle appelée «infraction de responsabilité
stricten. Parfois, on 'appelle également «infraction contre le bien-
étre publicy ou «infraction aux réglementsy». Il s’agit
essentiellement des infractions créées par les lois provinciales ou
fédérales, et non par le Code criminel.

Le président: Toutefois, les peines qui les accompagnent ne sont
pas les mémes que dans le cas, par exemple, d’une contravention
pour excés de vitesse. Vous avez utilisé 1’expression correcte,
«responsabilité stricte», qui exige, si je comprends bien, que la
personne qui est accusée doit prouver qu’elle n’est pas coupable.

M. Near: Peut-étre pourrais-je commencer par examiner les
deux infractions et faire ensuite la distinction entre elles.
Généralement, pour une infraction pénale, ou celle qui exige la
mens rea, la Couronne doit prouver ce que 'on appelle 1'actus
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which is the facts of the offence that constitute the prohibited
activity, in other words, the thing that was done. The Crown must
prove that beyond a reasonable doubt.

In addition, in a classic criminal offence that requires mens rea,
the Crown would have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that
the person intended or was wilfully blind, knowingly — or other
terms are often used in that context — that they intended to
commit this offence beyond a reasonable doubt. That is the classic
definition of a mens rea, pure criminal offence.

Until the late 1970s, those were for the most part the basic
types of offences in statutes that had serious penalties, for
example. Not to be confusing, but in the old days, there used to be
something called the “absolute liability offence,” where the
Crown had to prove that an accused person committed the act
and there was no mental element at all.

The Supreme Court struck that down in Regina v. Sault Ste.
Marie in the late 1970s and introduced a sort of middle ground,
which is called a “strict liability offence.” In such an offence, the
Crown has to prove beyond a reasonable doubt the actus reus, the
facts that constitute the prohibited activity. In other words, we
still have to prove you did something that is a contravention of
the act.

In a strict liability context, the onus then shifts to the accused,
to the defendant, to prove that they did everything a reasonable
person would do under the circumstances to avoid the
commission of the offence. That constitutes the defence of due
diligence, which has been around now for about 30 years.
Virtually all statutes, both federal and provincial, for that matter,
are strict liability offences.

In a nutshell, that is the distinction between the two.

The Chairman: For example, if I am a rancher and I
unknowingly disrupt the habitat of the burrowing owl on a
quarter section of my land by removing some brush and
cultivating hay, thereby perhaps even destroying the habitat,
there would be no doubt of the Crown’s capability to prove that I
did the act. After all, the brush would be gone, the bulldozer
having done its job, and the habitat would no longer exist. What
will obtain in that situation under this bill?

Mr. Near: As an example, I will pick a particular offence. Let
us say your action destroyed the residence of a listed wildlife
species. In this case, a nest of a migratory bird is destroyed by a
farming activity. Usually, the fact of the destruction is self-
evident. Therefore, you are correct. The Crown usually does not
have difficulty proving this thing has occurred.

In the normal course of events, one would expect that the first
person to exercise some element of discretion would be the
enforcement officer. One would expect the enforcement officer to
exercise some judgment in terms of the activity that actually took
place. In fact, one of the requirements of the conservation officer
is to gather some evidence with respect to whether or not due
diligence was exercised in this activity.

reus, soit I’élément matériel qui porte sur la conduite prohibée, en
d’autres termes, I’acte commis. La Couronne doit le prouver au-
dela de tout doute raisonnable.

En outre, dans le cas d’une infraction pénale classique qui exige
la mens rea, la Couronne doit prouver au-dela de tout doute
raisonnable que la personne a intentionnellement ou
sciemment — ou d’autres expressions souvent utilisées dans ce
contexte — commis cette infraction au-dela de tout doute
raisonnable. C’est la définition classique d’une infraction
commise avec une intention coupable ou d’une infraction pénale.

Jusqu’a la fin des années 70, ces infractions étaient, pour la
plupart, accompagnées de lourdes peines en vertu de la loi.
Autrefois cependant, et je ne cherche pas a brouiller les cartes, on
parlait parfois d’«infraction de responsabilité absolue»:la
Couronne devait prouver que I’accusé avait commis I'infraction
et il n’y avait absolument pas d’élément mental.

La Cour supréme a invalidé cette définition dans I’affaire
Regina c. Sault Sainte-Marie a la fin des années 70 et a introduit
une notion intermédiaire que l'on appelle «infraction de
responsabilité stricte». En pareil cas, la Couronne doit prouver
au-dela de tout doute raisonnable 'actus reus, soit 1’élément
matériel qui constitue la conduite prohibée. En d’autres termes, il
faut toujours prouver que la personne a commis quelque chose
qui constitue une violation de Ia loi.

Dans un contexte de responsabilité stricte, c’est a I’accusé, au
défendeur, de prouver qu’il a fait tout ce qu’une personne
raisonnable ferait dans les circonstances pour éviter de commettre
I'infraction. Cela constitue la défense de précautions raisonnables,
qui existe maintenant depuis prés de 30 ans. Pratiquement toutes
les lois, fédérales et provinciales, créent en fait des infractions de
responsabilité stricte.

En résumé, c’est la différence entre les deux.

Le président: Prenons un exemple: si je suis grand éleveur et que
je dérange sans le savoir I’habitat de la chevéche des terriers sur
une partie de mes terres en enlevant des broussailles et en
cultivant du foin, et par 1a méme peut-étre en détruisant ’habitat
en question, la Couronne pourrait sans aucun doute prouver que
jai commis un tel acte. Aprés tout, les broussailles auraient
disparu, le bulldozer serait passé par la et I’habitat n’existerait
plus. Comment serais-je traité en vertu de ce projet de loi?

M. Near: Je vais parler d’une infraction en particulier, a titre
d’exemple. Disons que votre conduite a détruit ’habitat d’une
espece figurant sur la liste des especes en péril. Dans ce cas précis,
le nid d’un oiseau migrateur est détruit par une activité agricole.
Habituellement, la réalité de la destruction est évidente. Par
conséquent, vous avez raison. La Couronne n’a normalement
aucune difficulté a prouver que c’est ce qui s’est produit.

Normalement, on s’attendrait a ce que I’agent de l’autorité soit
la premiére personne a exercer une certaine discrétion. On
s’attendrait a ce qu’il fasse preuve de jugement a propos de
I’activité qui a véritablement eu lieu. En fait, I’agent de
conservation doit, entre autres, rassembler des preuves
indiquant si ’agriculteur a fait preuve de diligence raisonnable
ou non.
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After that, if the enforcement officer decided to proceed with
the case, he would refer the facts to the Crown attorney, and then
the federal prosecutor, in this instance, would also exercise some
judgment with respect to whether or not it was in the public
interest to pursue that type of case.

The Chairman: In other words, can he get a conviction?

Mr. Near: There is not just that to consider. One consideration,
for example, is whether or not it is in the public interest to expend
limited public funds to pursue this type of prosecution.

There are, if you like, certain safeguards. However, in the
exercise of both the enforcement officer’s and the prosecutor’s
discretion, a large part would probably depend on the actual facts
of the particular case; that is, how serious might the transgression
be, and whether or not there was any evidence that the person
knew there might be something there and chose not to do
anything about it.

The Chairman: Is that the question upon which the thing would
turn in the example? I know that examples are problematic, but
we are trying to understand this. In the example I gave you, I was
a rancher in southern Alberta. I cleared brush off a corner of my
land and, in so doing, drained a marshy area that was not
productive. I checked and found no wildlife of any particular
distinction. I had a look and made reasonable inquiries and did
not know that, in fact, that was the habitat of a burrowing owl, a
species on the list.

It seems to me that the onus is on me to prove that I went far
enough in trying to find out whether there was any likelihood of
there being a burrowing owl on that land. The onus is on me to
show that I went to whatever lengths were required, as we heard
Mr. Pope say, to reasonably assure myself that I was not messing
up some creature’s habitat when I performed that action on my
land. Am I correct?

Mr. Near: The strict liability offences basically introduce a
negligence level of liability. When the onus shifts to the defendant
or the accused, they would then have to prove, on a balance of
probabilities as opposed to beyond a reasonable doubt, that they
had taken some care to avoid the offence. Each case would be
dependent on the individual facts.

The Chairman: Is the balance of probabilities test one that is
usually applied to civil law?

Mr. Near: That is correct.

The Chairman: However, some of the penalties in this measure
are indictable and would be subject to penalties that exist under
criminal law. Is it still the case that a balance of probabilities is the
test?

Mr. Near: I think it is important not to confuse the Criminal
Code with what are public welfare offences. As you indicated
before, Mr. Chairman, the Fisheries Act, the Migratory Birds
Convention Act — in fact, almost all federal and provincial
statutes — are strict liability offences. The fact that the penalties
can be serious does not make them criminal offences, at least

Ensuite, si ’agent de "autorité décide de poursuivre I’affaire, il
renvoie les faits a I’avocat de la Couronne; le procureur fédéral,
dans ce cas précis, juge alors si oui ou non il y va de I'intérét
public de poursuivre ce genre d’affaire.

Le président: Autrement dit, peut-il étre déclaré coupable?

M. Near: Il n’y a pas que cela qui compte; il faudrait, par
exemple, décider s’il y va de I'intérét public de dépenser les deniers
publics — limités — pour entamer ce genre de poursuite.

Certaines sauvegardes sont prévues, si vous voulez. Toutefois,
la décision prise par l’agent d’exécution tout comme par le
procureur est probablement fondée en grande partie sur les faits
réels de I'affaire: la gravité de I'infraction, la possibilité de prouver
que la personne était au courant de I’existence de I’habitat et
qu’elle a choisi de ne rien faire a ce sujet.

Le président: Est-ce dans ce cas-la que la présomption
d’innocence ne tiendrait plus? Je connais des exemples qui sont
problématiques, mais nous essayons de bien comprendre. Dans
I’exemple que je vous ai donné, je suis grand éleveur dans le sud de
I’Alberta. J’élimine des broussailles dans un coin de mes terres et,
ce faisant, asséche un marécage qui n’est pas productif. J’ai vérifié
et je n’ai pas trouvé d’especes sauvages particuliéres. Je me suis
renseigné de fagon raisonnable et je n’ai pas su, qu’en fait, il s’y
trouvait I’habitat d'une chevéche des terriers, espéce figurant sur
la liste des espéces en péril.

Il me semble que c’est a moi de prouver que j’ai fait ce qu’il
fallait pour essayer de savoir s’il pouvait se trouver une chevéche
des terriers sur cette parcelle de terrain. C’est a moi de montrer
que j’ai déployé beaucoup d’efforts, comme il le fallait, ainsi que
I’a indiqué M. Pope, pour m’assurer raisonnablement que je ne
dérangeais pas un habitat quelconque au moment du
débroussaillage. Est-ce bien cela?

M. Near: L’infraction de responsabilité stricte introduit
essentiellement un élément de négligence. Lorsque la
responsabilité revient au défendeur ou a l'accusé, ce dernier doit
prouver, selon la prépondérance des probabilités, et non au-dela
de tout doute raisonnable, qu’il a tenté d’éviter de commettre
I'infraction. Chaque cas dépend des faits en cause.

Le président: Le critére de prépondérance des probabilités est-il
celui habituellement appliqué au droit civil?

M. Near: C’est exact.

Le président: Toutefois, certaines des infractions créées par
cette mesure législative sont susceptibles de poursuite en justice et
pourraient faire I'objet de peines prévues en vertu du droit
criminel. Est-il vrai que la prépondérance des probabilités est
toujours le critére retenu?

M. Near: Je crois qu’il est important de ne pas confondre les
infractions créées par le Code criminel avec les infractions contre
le bien-étre public. Comme vous 'avez indiqué plus tét, monsieur
le président, la Loi sur la péche, la Loi sur la convention
concernant les oiseaux migrateurs — en fait, presque toutes les
lois fédérales et provinciales — créent des infractions de
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according to the law, and I am not saying that the penalties are
not serious. With respect to the Fisheries Act and the other
statutes I have cited, legislators have decided that the penalties
will be significant for the types of transgressions outlined in the
legislation.

It is important to recognize that just because the penalties are
high, that does not make them the classic criminal type of offence
that would attach mens rea proof as a requirement.

Senator Kenny: I wanted to continue law 101, if I may,
Mr. Chairman. The balance of probabilities test is a pretty low
test, is it not?

Mr. Near: It is considerably lower than proof beyond a
reasonable doubt.

Senator Kenny: In this case, it is weighted in favour of the
government; is that right?

Mr. Near: In actual fact, when the onus shifts to the accused, it
was purposely designed to be a lower threshold for the accused
person to prove that they acted reasonably.

Senator Kenny: I had it backwards, then?
Mr. Near: Yes.

Senator Kenny: Going back to the case of the burrowing owl, is
it reasonable to expect a property owner to know that a
burrowing owl is something to worry about?

Mr. Near: I can give you the classic lawyer’s answer and say it
depends on the facts. However, let me give you an example. Let us
consider an offence with respect to critical habitat. Given the
process one has to go through to establish what critical habitat is,
either in a recovery strategy or an action plan, where there is a
requirement to consult with people directly affected, one would
expect that we would catch most of those people with, if you like,
actual notice that they have something of importance with respect
to critical habitat in regard to a listed species on their property.
Thus, five years later, when we actually designate it as critical
habitat, they should be aware that something is going on.

Senator Spivak: That is not in this bill.

Mr. Near: With all due respect, with respect to critical habitat,
the preparation of a recovery strategy or an action plan requires
consultation and cooperation with those groups that may be
affected.

Senator Spivak: In the House of Commons a clause was put
forward which stated that, to the extent known, the minister shall
notify all directly affected landowners when a listing takes place.
That clause was removed from the bill.

The Chairman: Mr. Near’s point was not that the notification
takes place; it was that the process by which a recovery plan will
be put into place will not be a secret to anyone who is anywhere
near it.

responsabilité stricte. Le fait que les peines puissent étre lourdes
n’en fait pas des infractions pénales, a tout le moins selon Ia loi,
mais je ne dis pas que les peines ne sont pas lourdes. En ce qui
concerne la Loi sur la péche et les autres lois que j’ai citées, les
législateurs ont décidé que les peines seront importantes pour les
genres de transgressions définies dans la loi.

Il est important de savoir que ce n’est pas parce que les peines
sont ¢levées que l'infraction est pénale et qu’il faut prouver
I’existence de la mens rea.

Le sénateur Kenny: J’aimerais poursuivre le cours de droit 101,
si vous permettez, monsieur le président. Le critére de
prépondérance des probabilités est assez bas, n’est-ce pas?

M. Near: Il est beaucoup plus bas que la preuve au-dela de tout
doute raisonnable.

Le sénateur Kenny: Dans ce cas, il est favorable au
gouvernement, n’est-ce pas?

M. Near: En fait, ce critére est prévu plus bas pour que ’accusé
puisse prouver qu’il a agi de fagon raisonnable.

Le sénateur Kenny: J’avais donc compris le contraire?
M. Near: Oui.

Le sénateur Kenny: Pour revenir a I’exemple de la chevéche des
terriers, est-il raisonnable de s’attendre a ce qu’un propriétaire
sache que c’est une espéce dont il devrait se soucier?

M. Near: Je pourrais vous donner la réponse classique des
avocats et vous dire que cela dépend des faits. Toutefois,
permettez-moi de vous donner un exemple, celui d’une
infraction relative a I’habitat essentiel. Etant donné le processus
par lequel il faut passer pour déterminer ce qu’est un habitat
essentiel, soit dans le cadre de programmes de rétablissement ou
d’un plan d’action, ou il faut consulter les personnes visées
directement, on s’attendrait a ce que la plupart de ces personnes
soient avisées, si vous voulez, qu’il se trouve sur leurs terres une
espéce inscrite sur la liste des espéces en péril, dont I'habitat est
essentiel. Cing années plus tard, lorsque I’habitat est effectivement
désigné essentiel, cela ne devrait pas les surprendre.

Le sénateur Spivak: Ce n’est pas inscrit dans ce projet de loi.

M. Near: Avec tout le respect que je vous dois, en matiére
d’habitat essentiel, la mise sur pied des programmes de
rétablissement ou d’un plan d’action exige la consultation et la
coopération des groupes qui pourraient étre visés.

Le sénateur Spivak: Selon un article présenté a la Chambre des
communes, le ministre doit, dans la mesure du possible, avertir
tous les propriétaires directement visés lorsqu’une espéce est
inscrite sur la liste des espéces en péril. Cet article a été supprimé
du projet de loi.

Le président: Ce que M. Near a voulu dire, ce n’est pas que
I’avis soit donné, mais plutét que le processus relatif aux
programmes de rétablissement n’est un secret pour personne.
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Senator Spivak: Yes it will, because when you list an
endangered species, there will not be people running around
with infrared positioning and night goggles pointing out every
single place. However, if you notify all the landowners, they might
twig to it, but that was taken out.

Senator Kenny: Was it taken out or not?
Senator Spivak: It was deleted at report stage.
Senator Kenny: Mr. Near?

Mr. Near: I can speak to that, because I was there. I spent eight
or ten lively weeks before the House committee. That particular
issue was debated at some length. It was not in the original bill. A
motion was brought forward to include it in the bill. It is my
recollection that it was passed by the House committee, and it was
taken out at report stage.

Senator Kenny: So it was taken out. You could have saved a lot
of time if you had just said it was taken out.

Mr. Near: I was just explaining the background.

Senator Spivak: He wanted us to know that it was not in the
original bill.

The Chairman: I want to ensure that I understand this. The
provision in the bill that once existed, which required the minister
to notify all available landowners when an animal is put on the
list, would, I suppose, require the minister to notify every
landowner in Canada. The point Mr. Near is making, if I
understand it correctly, is that no action can take place under this
bill by way of a penalty until there is a recovery plan, which will
result in a whole lot of consultation with the landowner who is
affected by it.

Senator Spivak: By that time, there are fields of hay growing
there. Who will know?

Senator Milne: There is no provision in this bill for repayment
to a landowner until there is an action plan for the land. Does that
apply to the penalties as well? I am not aware that it does.

Mr. Near: It depends on which prohibition you are talking
about. I used the critical habitat prohibition as an example to
illustrate the process. We would be very surprised if we found that
people who had critical habitat on their land were unaware of
that, should we eventually decide to bring a prosecution.

That is different from listing. In some respects, they would
have not as much notice, in that COSEWIC would have to
publish in the public registry the species they are considering for
listing. There is then a consultation requirement for COSEWIC in
doing the work they do. They refer their recommendation to the
minister and the minister recommends to the GIC to put a species
on a list. That is published in the Canada Gazette, which is the
official way the Government of Canada publicizes these types of
things.

Senator Milne: We know all that.

Mr. Near: That is the background to getting something on the
list.

Le sénateur Spivak: Si, parce que lorsqu’on inscrit une espéce
sur la liste des espéces en péril, cela ne veut pas dire que les gens
vont courir partout pour inspecter toutes les parcelles de leurs
terres. Toutefois, si vous avertissez tous les propriétaires, ils
risquent de piger, mais cet article a été supprimé.

Le sénateur Kenny: A-t-il été supprimé, oui ou non?
Le sénateur Spivak: Il a été supprimé a I’étape du rapport.
Le sénateur Kenny: Monsieur Near?

M. Near: Je peux en parler, puisque j’étais présent et que j’ai
assisté a huit ou dix semaines de débats trés animés au comité de
la Chambre. Cette question a fait ’objet d’'un long débat. Cet
article n’était pas dans le projet de loi initial, mais une motion a
été déposée pour 'inclure. Si je me souviens bien, la motion a été
adoptée par le comité de la Chambre mais I’article a été retiré a
I’étape du rapport.

Le sénateur Kenny: Il a donc été retiré. Vous auriez pu gagner
beaucoup de temps en disant tout simplement qu’il avait été retiré.

M. Near: Je voulais simplement vous situer dans le contexte.

Le sénateur Spivak: Il voulait nous informer que cet article ne
se trouvait pas dans le projet de loi initial.

Le président: Je veux étre stir de bien comprendre. L’article du
projet de loi qui a existé, selon lequel le ministre doit avertir tous
les propriétaires lorsqu’un animal est inscrit sur la liste des espéces
en péril, exige, j'imagine, que le ministre avertisse tous les
propriétaires du Canada. Si je comprends bien ce que veut dire
M. Near, aucune mesure ne peut étre prise en vertu de ce projet de
loi, aucune peine ne peut étre infligée, tant qu’il n’y a pas de
programmes de rétablissement entrainant tout un processus de
consultation avec le propriétaire visé.

Le sénateur Spivak: En attendant, des champs de foin ont pris
la place. Qui le saura?

Le sénateur Milne: Ce projet de loi ne prévoit pas d’indemniser
un propriétaire tant qu’il n’y a pas de plan d’action pour les terres.
Cela s’applique-t-il aux peines également? Je n’en suis pas sire.

M. Near: Cela dépend de I'interdiction dont vous parlez. J’ai
donné I'interdiction relative a I’habitat essentiel a titre d’exemple
pour illustrer le processus. Dans les cas ou 1’on décidait d’intenter
des poursuites, il serait trés surprenant que les propriétaires ne
sachent pas qu’il se trouve un habitat essentiel sur leurs terres.

C’est différent de I'inscription sur la liste. A certains égards, ils
n’auraient pas autant d’avis, puisque le COSEPAC publie dans le
registre les espéces qu’il envisage inscrire sur la liste des espéces en
péril. Dans le cadre de son travail, le COSEPAC doit consulter. Il
présente ses recommandations au ministre, lequel recommande au
GC d’inscrire une espece sur la liste. C’est publié dans la Gazette
du Canada, qui est la fagon officielle dont le gouvernement du
Canada publie ce genre de choses.

Le sénateur Milne: Vous ne nous apprenez rien.

M. Near: C’est ce qui se passe avant I'inscription d’une espéce
sur la liste.
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Senator Milne: That is listing species and then developing an
action plan, but what about the reverse — prosecuting someone?

Mr. Near: Once something is a listed wildlife species, then the
prohibition in clause 32, for example, kicks in and says, “Thou
shalt not kill that particular species.” At that time, a prosecution
is possible if someone is killing an endangered or threatened
species.

Senator Milne: In other words, it leads to the “shoot, shovel
and shut up” syndrome.

Senator Kenny: Could you clarify what that means for our
audience, who may not have heard of it before?

Senator Milne: It means shoot the endangered animal, bury it
and be quiet about it.

Senator Kenny: We are not counselling that.

Senator Milne: No, we are not.

Senator Kenny: I accept that if the process is gone through with
the original owners, they might have some understanding that
there is something they must watch out for on their property.
However, as time goes by, is there a covenant on the deed that one
watches for, sort of like asbestos in a house? How does the next
owner or someone who leases the land come to understand that?
What protections are there with the passage of time?

Mr. Near: To answer your first question, there is no
contemplation of a registry system, which would probably have
to be part of the provincial land registry system. The current
owner would have to advise the next owner that they should be
aware of something, which is not an unnatural expectation.

Senator Kenny: That is a double negative, so I am not sure
what you are saying. You are saying that it is a natural
expectation?

Mr. Near: Yes, that the previous landowner would tell the
current landowner.

Senator Kenny: Is it normal for a person selling land to say to
the potential buyer, “I want you to buy this property from me,
but you cannot use this part of it because it is protected and that
will limit the economic value”?

Mr. Near: They would if they wanted to avoid a lawsuit for
deliberate misrepresentation of the property they are selling.

Senator Kenny: Are you saying that if someone did not do that
they would be open to being sued because they were selling it in a
fraudulent fashion?

Mr. Near: Yes, I would expect that in certain circumstances,
that might arise. Again, it really depends on how much money we
are talking about, whether it is worth the effort, and all of the
other things that go into a decision on litigation.

Le sénateur Milne: Vous parlez de I'inscription d’une espéce sur
la liste et de la mise au point d’un plan d’action, mais qu’en est-il
de I'inverse — des poursuites intentées?

M. Near: A partir du moment ot une espéce est inscrite,
intervient l'interdiction de l’article 32: «Tu ne tueras pas un
individu de cette espéce.» A ce moment-1a, les poursuites sont
possibles si quelquun tue une espéce menacée ou en voie de
disparition.

Le sénateur Milne: En d’autres termes, cela entraine le
syndrome «ni vu, ni connu.»

Le sénateur Kenny: Pourriez-vous expliquer ce que cela veut
dire pour la gouverne de nos auditeurs, qui n’ont peut-étre jamais
entendu cette expression?

Le sénateur Milne: Cela veut dire tuer l'espéce en péril,
I’enterrer et ne rien dire.

Le sénateur Kenny: Ce n’est pas ce que nous conseillons de
faire.

Le sénateur Milne: Certainement pas.

Le sénateur Kenny: J’admets que si les propriétaires initiaux
sont passés par ce processus, ils comprennent qu’il se trouve sur
leurs terres une espéce dont ils doivent se soucier. Toutefois, est-il
prévu une clause restrictive a I’acte de transfert a laquelle il faut
faire attention, au méme titre que celle relative a la présence
d’amiante dans une maison? Comment le propriétaire suivant ou
celui qui loue la terre peut-il le comprendre? Quelles protections
sont prévues pour I’avenir?

M. Near: Pour répondre a votre premiére question, je dirais
qu’il n’est pas envisagé de systéme de registre, cela faisant partie
probablement du régime d’enregistrement foncier provincial. Le
propriétaire actuel devrait avertir le propriétaire suivant, ce qui
n’est pas quelque chose a laquelle on ne devrait pas naturellement
s’attendre.

Le sénateur Kenny: Vous utilisez une double négation, si bien
que je ne suis pas sir de bien vous comprendre. Vous dites qu’on
devrait naturellement s’y attendre?

M. Near: Oui, I’ancien propriétaire avertirait le suivant.

Le sénateur Kenny: Est-il normal pour celui qui vend ses terres
de dire a l’acheteur potentiel: «Je veux que vous achetiez ces
terres, mais vous ne pouvez pas utiliser telle ou telle parcelle, car
elle est protégée, ce qui restreint la valeur économique de la
propriété?»

M. Near: Il pourrait le dire s’il voulait éviter une action en
justice pour déclaration délibérément fausse a propos de la
propriété a vendre.

Le sénateur Kenny: Etes-vous en train de dire que si ce
propriétaire ne le faisait pas, il s’exposerait a des poursuites, sous
prétexte qu’il vendrait sa terre de maniére frauduleuse?

M. Near: Oui, j’'imagine que dans certains cas, cela pourrait se
produire. De nouveau, cela dépend véritablement de I’argent dont
il est question, si cela en vaut la peine, tout en tenant compte de
tous les éléments qui poussent a un proces.



21-11-2002

Energie, environnement et ressources naturelles

4:25

Senator Kenny: I follow your reasoning. It fits in a legal world
and I guess it fits in a government world. I am not sure it fits in
the real world, in terms of how people function. I foresee a lot of
people feeling blindsided at some point by this process. That is
not to take anything away from the logic you have laid out. The
logic works. I am just not sure whether this is people-friendly.

Mr. Near: That is a fair comment. The logic works. The
program will work if people exercise judgment, and that is what
will be required.

Senator Kenny: It is really scary when you say that we have a
good law and it will be fine as long as people exercise judgment. If
there is one thing we know for sure —

Senator Spivak: It is that they will not.

Senator Kenny: I do not even have to finish my sentence. We
are such a terrific tag team.

Starting out with that assumption makes me profoundly
uncomfortable.

Mr. Near: It is not an assumption made with particular respect
to this law.

Senator Kenny: I understand that, but just because it happens
generally does not mean it is a good thing, does it?

Mr. Near: That is the way the system is designed. A senator
asked a previous witness whether he knew of a particular instance
in which a strict liability offence process had been abused.

In my experience of almost 14 years at Environment Canada, I
do not recall anything that would approach leaning too much on
the pro-prosecution side. In fact, generally when we go before
committees, we are criticized from the other side of the fence.

Senator Kenny: It is nice to have balance.

Senator Eyton: When I read the proposed legislation, I am
troubled by the way it is framed. If I kill a person, I am presumed
innocent and there is a burden of proof. However, if 1 kill a
certain rodent, I am presumed guilty and I am forced to approach
my defence the other way. On the other hand, you have assured us
that much legislation, dealing with similar subjects, is loaded this
way, and that if we were to strike a blow in this particular bill, it
would be an exception to much legislation that deals with this
kind of offence. Is that correct? If so, and if we were to try to
change the onus of proof — the presumption — it would be a
massive task that would include not only this bill but also 300 or
400 other bills.

Mr. Near: With respect to your first question, I cannot think of
any environmental legislation in Canada that is not strict liability.
In the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, CEPA, there is
one offence that requires a mental element. Generally speaking,

Le sénateur Kenny: Je suis votre raisonnement qui tient dans le
contexte juridique ainsi que dans le contexte gouvernemental. Je
ne suis pas str qu’il tienne dans la réalité, compte tenu de la fagon
dont les gens fonctionnent. Je prévois que beaucoup vont étre
désagréablement surpris par ce processus a un moment ou a un
autre. Cela ne diminue en rien votre logique, mais je ne suis pas
sir qu’elle soit trés amicale.

M. Near: C’est un commentaire juste. La logique fonctionne.
Le programme fonctionnera si les gens exercent leur jugement, et
c’est ce qu’il faut.

Le sénateur Kenny: C’est vraiment inquiétant lorsque vous dites
que nous avons une bonne loi et que tout ira bien en autant que
les gens fassent preuve de jugement. S’il y a une chose de
certaine...

Le sénateur Spivak: C’est qu’ils ne le feront pas.

Le sénateur Kenny: Je n’ai méme pas besoin de terminer ma
phrase. Nous formons une équipe incroyable.

Commencer par cette supposition me rend profondément mal a
laise.

M. Near: Ce n’est pas une hypothése faite en rapport avec cette
loi.

Le sénateur Kenny: Je comprends, mais tout simplement parce
que cela se produit de fagon générale ne signifie pas que ce soit
une bonne chose, n’est-ce pas?

M. Near: C’est ainsi que le systéme est congu. Un sénateur a
demandé a un témoin précédent s’il était au courant d’un cas pour
lequel on aurait abusé du processus d’infraction de responsabilité
stricte.

Dans mes quelque 14 années d’expérience a Environnement
Canada, je ne me rappelle de rien qui s’en approcherait du c6té de
la poursuite. En fait, de fagon générale, lorsque nous
comparaissons devant des comités, c’est I'autre c6té qui nous
critique.

Le sénateur Kenny: C’est bien d’avoir un équilibre.

Le sénateur Eyton: Lorsque je lis la mesure législative proposée,
je m’inquiéte de son contexte. Si je tue une personne, je suis
présumé innocent et il y a le fardeau de la preuve. Cependant, si je
tue un certain rongeur, je suis présumé coupable et j’ai
I’obligation de préparer ma défense de 1’autre fagon. Par contre,
vous nous avez donné lassurance que la plupart des mesures
législatives qui traitent de sujets semblables sont congues de cette
fagon, et que si nous modifions cette mesure législative-ci, cela
constituerait une exception a la plupart des mesures législatives
qui portent sur ce genre d’infraction. Est-ce exact? Le cas échéant,
si nous essayons de modifier le fardeau de la preuve — la
présomption —, ce serait une tache colossale qui n’inclurait pas
seulement ce projet de loi-ci, mais aussi 300 ou 400 autres projets
de loi.

M. Near: Pour ce qui est de votre premiére question, il ne me
vient a I'esprit aucune mesure législative portant sur I'’environnement
au Canada qui ne soit pas de responsabilité stricte. Dans la Loi
canadienne sur la protection de I'environnement, la LCPE, une
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all environmental legislation is strict liability in Canada. That is
not to say that it is necessarily a good thing, but that is the way
it is.

If you wanted to change all of that legislation, from a purely
mechanical point of view you would not have to do it collectively,
but rather you could do them one at a time. However, that is a
question of process, and it would be a dramatic shift. The minister
made an important policy statement, when he appeared before
you, by asking why would we make it more difficult to prosecute
charges with respect to endangered species than with respect to
species that are abundant, such as in the Migratory Birds
Convention Act — and the Fisheries Act, for that matter. It is
not, strictly speaking, a question of law. You could make the
offences mens rea or strict liability. It is not just a strict question
of the law in making your choice.

Senator Eyton: [ am troubled by it, but I am not sure that there
is much we can do about it, given the practice and precedents.

Senator Spivak: Following on that, what is the case law on it?
In other words, is there a huge body of case law in which people
have been prosecuted for strict liability offences under all of these
acts: the Fisheries Act, the Canadian Environmental Protection
Act — which is hardly ever used — and the Transportation of
Dangerous Goods Act, maybe?

Senator Kenny: To be fair, we can take comfort in the fact that
there will be little funding for inspectors and for people to actually
enforce this proposed legislation.

Senator Spivak: Exactly. I quite agree with that point of view,
but I am asking about past history in respect of other acts.

Mr. Near: 1 can speak most intelligently about CEPA, the
Migratory Birds Convention Act and the Wild Animal and Plant
Protection and Regulation of International and Interprovincial
Trade Act, WAPPRIITA, the legislation that I have been actively
instructing counsel on. For the most part, under the Migratory
Birds Convention Act, most of the offences are things like taking
too many birds or hunting out of season. The vast majority of
offenders offer guilty pleas. In my recollection, I have seen no
major litigated case where a hunter has argued due diligence.

In respect of CEPA, I could not say for sure. I do know that we
do not have a large number of prosecutions. I would say that we
are quite selective about the ones that proceed. Generally, they

infraction exige un élément moral. De fagon générale, toutes les
mesures législatives portant sur I’environnement sont de
responsabilité stricte. Cela ne veut pas nécessairement dire que
c’est une bonne chose, mais c’est ainsi fait.

Si vous vouliez modifier toute la législation, d’un point de vue
purement mécanique, vous n’auriez pas a le faire collectivement,
vous pourriez plutdt le faire une mesure législative a la fois.
Cependant, c’est une question de processus, et ce serait un
changement dramatique. Le ministre a fait une déclaration de
principes importante lorsqu’il a comparu devant vous en
demandant pourquoi nous rendrions plus difficiles les
poursuites relatives aux accusations portant sur les espéces en
voie de disparition que sur celles relatives aux espéces abondantes,
notamment la Loi sur la Convention concernant les oiseaux
migrateurs — et la Loi sur les péches, tant qu’a y étre. A
proprement parler, ce n’est pas une question de droit. Vous
pourriez rendre les infractions mens rea ou de responsabilité
stricte. Ce n’est pas seulement une question stricte de droit lorsque
vous faites votre choix.

Le sénateur Eyton: Cela me dérange, mais je ne pense pas qu’il
y ait grand-chose que nous puissions y faire compte tenu de la
pratique et des précédents.

Le sénateur Spivak: Dans la méme veine, quelle est la
jurisprudence a cet égard? En d’autres mots, y a-t-il une
jurisprudence considérable ou les gens ont été poursuivis pour
des infractions de responsabilité stricte en vertu de toutes ces lois:
la Loi sur les péches, la Loi canadienne sur la protection de
I’environnement — a laquelle on n’a pratiquement jamais
recours — et la Loi sur le transport des marchandises
dangereuses, peut-étre?

Le sénateur Kenny: En toute équité, nous pouvons nous
consoler du fait qu’il y aura peu de fonds destinés aux inspecteurs
et aux gens pour leur permettre de mettre en application cette
mesure législative proposée.

Le sénateur Spivak: Précisément. Je souscris tout a fait a ce
point de vue, mais je me pose des questions au sujet des
antécédents en ce qui concerne d’autres lois.

M. Near: Je peux parler en toute connaissance de cause au sujet
de la LCPE, de la Loi sur la Convention concernant les oiseaux
migrateurs et de la Loi sur la protection d’espéces animales ou
végétales sauvages et la réglementation de leur commerce
international et interprovincial, la loi au sujet de laquelle j’ai
donné de fagon active des conseils. Pour I’essentiel, en vertu de la
Loi sur la Convention concernant les oiseaux migrateurs, la
plupart des infractions concernent la prise trop nombreuse
d’oiseaux ou la chasse en dehors de la saison. La grande
majorité des contrevenants présentent des plaidoyers de
culpabilité. Que je me souvienne, je n’ai jamais vu de procés
importants ou un chasseur a plaidé la diligence raisonnable.

En ce qui concerne la LCPE, je ne peux I’affirmer en toute

certitude. Je ne sais pas si le nombre de poursuites est important.
Je dirais que nous sommes passablement sélectifs quant aux
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are incidents of major pollution involving a “large” defendant on
the other side.

The Chairman: This is “angels on pins,” again, but we have
heard from people who are opposed to the nature of the penalties
in this bill. Sometimes those hunters who plead guilty do so
because they feel that they are looking at a train coming down the
track at 90 miles per hour and that it will cost $25,000, or
whatever it is, to defend against this charge. Hence, they will just
give up, plead guilty and pay the fine. Is there any resonance to
that argument?

Mr. Near: In my personal experience, no, most of them plead
guilty because they are quite happy to avoid the court process and
they have too many birds and they want to go home. That is the
usual case with respect to migratory birds and hunting. It is not
just migratory birds, but you will also find, at the provincial
levels, situations where hunters have been caught doing something
and they simply wish to expedite the process, if you like. That is
why I said that I have not seen a due diligence defence in a
migratory birds case in the 13 years that I have been involved.

The Chairman: Are there further questions?

I wish to thank Mr. Near for appearing before the committee
to answer our questions.

Senator Buchanan: One week ago today, I spent 1.5 hours with
60 to 70 students at Dalhousie University in the environmental
and resource department. Those 1.5 hours were spent on this bill.
One of the associate professors is a member of COSEWIC. Quite
frankly, I learned a great deal about this bill from those students.
I was surprised at the level of knowledge they possessed.

I wanted to pass this information on to members of the
committee. Although the bill may be a bit flawed, all of the
students were anxious to see it pass in the Senate.

The Chairman: “Flawed” seems to be the buzzword today.

The committee continued in camera.

OTTAWA, Thursday, November 21, 2002

The Standing Senate Committee on Energy, the Environment
and Natural Resources, to which was referred Bill C-5, respecting
the protection of wildlife species at risk in Canada, met this day at
8:35 a.m. to give consideration to the bill.

Senator Tommy Banks (Chairman) in the Chair.

causes qui sont instruites. De fagon générale, ce sont des incidents
comportant une importante pollution et mettant en cause une
partie défenderesse «de taille» de I’autre coté.

Le président: Encore une fois, c’est la «quadrature du cercley,
mais des gens nous ont dit qu’ils s’opposent a la nature des
sanctions prévues dans ce projet de loi. Il arrive que les chasseurs
qui plaident coupables le font parce qu’ils estiment qu’ils sont sur
la voie ferrée face a un train qui fonce sur eux a 90 milles a I’heure
et qu’il leur en coflitera quelque chose comme 25 000 pour se
défendre contre cette accusation. Donc, ils abandonnent tout
simplement et plaident coupables et paient 1’amende. Cet
argument vous inspire-t-il quelque chose?

M. Near: D’aprés mon expérience personnelle, non, la plupart
d’eux plaident coupables parce qu’ils sont bien heureux d’éviter
d’étre cités devant les tribunaux et parce qu’ils ont trop d’oiseaux
et qu’ils veulent rentrer chez eux. C’est ce qui se passe
habituellement dans le cas de la chasse et des oiseaux
migrateurs. Ce n’est pas seulement au sujet des oiseaux
migrateurs. Vous verrez également, au niveau provincial, des
situations ou les chasseurs ont été pris en train de faire quelque
chose et ils ont tout simplement voulu accélérer le processus, si
vous voulez. Voila pourquoi je dis que je n’ai pas eu connaissance
d’infractions de diligence raisonnable en ce qui concerne les
oiseaux migrateurs dans mes 13 années en poste.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions?

Je tiens a remercier M. Near d’avoir comparu devant le comité
pour répondre a nos questions.

Le sénateur Buchanan: 11 y a précisément une semaine, j’ai passé
une heure et demie avec quelque 70 étudiants de I’Université
Dalhousie, du département des ressources et de ’environnement.
Toute I'heure et demie a été consacrée a ce projet de loi. Un des
professeurs agrégés est membre du COSEPAC. En toute
honnéteté, ces étudiants m’en ont appris beaucoup au sujet de
ce projet de loi. J’ai été surpris de toutes les connaissances qu’ils
possédaient.

Je tenais a faire part de cette information aux membres du
comité. Bien que le projet de loi puisse comporter quelques
lacunes, la totalité des étudiants avaient hate que le Sénat
I’adopte.

Le président: Le mot «lacune» semble étre le mot a la mode de
nos jours.

Le comité poursuit ses travaux a huis clos.

OTTAWA, le jeudi 21 novembre 2002

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de ’énergie, de I’environnement
et des ressources naturelles se réunit aujourd’hui a 8 h 35 pour
étudier le projet de loi C-5, Loi concernant la protection des espéces
sauvages en péril au Canada.

Le sénateur Tommy Banks (président) occupe le fauteuil.
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The Chairman: Good morning, honourable senators. We will
be hearing from witnesses on Bill C-5 in about 40 minutes. First,
however, we will hear from Senator Watt about a matter that has
been concerning all of us for some time now. The honourable
senator has given notice of his intention to address this matter.

For the benefit of those who are not here with us, I wish to
introduce members of the committee. On my far right is Senator
Spivak, a Conservative senator from Manitoba who is the Deputy
Chair of the committee. Next to her is Senator Cochrane. Next to
her are Senator Milne, and Senator Kenny, who is a member of
the steering committee of this standing committee. On my left are
Senators Christensen, Watt, Finnerty and Baker.

In the first part of our meeting we will hear from Senator Watt
on various issues, including some concerning this bill. Senator
Watt wishes to make us aware of some continuing concerns that
he has to which I, and I hope other members, will respond when
he has told us his intentions.

Senator Watt: Some time ago, I furnished members of this
committee with some information in regard to some of the
correspondence we had with the Minister of Justice. To date, he
has still not responded to the latest letter sent by five Aboriginal
senators. I spoke with him privately yesterday after the meeting of
the Quebec caucus. I came away from that encounter with the
feeling that he had neither read the letter nor the interpretation of
the proposed stand-alone legislation that we attempted to
introduce. Other than seeing the validity of coming up with
something in the Interpretation Act in regard to the non-
derogation clause, he mentioned that he has not made up his
mind as to what he will do. However, he strongly believes that the
non-derogation clause, which is found in section 25 of the
Constitution Act, 1982, is adequate. Therefore, there is no need to
make further mention of it in the bill, since such provisions are in
the Constitution.

I agree with him on that point. However, the fact is that the
Department of Justice has invented a new non-derogation clause
that is different from that found in the Constitution.

Eliminating the three words “protection provided for,” which
words were added in this regard, would surely clarify the meaning
of the non-derogation clause. I believe I have provided all
honourable senators of the committee with information on that
point.

If an adequate non-derogation clause reflects what is in the
Constitution, then we do not have to play around with what is
already entrenched in it. Over the course of time, one never knows
how interpretations can be whittled away, leaving us with
different meanings, especially when bureaucrats and
administrators put their own spin on it from time to time,
making interpretations that are good only for them. This is one of
the issues about which we are worried and which I have been
highlighting for some time.

[Traduction]

Le président: Bonjour, honorables sénateurs. Nous allons
entendre les témoignages au sujet du projet de loi C-5 dans une
quarantaine de minutes. Tout d’abord, cependant, le sénateur
Watt va nous parler d’un sujet qui nous préoccupe tous depuis
quelque temps déja. Le sénateur nous a avisés de son intention
d’en discuter.

Pour ceux qui ne sont pas ici avec nous, j’aimerais présenter les
membres du comité. A mon extréme droite, j’ai le sénateur
Spivak, un sénateur conservateur du Manitoba qui est la vice-
présidente du comité. A coté d’elle sont les sénateurs Cochrane, le
sénateur Milne et le sénateur Kenny, qui est membre du comité
directeur de ce comité permanent. J’ai a ma gauche les sénateurs
Christensen, Watt, Finnerty et Baker.

Pendant la premiére partie de notre réunion, le sénateur Watt
nous parlera de plusieurs questions, dont certaines qui concernent
ce projet de loi. Le sénateur Watt souhaite nous sensibiliser a des
préoccupations constantes au sujet desquelles je compte faire
quelque chose et j'espére, les autres membres du comité aussi,
lorsqu’il nous aura exposé ses intentions.

Le sénateur Watt: I1 y a quelque temps, j’ai remis aux membres
du comité de I'information au sujet de lettres que nous avons
envoyées au ministre de la Justice. Jusqu’a maintenant, il n’a
toujours pas répondu a la derniére lettre que lui ont envoyée cinq
sénateurs autochtones. J’ai eu un bref entretien en privé avec lui
hier, aprés la réunion du caucus du Québec. Je suis sorti de cet
entretien avec l'impression qu’il n’avait pas lu la lettre, ni
I'interprétation des mesures législatives autonomes que nous
avons tenté de présenter. A part le fait qu’il soit d’accord avec la
nécessité de prévoir quelque chose dans la Loi sur 'interprétation
relativement a la disposition de non-dérogation, il a dit qu’il
n’avait pas encore pris de décision sur ce qu’il fera. Cependant, il
est fermement convaincu que la disposition de non-dérogation,
qui est a l'article 25 de la Loi constitutionnelle de 1982, est
adéquate. Par conséquent, il n’est pas nécessaire de revenir la-
dessus encore dans le projet de loi, puisque cette disposition figure
déja dans la Loi constitutionnelle.

Je suis d’accord avec lui la-dessus, mais il n’en demeure pas
moins que le ministére de la Justice a inventé une nouvelle
disposition de non-dérogation qui est différente de celle que
renferme la Loi constitutionnelle.

L’¢limination des mots «a la protection découlant», qui ont été
ajoutés a ce propos, clarifierait certainement le sens de la
disposition de non-dérogation. Je crois avoir fourni aux
honorables sénateurs du comité I'information a ce sujet.

Si une disposition adéquate de non-dérogation reprend ce qui
se trouve déja dans la Loi constitutionnelle, alors il est inutile de
jouer avec quelque chose qui y est déja enchassé. Au fil du temps,
on ne sait jamais quelle interprétation peut en étre extirpée, ce qui
fait qu'on se retrouve avec des sens différents, particuliérement
lorsque les bureaucrates et les administrateurs y mettent leur gain
de sel de temps a autre, pour y trouver des interprétations qui ne
servent que leurs intéréts. C’est I'un des problémes qui me
préoccupe et que je souligne depuis déja un bon moment.
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Legislation that has been passed over the course of the last four
or five years with the wording of this new non-derogation clause
must be revisited. I must always keep in mind that we are not
dealing with just one bill, but that there are others.

If a piece of stand-alone legislation or some type of
interpretation clause were allowed, something that could act as
a catch-all, then that would do the trick and take care of not only
this bill, but all the others that fall into the same category. If I
were to be asked, that would be my preference.

To date, we have not had a satisfactory response from the
minister, other than the fact of his saying that he values what is in
the Interpretation Act and that he does not want to create another
interpretation for every piece of legislation. He would like that to
be reflected in the Constitution. I agree with that. However, he is
still coming up short. We do not know where we are yet.

Since there is an absence of such information from the
minister, sincerity is not prevailing at the moment. As I said in
caucus, I am prepared to move an amendment to the bill before
this committee.

Clause 3 of the bill, which deals with Aboriginal and treaty
rights, would have to be amended. I am asking for a better
interpretation of that clause and for removal of the words
“protection provided for.”

The second amendment I would propose pertains to additions
to be inserted into clause 64(1). That clause deals with
compensation. Clause 64(1) states:

The Minister may, in accordance with the regulations,
provide fair and reasonable compensation to any person for
losses suffered as a result of any extraordinary impact of the
application of

(a) section 58, 60 or 61; or

(b) an emergency order in respect of habitat identified
in the emergency order that is necessary for the survival
or recovery of a wildlife species.

First, an amendment to this clause is necessary in the absence
of an adequate non-derogation clause.

Second, the present wording of clause 64 only provides
protection for landowners. Inuit and other Aboriginals will be
excluded. When questioning the witnesses, we discovered that the
compensation articles do not apply, especially in regard to loss of
livelihood.

Third, the compensation or development impact benefit is
already provided for in the land claims agreement, that is, the
1992 Nunavut claims agreement. As I mentioned earlier, our
agreement is quite specific and detailed. For that reason, whether
I like it or not, I have no choice but to highlight the fact that there
will be a potential impact on the agreement arrived at between the
two parties, that is, the Aboriginal people and the Crown.

Les mesures législatives qui ont été adoptées depuis quatre ou
cinq ans, et le libellé de cette disposition de non-dérogation
doivent étre revues. Je dois toujours me rappeler que nous ne
traitons pas que d’un seul projet de loi, mais qu’il y en a d’autres.

Si un texte législatif autonome ou une disposition
d’interprétation quelconque était permis, quelque chose qui
pourrait tout englober, ce serait parfait et ¢a réglerait le
probléme non seulement de ce projet de loi, mais de tous les
autres de la méme catégorie. Si on me demandait mon avis, c’est
ce que je préférerais.

Jusqu’a maintenant, nous n’avons pas recu de réponse
satisfaisante du ministre, a part le fait qu’il affirme tenir au
contenu de la Loi sur I'interprétation et qu’il ne veut pas créer
d’autres interprétations pour chaque nouvelle mesure législative.
Il aimerait que cela se refléte dans la Loi constitutionnelle. Je suis
d’accord avec cela. Toutefois, cela ne suffit pas. Nous ne savons
toujours pas ou nous en sommes.

En l'absence de ce genre d’information de la part du ministre,
la sincérité n’est pas trés apparente actuellement. Comme je I’ai
dit au caucus, je suis prét a proposer un amendement au projet de
loi a ce comité.

L’article 3 du projet de loi, qui porte sur les droits ancestraux
et issus de traités, devrait étre modifié. Je voudrais une meilleure
interprétation de cet article et I’élimination des mots «a la
protection découlanty.

Le deuxieme amendement que je propose se rapporte aux
ajouts a faire au paragraphe 64(1). Cet article traite
d’indemnisation. Il dispose:

Le ministre peut, en conformité avec les réglements,
verser a toute personne une indemnité juste et raisonnable
pour les pertes subies en raison des conséquences
extraordinaires que pourrait avoir I'application:

a) des articles 58, 60 ou 61;

b) un décret d’urgence en ce qui concerne I’habitat qui
y est désigné comme nécessaire a la survie et au
rétablissement d’une espéce sauvage.

Premiérement, il est nécessaire de modifier cette clause en
I’absence d’une disposition adéquate de non-dérogation.

Deuxiemement, le libellé actuel de I’article 64 ne protége que
les propriétaires fonciers. Les Inuits et autres Autochtones seront
exclus. En interrogeant les témoins, nous avons découvert que les
dispositions d’indemnisation ne s’appliquaient pas a eux,
particuliérement en ce qui se rapporte a la perte du moyen de
subsistance.

Troisiémement, ’indemnité, ou la prestation pour
répercussions de ’exploitation est déja prévue dans les accords
sur les revendications territoriales, c’est-a-dire ’entente relative
aux revendications du Nunavut de 1992. Comme je I’ai dit plus
tot, notre entente est trés spécifique et détaillée. C’est pourquoi,
que cela me plaise ou non, je n’ai d’autre choix que de souligner le
fait qu’il pourrait y avoir des répercussions sur I’entente conclue
entre les deux parties, c’est-a-dire entre le peuple autochtone et
I'Etat.
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The third one is dealing with the exemption, to insert
clause 83(3), entitled “exemption land claim agreement.”
Subclauses 32(1) and (2), clause 33, subclauses 36(1), 58(1),
60(1), 61(1) and regulation made under clauses 53, 59 and 71 do
not apply to a person who is engaged in harvesting or other
activities in accordance with the conservation measures or any
other measures for wildlife species under a land claim agreement.

Let me run through the three sets of comments I have on that.

This amendment is necessary, again, in the absence of any
adequate non-derogation clause.

Second, the very fact that the draft required an exemption
clause for a land claim agreement revealed the inadequacy of the
non-derogation clause provision at clause 3, as mentioned earlier.

The third comment is that the land claim agreement for
Nunavut and Nunavik contains many complex arrangements for
wildlife management, including a balanced perspective on
conservation and harvesting and the related compensation issue.
The conservation is one measure envisaged, among others, for the
purpose of wildlife management.

Those are the three main areas that I felt would have to be
taken into consideration, and I would like to move those motions
to make an attempt to amend the bill. I know for a fact that the
orders we have from the House of Commons are not to amend it
and to send it back.

The Chairman: I would interrupt you there. The House of
Commons does not order us to do anything.

Senator Watt: That is what I like to hear.

The Chairman: It is out of order to make actual motions of
amendment at this point. We cannot do that until we are in
clause-by-clause consideration of the bill. However, the point that
we wanted to make this morning was that Senator Watt has been
careful to bring his concerns to members of his caucus, and I
wanted all members of this committee to have an opportunity to
hear Senator Watt and be aware of what he has in mind.

We have been joined by Senator Sibbeston, who is a member of
the Liberal caucus from the Northwest Territories. He also has a
long-standing interest in this issue.

Senator Watt, I want to make sure you understand that the
appropriate time to make amendments is during clause-by-clause
consideration of the bill. I anticipate that we will do that on
November 28, 2002, if everything goes as planned.

I wanted to make sure we were all aware of your concerns and
your proposed actions.

Le troisieme élément vise 1’exemption, pour insérer le
paragraphe 83(3), intitulé «Exception: accords sur des
revendications territoriales». Les paragraphes 32(1) et (2),
larticle 33, les paragraphes 36(1), 58(1), 60(1) et 61(1), ainsi que
les réglements pris en vertu des articles 53, 59 ou 71 ne
s’appliquent pas a une personne qui participe a ’exploitation ou
a d’autres activités conformément aux mesures de conservation ou
a toute autre mesure visant les espéces sauvages dans le cadre d’un
accord sur des revendications territoriales.

Permettez-moi de vous exposer trois observations que j’ai a
faire la-dessus.

Cet amendement est nécessaire, je le répéte, en I’'absence de
toute autre disposition adéquate de non-dérogation.

Deuxiémement, le fait méme que le projet de loi doive contenir
une disposition d’exemption relativement a un accord sur des
revendications territoriales révéle I’absurdité de la disposition de
non-dérogation de I’article 3, comme nous I’avons dit plus tot.

La troisieme observation, c’est que l’accord sur les
revendications territoriales pour le Nunavut et le Nunavik
contiennent de nombreux arrangements complexes relativement
a la gestion des espéces sauvages, notamment a une perspective
équilibrée sur la conservation et I’exploitation, et la question
connexe de l'indemnisation. La conservation est une mesure
envisagée, entre autres, pour la gestion des espéces sauvages.

Ce sont les trois principaux domaines qui, a mon avis,
devraient étre pris en considération, et j’aimerais proposer ces
motions pour tenter de modifier le projet de loi. Je sais
pertinemment que les ordres que nous avons regus de la
Chambre des communes sont de ne rien modifier et de leur
renvoyer.

Le président: Je vais vous interrompre ici. La Chambre des
communes ne nous a certainement rien ordonné de tel.

Le sénateur Watt: C’est ce que j’aime entendre.

Le président: Il est contraire au Réglement de présenter des
motions d’amendements pour l'instant. Nous ne pouvons le faire
avant d’avoir entamé 1’étude article par article du projet de loi.
Cependant, ce que nous voulons faire ce matin, c’est démontrer
que le sénateur Watt a pris la peine de faire connaitre ses
préoccupations aux membres de son caucus, et je voulais donner a
tous les membres de ce comité I’occasion d’entendre le sénateur
Watt et d’étre avisé de son point de vue.

Le sénateur Sibbeston s’est joint a nous. C’est un membre du
caucus libéral des Territoires du Nord-Ouest. Il s’intéresse, lui
aussi, depuis longtemps a cette question.

Sénateur Watt, je voudrais m’assurer que vous compreniez que
le moment opportun pour faire des amendements est celui de
I’étude article par article du projet de loi. Je prévois que nous y
procéderons le 28 novembre 2002, si tout va comme prévu.

Je voulais m’assurer que nous sachions tous vos
préoccupations et ce que vous vous proposez de faire.
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Senator Spivak: I seek clarification, please, for the 83(3). There
is an exception for a person who is engaging in harvesting
activities in accordance with conservation measures. What does
this mean? I am not familiar with 83(3).

The Chairman: It means it is not there. What you are referring
to is part of the proposed amendment, which is set out in bold
print.

Senator Spivak: What is the original?

The Chairman: The original simply omits those words.
Senator Spivak: It does not make any sense, though.
The Chairman: Actually, it does.

Senator Spivak: Could you just read the original?

The Chairman: Clause 83(3) now reads:

Subsections 32(1) and (2), section 33, subsections 36(1),
58(1), 60(1) and 61(1) and regulations made under section 53,
59 or 71 do not apply to a person who is engaging in activities
in accordance with conservation measures for wildlife species
under a land claims agreement.

Senator Watt, if you were going to move this amendment at
clause by clause, in order to keep in place the provisions already
in the clause and add the things you want to add, you should say,
“do not apply to a person who is engaging in harvesting or other
activities.” We do not want to obviate the exception that is
already there. I think that is your intention, to add a class of
exempted activities.

Senator Watt: Could you repeat that again?

The Chairman: Yes. Clause 83 (1) of the bill before us says, “do
not apply to a person who is engaging in (a) activities related to
public safety, health,” et cetera. I think that it is not your
intention to eliminate those, but to add to that someone who is
engaged in harvesting activities. The language of the amendment
would have to be something like “do not apply to a person who is
engaging in harvesting and other activities related to public safety,
health,” et cetera. You want to add an exemption, not take away
an exemption.

Senator Spivak: I was confused, because in the first
amendment, the words “protection provided for” are to be
eliminated.

The Chairman: The highlighted provisions are eliminated if
there are brackets around them, and added if they are not.

Senator Kenny: I would like to pause for a minute and reflect
on whether we are moving in the most effective way. There is no
question you are moving in the customary way procedurally, but
are we proceeding in the most effective way to achieve a result?
We can wait until we get to the clause-by-clause process, have the
amendments introduced and then go through a prolonged
discussion of them. Or, we could have the amendments drafted,
send for the deputy minister of Justice and the deputy minister of
Environment, and have them join us here to discuss the

Le sénateur Spivak: J’aimerais un éclaircissement, s’il vous
plait, au sujet du paragraphe 83(3). Une exception est prévue
pour quelqu’un qui exerce des activités d’exploitation conformes
aux régimes de conservation. Qu’est-ce que cela signifie? Je ne
comprends pas.

Le président: Cela veut dire que ce n’est pas encore la. Il s’agit
d'une partie de I'amendement proposé, qui est indiquée en
caractére gras.

Le sénateur Spivak: Qu’y avait-il dans ’original?

Le président: L’original omet tout simplement ces mots.
Le sénateur Spivak: Mais cela n’a pas de sens.

Le président: En fait, oui.

Le sénateur Spivak: Pourriez-vous seulement lire 1’original?
Le président: Le paragraphe 83(3) dispose maintenant:

Les paragraphes 32(1) et (2), I’article 33, les paragraphes 36(1),
58(1), 60(1) et 61(1) et les réglements pris en vertu des articles 53,
59 ou 71 ne s’appliquent pas a une personne exer¢ant des activités
conformes aux régimes de conservation des especes sauvages dans
le cadre d’un accord sur des revendications territoriales.

Sénateur Watt, si vous comptiez proposer cet amendement lors
de I’étude article par article, pour préserver les dispositions que
contient déja larticle et ajouter ce que vous voulez y voir, vous
devriez dire «ne s’applique pas a une personne exercant ses
activités d’exploitation». Nous ne voudrions pas contourner
I’exception qui est déja prévue. Je crois que c’est ce que vous
voulez, ajouter une catégorie d’activités exemptées.

Le sénateur Watt: Pourriez-vous répéter cela?

Le président: Oui. Le paragraphe 83(1) du projet de loi que
nous avons devant nous dit «ne s’appliquent pas a une personne
exercant (a) en matiére soit de sécurité ou de santé publique», etc.
Je crois que vous n’avez pas l'intention d’éliminer cela, mais
plutoét d’y ajouter une personne qui participe a des activités
d’exploitation. Le libellé de 'amendement devrait étre quelque
chose comme «ne s’appliquent pas a une personne exergant des
activités d’exploitation et a toutes autres activités en matiére soit
de sécurité ou de santé publiques», etc. Vous voulez ajouter une
exemption, et non pas en supprimer.

Le sénateur Spivak: J’étais confuse, parce que dans le premier
amendement, les mots «la protection découlant» devaient étre
éliminés.

Le président: Ce qui est en caractére gras est éliminé quand c’est
entouré de crochets, et ajouté s’il n’y en a pas.

Le sénateur Kenny: J’aimerais faire une petite pause de
réflexion, pour nous demander si nous agissons avec la plus
grande efficacité. Il ne fait aucun doute que vous procédez
conformément a la procédure, mais est-ce le moyen le plus efficace
pour obtenir un résultat? Nous pouvons attendre au moment de
I’étude article par article, faire intégrer les amendements, puis
avoir un long débat a leur sujet. Ou encore, nous pourrions faire
rédiger les amendements, convoquer le sous-ministre de la Justice
et le sous-ministre de ’Environnement, et discuter avec eux des
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amendments that we are considering before we get to clause by
clause. I have the sense that that might cause the system to
refocus.

I have the impression from Senator Watt that there is a failure
to communicate here somewhere. If we can get the system to focus
on the problem and understand that this bill could stay in this
committee for a very long time, perhaps the minister would then
be reading his correspondence and we might receive an answer
from the department, which is what I think our colleague seeks.

The Chairman: That is a good thought. This airing was to not
preclude or forestall anything, but simply to determine the next
step. I want everyone to understand that Senator Watt is
considering introducing amendments. The next question is,
what do we do about it? Senator Kenny has made a sensible
suggestion.

Senator Watt: If we want to go through that exercise, it would
be a unique one. We have to make other information available, if
that is the case. We have also put forward a proposal to rectify the
whole question of non-derogation by way of coming up with a
stand-alone statute.

The Chairman: We would do that in the context of this bill,
which is the only reference we have.

Senator Watt: We would be asking deputy ministers to come
here to focus on what they should have focused on before.
Through a lack of understanding of the differences out there, the
matter was not well addressed. I should think that it was
accidental, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: You concur with Senator Kenny’s suggestion?

Senator Watt: Yes.
Senator Eyton: As do 1.

Senator Baker: As I understand, Senator Watt is saying that
the government should make clear, or for us to be given a clear
reason, why the wording of section 25 of the Charter has been
changed in this legislation. Certainly the Charter takes precedence
over legislation, we all know that. However, why has this wording
changed? Who would object to repeating the words of a section of
the Charter in a bill instead of the changed wording that is
presently here?

Senator Watt is alerting the committee that he would like to see
harvesting activities included under the compensation provisions,
for greater clarity, because we had testimony from lawyers from
the Department of Justice saying that they were not covered. We
had lawyers representing groups who appeared before the House
of Commons committee who claimed that it was covered. For
greater clarity, Senator Watt is simply saying that we should get
this straight once and for all.

amendements que nous envisageons avant de procéder a ’étude
article par article. J’ai I'impression que cela pourrait aider a
ramener ’attention de ’administration ou c’est pertinent.

L’impression que me donne le sénateur Watt, c’est qu’il y a un
manque de communication, ici, quelque part. Si nous pouvons
faire en sorte de porter I'attention de I’administration sur le
probléme et lui faire comprendre que ce projet de loi pourrait étre
a I’étude a ce comité pendant trés longtemps, peut-étre le ministre
lirait-il sa correspondance et nous pourrions recevoir une réponse
du ministére, ce qui, me semble-t-il, est ce que souhaite mon
collegue.

Le président: C’est une bonne idée. Cette discussion ne visait
absolument pas empécher ni bloquer quoi que ce soit, mais
seulement a déterminer la prochaine étape. Je voudrais que tout le
monde comprenne que le sénateur Watt prévoit de proposer des
amendements. La question suivante est, qu’en faisons-nous? Le
sénateur Kenny a fait une suggestion sensée.

Le sénateur Watt: Si nous voulons le faire, ce sera une seule
fois. Il nous faut rendre d’autres informations disponibles, si c’est
le cas. Nous avons aussi fait une proposition pour rectifier tout le
probléeme de la non-dérogation au moyen d’une loi autonome.

Le président: Nous le ferions dans le contexte de ce projet de
loi, qui est la seule référence que nous ayons.

Le sénateur Watt: Nous demanderions aux sous-ministres de
venir ici pour concentrer leur attention la ou ils auraient di la
concentrer avant. Comme les différences qu’il y a ont mal été
comprises, I’enjeu n’a pas eu I’attention qu’il aurait dd avoir. Je
veux croire que c’était accidentel, monsieur le président.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord avec la suggestion du sénateur
Kenny?

Le sénateur Watt: Oui.
Le sénateur Eyton: Moi aussi.

Le sénateur Baker: A ce que je comprends, le sénateur Watt a
dit que le gouvernement devrait établir bien clairement, ou nous
devrions donner une raison bien claire, pourquoi le libellé de
larticle 25 de la Charte a été modifié dans cette loi. Nous savons
tous que la Charte prime sur toute autre loi. Mais pourquoi le
libellé a-t-il été modifié? Est-ce que vous verriez une objection a
reprendre le libellé de I’article de la Charte dans un projet de loi
plutét que de modifier le libellé actuel?

Le sénateur Watt signale au comité que nous voudrions que les
activités d’exploitation soient prévues dans les dispositions
relatives a 'indemnisation, aux fins de plus grande clarté, parce
que nous avons regu des témoignages d’avocats du ministere de la
Justice qui disaient que ces activités n’étaient pas prévues. Nous
avons entendu des avocats qui représentaient des groupes, au
comité de la Chambre des communes, qui disaient qu’elles
I’étaient. Aux fins de précision, le sénateur Watt dit tout
simplement que nous devrions mettre les choses au clair une
fois pour toute.
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The minister in charge of this bill knows exactly what we are
concerned about. Presumably, as Senator Kenny has said, action
will be taken so that what is unclear in the bill can be made clear,
or perhaps further explained in amendments by the committee.

Senator Milne: A letter from this committee, not from Senator
Watt, to the minister saying that we —

The Chairman: Which minister?

Senator Milne: To the minister who is in charge of this bill and
wants to see it passed. It would certainly gain his attention. It
would tell him that certain amendments will be proposed.

The need to propose them would be obviated by a letter from
him saying that he intends to bring in omnibus legislation to clear
this up and all the other five or however many bills that Senator
Watt mentioned.

Senator Sibbeston: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the efforts
made and I think the plan to have government officials appear
before us to deal with this matter is a good one. I was thinking it
would also be helpful to have lawyers who have been assisting us.
The lawyer who represents the Inuit organization initially pointed
out to us that the wording could cause some serious problems. As
we try to express the concerns or the constitutional reasons why
we want the original wording back, I think it would be helpful to
have constitutional lawyers who are familiar with this area to
explain to us the issues in trying to return to the original non-
derogation clause that existed in government legislation from
1982 to 1996. I would suggest that if we are going to the extent of
inviting government and Department of Justice officials, who will
try to rationalize why the wording should remain as is, then we
should have the benefit of hearing from lawyers who can give
counter-arguments. I think it would provide for a fuller discussion
if we had constitutional lawyers who have aided us thus far in
dealing with this issue.

The Chairman: I understand the logic of what you say, senator.
I must tell you, though, that I am convinced that members here
have heard those lawyers and, to use the buzzword of the week,
are “seized” of the issue and understand it quite clearly, and
understand, furthermore, why it was changed and when it was
changed. We have had that explained to us by phalanxes of
lawyers from various departments. I think we understand it. |
think we would be the most effective questioners of ministers and/
or deputy ministers because I think we understand precisely what
you, Senator Watt and others have been saying. The mills of the
gods are grinding very slowly, and we would like them to grind
more quickly. I understand your point.

Senator Sibbeston: Mr. Chairman, when I first saw the
wording, the change from the original seemed very slight. It is
just words like “protection”, and there is another word that is
used in the application. On the face of it, they do not seem like big

Le ministre responsable de ce projet de loi sait exactement ce
qui nous préoccupe. On pourrait penser, comme I’a dit le sénateur
Kenny, que des mesures seront prises pour que ce qui n’est pas
clair dans le projet de loi le devienne, ou peut-étre que ce soit
mieux expliqué au moyen d’amendements que proposera le
comité.

Le sénateur Milne: Une lettre adressée au ministre par ce
comité, plutdt que par le sénateur Watt, pour dire que nous...

Le président: Quel ministre?

Le sénateur Milne: Le ministre responsable de ce projet de loi,
qui veut le voir adopter. Il est certain que cela retiendrait son
attention. Il serait averti que certains amendements seront
proposés.

Il pourrait devenir inutile d’en proposer s’il nous avise par
lettre qu’il compte proposer une loi d’ensemble pour mettre ce
projet de loi au clair, et aussi les cinq ou six autres dont le sénateur
Watt a signalé.

Le sénateur Sibbeston: Monsieur le président, j’apprécie les
efforts qui sont déployés et je crois que le projet de convoquer des
représentants officiels devant nous pour traiter de la question est
une bonne idée. Je pensais qu’il serait aussi utile d’inviter des
avocats qui nous ont aidés. L’avocat qui représente 1’organisation
inuite nous avait avertis dés le départ que le libellé pourrait causer
de sérieux problémes. Puisque nous voulons tenter d’exprimer les
préoccupations ou les motifs constitutionnels qui font que nous
tenons au libellé original, je crois qu’il serait utile de nous faire
assister d’avocats de droit constitutionnel qui connaissent bien le
domaine pour qu’ils nous expliquent les problémes qu’il y aurait a
essayer de revenir a la clause originale de non-dérogation que
renfermaient les lois du gouvernement entre 1982 et 1996. Je
suggére que si nous voulons aller jusqu’a inviter des représentants
du gouvernement et du ministére de la Justice, qui tenteront de
justifier pourquoi le libellé devrait rester tel quel, nous devrions au
moins avoir I’avantage de I’appui d’avocats qui peuvent présenter
des arguments contraires. Je crois que la discussion serait plus
exhaustive si nous avions des avocats de droit constitutionnel qui
nous ont aidés jusqu’ici a étudier la question.

Le président: Je comprends votre logique, monsieur le sénateur.
Je dois vous dire, cependant, que je suis convaincu que les
membres du comité, ici, ont eux aussi entendu ces avocats et, pour
utiliser I’expression a la mode de la semaine, ont été «saisis» de la
question et la comprennent trés bien, et aussi qu’ils comprennent
pourquoi le libellé a été changé, et quand. Nous nous le sommes
fait expliquer par une pléthore d’avocats de divers ministéres. Je
crois que nous avons bien compris. Il me semble que nous serions
plus efficaces en interrogeant nous-mémes les ministres ou les
sous-ministres, parce que je crois que nous comprenons
précisément ce que vous, le sénateur Watt et d’autres nous avez
exposé. Les moulins des dieux tournent trés lentement, et nous
voudrions qu’ils accélérent un peu. Je comprends votre point de
vue.

Le sénateur Sibbeston: Monsieur le président, lorsque j’ai vu le
libellé pour la premiére fois, la différence avec 'original m’a
semblé trés mince. Il s’agit seulement de mot comme «protectiony,
et il y en a un autre qui est utilisé au sujet de I'application. A
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changes, but constitutional lawyers say it is really significant. [
understand it now, but certainly not as fully as constitutional
lawyers, who could expound on it in depth.

The Chairman: However, we have asked lawyers on both sides
of the fence those questions, and at length. I am a newcomer here,
but I can literally say “for years,” even since I have been here, and
I think we have got it. I think we understand why and where.
However, it would be handy to have those people available if we
need to ask a question.

Senator Christensen: First, it has been suggested that the
minister whose bill this is be advised of the difficulties and asked
to either come before us or to write a letter to say that changes
were made. This is a change that has to be made by the
Department of Justice, not the Minister of the Environment. I do
not know that we can ask the minister, or any other minister
whose bill it is not, to come before us. I think that might be a
problem. I do not know that we need a letter from the Minister of
the Environment saying these changes would be made when it is
the Minister of Justice that has to make them.

Second, for clarification, if the changes to clause 3 were made,
then the other amendments would not be necessary — is that
correct? You say here, “in the absence of an adequate non-
derogation clause.”

Senator Watt: It does not take care of the compensation side.

Senator Christensen: That is what I thought. It says “in the
absence of a non-derogation clause.” Even though the non-
derogation clause may be changed, you feel the other two changes
also have to be made.

Senator Watt: Let me go back. If we are going to make a direct
amendment to the bill itself in regards to non-derogation, those
have to go in

Senator Christensen: Sorry?

Senator Watt: If we are going to make a direct amendment to
the bill itself, instead of doing it indirectly by way of another
statute, as I mentioned, all those are necessary.

Senator Christensen: What if you get a stand-alone piece of
legislation?

Senator Watt: Then I do not need any of those, except a
clarification in regard to the compensation. That is important.

Senator Christensen: Then you do need it.

Senator Kenny: I certainly understand where Senator Watt is
coming from, and I am content to not have him explain it any
further. I am comfortable with where he is. I do not have any

premiére vue, les changements ne paraissent pas importants, mais
les avocats de droit constitutionnel soutiennent qu’ils le sont
vraiment. Je le comprends maintenant, mais certainement pas
autant que les avocats de droit constitutionnel, qui pourraient
donner une explication détaillée.

Le président: Cependant, nous avons interrogé, longuement,
des avocats des deux cotés de la barriére. Je suis nouveau venu ici,
mais je peux littéralement dire que c’est «depuis des annéesy,
méme depuis mon arrivée ici, et je pense que nous avons bien
compris. Je crois que nous comprenons le pourquoi et le
comment. Cependant, il serait utile que ces gens soient
disponibles au cas ou nous ayons a leur poser des questions.

Le sénateur Christensen: Premic¢rement, il a été suggéré que le
ministre responsable du projet de loi soit avisé des difficultés qui
se posent et qu’on lui demande, soit de venir devant nous, soit
d’écrire pour expliquer les changements qui ont été fait. C’est un
changement que doit faire le ministére de la Justice et non pas le
ministre de I’Environnement. Je ne sais pas si nous pouvons
demander au ministre, ou a n’importe quel autre ministre dont
c’est le projet de loi, de venir devant nous. Je crois que cela
pourrait poser un probléme. Je n’ai pas I'impression qu’il nous
faille une lettre du ministre de ’Environnement qui dit que ces
changements seront faits alors que c’est au ministre de la Justice
de les faire.

Deuxiemement, aux fins de clarification, si des changements
devaient étre faits a I’article 3, alors les autres amendements ne
seraient plus nécessaires — est-ce bien cela? Vous dites ici «en
I’absence d’une disposition de non-dérogation adéquate».

Le sénateur Watt: Cela ne régle pas le probléme de
I'indemnisation.

Le sénateur Christensen: C’est bien ce que je pensais. On dit «en
I’absence d’une disposition de non-dérogation». Méme si la
disposition de non-dérogation pourrait étre changée, vous pensez
que les deux autres changements devraient tout de méme étre
faits.

Le sénateur Watt: Permettez-moi de revenir la-dessus. Si nous
devons faire un amendement direct au projet de loi lui-méme, en
ce qui concerne la non-dérogation, il faut ajouter ceux-la.

Le sénateur Christensen: Pardonnez-moi?

Le sénateur Watt: Si nous devons faire un amendement direct
au projet de loi lui-méme, au lieu de le faire indirectement au
moyen d’un autre texte législatif, comme je ’ai dit, tous ceux-la
sont nécessaires.

Le sénateur Christensen: Et s’il y avait une loi autonome?

Le sénateur Watt: Alors, je n’aurais besoin d’aucun de ceux-la,
a part une clarification en ce qui concerne 'indemnisation. C’est
important.

Le sénateur Christensen: Alors il vous le faut.

Le sénateur Kenny: Je comprends trés bien la pensée du
sénateur Watt, et je n’ai pas besoin qu’il s’explique plus
longuement. Je comprends trés bien son point de vue. Je ne vois
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difficulty with the letter approach, because I think it is important
that the minister whose bill it is understand that it is in jeopardy,
and the sooner the better. I like the idea of having the two
deputies here, because that will clear out a lot of errors, and it also
means that the two people who are going to be advising their
ministers on the action we would like to see will be seized with it.
It is probably better than having the ministers appear before us. |
would hope that the committee would give favourable
consideration to that if we are going to support Senator Watt
on this issue.

The Chairman: Thank you.

Senator Milne: The Minister of the Environment is in charge of
this bill, and you do not need the Minister of Justice here. The
Minister of Justice merely provides the lawyers who do the legal
drafting, and how it is drafted is completely up to the Minister of
the Environment. He is the one you need to write to and call here,
him and his deputy minister.

The Chairman: That is true with respect to this bill, but we
must understand that Senator Watt’s point is that if there were to
be an interpretation bill brought in that would affect not only this
bill, but also many others in which the Aboriginal people have a
problem with the non-derogation clause, that would obviate the
question on this bill. The Minister of Justice is not divorced from
the question. I would ask, based on the advice we have heard and
the fact we now must move along, that you allow the steering
committee to determine what we should do next. Is that agreeable
to members?

Hon Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I would ask that the witness join us at the table.
It is my pleasure to say that Senator Trevor Eyton has joined us,
on my extreme right — in more ways than one.

Senator Eyton: And moving even further, and proud of it.

The Chairman: Happily so. We are also joined by our witness,
Gwen Barlee. Welcome.

Ms. Gwen Barlee, Endangered Species Coordinator,
Western Canada Wilderness Committee: I am here today to
speak on Bill C-5, the Species at Risk Act. I am here on behalf
of our 25,000 members and 30,000 supporters — Canadians who
care passionately about the future of Canada’s 402 species at risk,
Canadians who want species at risk such as the woodland
caribou, wood bison, bowhead whale, coho salmon, swift fox and
northern spotted owl to be protected, now and into our future.

In 2002, the United Nations released a groundbreaking report
stating that almost one quarter of the world’s mammals face
extinction within the next 30 years. Imagine a world without
Siberian tigers, black rhinoceros or cheetahs. Imagine a Canada
without grizzly bears, beluga whales or Vancouver Island
marmots. It is staggering to conceive of such a loss.

aucun probléme avec la démarche de la lettre, parce que je crois
qu’il est important que le ministre qui propose le projet de loi
comprenne que son projet est en péril, et le plus tot sera le mieux.
J’aime bien I'idée de convoquer ici les deux sous-ministres, parce
que cela permettra de tirer au clair bien des erreurs, et cela signifie
aussi que les deux personnes qui vont conseiller leurs ministres sur
les mesures que nous voudrions voir prendre seront bien au
courant de la question. C’est probablement mieux que de
convoquer les ministres eux-mémes. J'espére que le comité y
sera favorable, si nous voulons appuyer le sénateur Watt en ce
sens.

Le président: Je vous remercie.

Le sénateur Milne: C’est le ministre de I’Environnement qui est
responsable de ce projet de loi, et vous n’avez pas besoin du
ministre de la Justice ici. Le ministre de la Justice ne fait que
fournir les avocats qui font la rédaction juridique, et le contenu du
texte dépend uniquement du ministre de I’Environnement. C’est a
lui que vous devez écrire et lui que vous devriez convoquer ici, lui
et son sous-ministre.

Le président: C’est vrai en ce qui concerne ce projet de loi, mais
nous devons comprendre que la ou veut en venir le sénateur Watt,
c’est que si un projet de loi d’interprétation devait étre proposé, il
toucherait non seulement ce projet de loi, mais aussi bien d’autres
dont la disposition de non-dérogation pose un probléme aux
peuples autochtones, et cela éviterait qu'on mette en doute ce
projet de loi. Le ministre de la Justice n’est pas si détaché de cette
question. Je demande, a la lumiére des conseils que nous avons
entendus et du fait que nous devons maintenant agir, que vous
permettiez au comité directeur de déterminer ce que nous devons
faire ensuite. Est-ce que les membres du comité sont d’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: J’invite le témoin a nous rejoindre a la table. Je
signale avec plaisir que le sénateur Trevor Eyton s’est joint a nous,
a mon extréme droite — de plus d’une maniére.

Le sénateur Eyton: J’irais plus loin, et fier de cela.

Le président: J’en suis heureux. Notre témoin s’est aussi jointe a
nous, il s’agit de Gwen Barlee. Vous étes la bienvenue.

Mme Gwen Barlee, coordonnatrice, Espéces sauvages en péril,
Western Canada Wilderness Committee: Je suis ici aujourd’hui
pour parler du projet de loi C-5, la Loi concernant la protection
des especes sauvages en péril au Canada. Je représente ici nos
25 000 membres et 30 000 supporteurs — des Canadiens qui
défendent avec passion l’avenir des 402 espéces menacées du
Canada, des Canadiens qui veulent que soit protégé, maintenant
et dans le futur, le caribou des foréts, le bison des bois, la baleine
boréale, le saumon coho, le renard véloce et la chouette tachetée
du Nord.

En 2002, les Nations Unies ont diffusé un rapport innovateur,
lequel annongait que prés du quart des mammiféres du monde
risquaient de disparaitre dans les 30 prochaines années. Imaginez
un monde sans tigre de Sibérie, sans rhinocéros noir ou sans
guépard. Imaginez un Canada sans ours grizzly, sans béluga ou
sans marmotte de 1’lle Vancouver. Une telle perspective est
atterrante.
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The UN report also confirmed that loss of habitat through
human encroachment is responsible for 89 per cent of threatened
birds, 83 per cent of threatened mammals and 91 per cent of
threatened plants. These same statistics hold true in Canada,
where over 80 per cent of our species at risk are at risk because of
the human-caused loss and degradation of the meadows, forest,
tundra, wetlands, streams and oceans that these species call home.

The interconnection between wildlife and their habitat is both
fundamental and fragile. For wild species to survive, we need
them to successfully live, breed and forage. A grizzly without a
forest or a salmon without a stream is simply destined to
disappear.

Canada is envied around the world for its natural beauty and
tremendous biodiversity. Globally, as a wealthy, developed
nation, people look to us for environmental leadership and
vision. As stewards of this remarkable bounty, we have both the
responsibility and the moral obligation to plan for that future
wisely and carefully.

In 1992, Canada became the first Western industrialized nation
to ratify the UN Convention on Biological Diversity. On
ratification of that treaty, Canada pledged to provide effective
protection for Canadian species at risk and the critical habitat and
ecosystems on which they depend. However, 10 years later,
Canada has seen a 46 per cent increase in the number of species
that are at risk. Only two years ago, the federal report, “Wild
Species 2000: The General Status of Species in Canada,”
identified that just 65 per cent of Canada’s wild species were
secure. Each year, the Committee on the Status of Endangered
Wildlife in Canada adds another 20 to 30 species to its ever-
growing list, with another 600 species feared to be at risk awaiting
evaluation.

Species at risk need, and the vast majority of Canadians want,
effective legislation that will protect these species from coast to
coast to coast — legislation that will fulfil our obligation under
the UN Convention on Biological Diversity, which requires the
“in situ conservation of ecosystems and natural habitats and the
maintenance and recovery of populations of species in their
natural surroundings.”

Does the proposed Species at Risk Act, SARA, our third
attempt at crafting endangered species legislation, honour our
international obligations? Does this proposed legislation meet
national expectations? Most importantly, does this proposed
legislation fulfil the biological needs of Canada’s 402 species at
risk?

To talk about SARA in the abstract is sometimes a difficult
exercise. Too often, I am sitting before my computer in my
downtown office, far removed from the realities of extirpation
and extinction. As such, I would like to tell you about a trip I
took last summer near Yale, which is north of the small town of
Hope in the southwest portion of British Columbia. In July, Andy

Le rapport des Nations Unies confirmait aussi qu’on peut
attribuer a la perte de I’habitat, découlant de I'’empiétement des
humains, 89 p. 100 des espéces d’oiseaux en danger, 83 p. 100 des
mammiféres en péril et 91 p. 100 des plantes en voie de
disparition. Ces mémes statistiques s’appliquent au Canada, ou
plus de 80 p. 100 de nos especes menacées le sont a cause de la
perte causée par les humains, de la détérioration des prés, des
foréts, de la toundra, des marécages, des cours d’eau et des océans
qui sont le foyer de ces espéces.

L’interrelation entre les espéces sauvages et leur habitat est a la
fois fondamentale et fragile. Pour qu’une espéce sauvage survive,
il Tui faut pouvoir vivre, se reproduire et s’alimenter. Un ours
grizzly sans forét ou un saumon sans riviére sont tout simplement
condamnés a disparaitre.

Le Canada fait ’envie du monde entier pour sa beauté
naturelle et son immense biodiversité. Partout dans le monde,
en tant que nation riche et développée, on compte sur nous pour
assurer un leadership et défendre une vision en matiére
d’environnement. En tant que responsables de ces remarquables
richesses, nous avons a la fois le devoir et I’obligation morale de
planifier cet avenir avec sagesse et prudence.

En 1992, le Canada est devenu le premier pays industrialisé
occidental a ratifier la Convention des Nations Unies sur la
diversité biologique. En ratifiant ce traité, le Canada s’engageait a
assurer efficacement la protection des especes en péril du Canada
et ’habitat essentiel, ainsi que les écosystémes dont ils dépendent.
Cependant, dix ans plus tard, le Canada a vu augmenter de
46 p. 100 la liste nombre des espeéces qui sont en voie de
disparaitre. Il y a deux ans seulement, le rapport du
gouvernement fédéral, intitulé «Les especes sauvages 2000:
Situation générale des espéces au Canaday» annongait que
65 p. 100 seulement des espéces sauvages du Canada étaient en
sécurité. Chaque année, le comité sur le statut des espéces
menacées de disparition au Canada ajoute 20 ou 30 nouvelles
espéces a sa liste toujours croissante, et 600 autres especes
attendent d’étre évaluées, car on craint qu’elles soient en danger.

Les espéces en péril ont besoin d’une loi efficace pour protéger
ces especes d’un bout a I'autre du pays, et la majorité des Canadiens
la souhaitent — une loi par laquelle nous remplirons nos obligations
dictées par la Convention des Nations Unies sur la diversité
biologique, qui exige la «conservation sur place des écosystémes et
des habitats naturels et I’entretien et le rétablissement des
populations d’espéces dans leur environnement naturely.

Est-ce que la Loi sur les espéces en péril qui est proposée, notre
troisieme tentative de formulation d’une loi sur les espéces en
péril, remplit nos obligations internationales? Est-ce que cette loi
qui est proposée répond aux attentes nationales? Fait encore plus
important, est-ce que cette loi qui est proposée comble les besoins
biologiques des 402 espéces en danger du Canada?

Il peut étre difficile de parler de la Loi sur les espéces en péril
dans l’abstrait. Trop souvent, je suis assise devant mon
ordinateur, dans mon bureau de centre-ville, loin des réalités de
la disparition et de I’extinction des espéces. C’est pourquoi
j’aimerais vous parler d’un voyage que j’ai fait 1’été dernier pres de
Yale, au nord de la petite ville de Hope, dans la région du sud-
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Miller, a bird biologist, and I were travelling to survey some
recent clear-cuts in the area. That afternoon, as we were bouncing
and skidding along logging roads looking at kilometre after
kilometre of the big stumps and little seedlings that epitomize
clear-cut logging, we became lost — not hopelessly so but lost,
with only an old forestry map that appeared to be out of date.
Taking several detours, we eventually drove out of the clear-cuts
and travelled into stands of still-intact old-growth forests of
hemlock, cedar and balsam. To pass the time, I asked Andy to
identify different species of birds that we saw in the remaining
stands of old-growth. Jays, pygmy owls, rufous hummingbirds
and crows still populated these increasingly isolated stands of
trees. Andy was impressive and could identify birds by sight, call
and even by wing-beat. Hours passed and, as we headed down yet
another logging road, I looked out the window and noticed a pair
of birds sitting on a branch perhaps 100 feet from the road. As the
truck came closer, they swooped off the branch and disappeared
into the forest. I asked Andy what kind of birds they were. He had
not seen them, but judging from the sounds of the raucous calls in
the area, he presumed they were a pair of jays. Although I am a
novice birdwatcher, I knew the birds that I had seen were too big
to be jays. Andy obligingly pulled the truck over to the side of the
road. The quiet of the forest soon enveloped us, with a small
breeze lifting dust from the logging road. Soon, however, the
quiet was punctuated with the calls of jays. Andy turned to go
back to the truck and I, remaining convinced, asked him, “Andy,
I am really sure I saw something — don’t jays sometimes bother
owls?” Andy came back from the truck and said that he would
give an owl call; and he gave a series of loud hoots. The stillness of
the forest echoed back as the jays fell silent. Time passed and
then, out of the dark of the forest, an owl hooted back. Andy
froze, then said, “It’s a northern spotted owl; the male just called
back.” Andy called again. This time, the call was a slightly higher,
longer series of hoots. A few seconds passed before a succession of
hoots came out of the trees. I felt shivers going up and down my
back. In getting lost on a logging road in the backwoods of B.C.,
we had discovered a pair of northern spotted owls.

The northern spotted owl is one of the most critically
endangered species in Canada. Due to ongoing logging in their
old-growth habitat, only 25 pairs of owls exist in Canada, all of
which are found in the southwest corner of British Columbia. A
handsome, medium-sized owl with unusual chocolate brown eyes,
they rely on old-growth forest to live, breed, forage and raise their
young.

In September of this year, the Wilderness Committee released a
ground-breaking report that showed, using the provincial
government’s own data, that the spotted owl would disappear
from Canada within a decade because of industrial logging of its

ouest de la Colombie-Britannique. En juillet, Andy Miller, un
biologiste spécialiste des oiseaux, et moi-méme, sommes allés
examiner des coupes a blanc qui ont été faites récemment dans la
région. Cet aprés-midi 13, tandis que nous roulions cahin-caha sur
les chemins de bilicherons, observant kilométres sur kilométres de
grosses souches et de petites pousses qui incarnent les coupes a
blanc, nous nous sommes perdus — non pas sans espoir, mais
néanmoins perdus, avec pour tout point de repére une vieille carte
forestiére qui nous semblait désuéte. Aprés quelques détours,
nous avons fini par sortir du secteur de coupe a blanc pour nous
retrouver au milieu d’une forét ancienne toujours intacte ou
poussaient des pruches, des cedres et des baumes. Pour passer le
temps, j’ai demandé a Andy de m’indiquer les diverses especes
d’oiseaux que nous pouvions voir et le peuplement de la forét
ancienne. Des geais, des chouettes naines, des colibris roux et des
corbeaux peuplaient encore cette forét isolée. Andy était
impressionnant et pouvait reconnaitre les oiseaux par leur
aspect, par leur cri et méme par le battement de leurs ailes. Des
heures se sont écoulées et, tandis que nous longions encore un
autre chemin forestier, j’ai vu par la fenétre une paire d’oiseaux
perchés sur une branche, a une centaine de pieds de la route. Alors
que le camion s’approchait, ils ont pris leur envol de la branche et
ont disparu dans la forét. J’ai demandé a Andy quel type
d’oiseaux c’était. Il ne les avait pas vus, mais d’aprés le son des
cris rocailleux qui retentissaient dans Iair, il a supposé que c¢’était
un couple de geais. Bien que je sois profane dans I’art de
I’observation des oiseaux, je sais que les oiseaux que j’'avais vus
étaient trop gros pour étre des geais. Andy a bien voulu arréter le
camion sur le c6té de la route. Le calme de la forét nous a bient6t
enveloppés, alors qu’une petite bise soulevait la poussiére du
chemin forestier. Bient6t, cependant, le calme a été rompu par
I’appel de geais. Andy est retourné vers le camion et moi, toujours
convaincue, je lui ai demandé «Andy, je suis sir d’avoir vu
quelque chose — est-ce que les geais n’ennuient pas parfois les
chouettes?» Andy est revenu du camion et a proposer d’appeler la
chouette; il a lancé une série de cris retentissants. Le calme de la
forét a renvoyé I’écho et les geais se sont tus. Le temps a passé, et
alors, des sombres profondeurs de la forét, une chouette a
répondu. Andy s’est figé, et a dit «C’est une chouette tachetée du
Nord; le méle vient de répondre». Andy 1’a encore appelé. Cette
fois, il a lancé une plus longue série d’appels, plus aigus. Quelques
secondes se sont écoulées avant qu'une succession de hululements
sorte des arbres. J’ai senti des frissons descendre le long de ma
colonne vertébrale. En nous perdant sur un chemin forestier, dans
les fins fonds de la Colombie-Britannique, nous avions découvert
un couple de chouettes tachetées du Nord.

La chouette tachetée du Nord est I'une des especes les plus
menacées du Canada. A cause de la coupe de leur habitat de forét
ancienne, il ne reste que 25 couples de ces chouettes au Canada,
tous dans la région sud-ouest de la Colombie-Britannique. Ces
belles bétes, de taille moyenne avec des yeux bruns peu ordinaires,
ont besoin des foréts anciennes pour vivre, se reproduire,
s’alimenter et élever leurs petits.

En septembre, cette année, le Comité sur les espéces sauvages a
diffusé un rapport sans précédent qui démontrait, d’aprés les
données mémes du gouvernement provincial, que la chouette
tachetée disparaitrait du Canada d’ici une dizaine d’années, a
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habitat. Just two weeks after the release of our report, the B.C.
government confirmed the dramatic decline of the spotted owl
and estimated that it would likely be extirpated from Canada not
within one decade, but within five years. In October, government
scientists captured a single spotted owl chick for over-wintering.
It was one of four chicks, three of which were presumed dead, that
were born this year to two breeding pairs of owls.

B.C. government biologists confirmed that, under the B.C.
Spotted Owl Management Plan, which sanctions logging in
critical habitat, the owl population in British Columbia has
declined by 70 per cent since 1994 — fives times faster than
optimistic government predictions. The Spotted Owl
Management Plan, which government scientists refused to sign
off on because of the low probability of success, is based on the
scientifically indefensible premise that industrial logging can
“maintain or enhance” old-growth owl habitat.

In reaction to this alarming development, the B.C. government
has struck another Spotted Owl Recovery Team. However,
logging, the primary cause of the spotted owls’ demise,
continues. It should be noted that the top logger of spotted owl
habitat is the B.C. government, which is also in charge of
protecting this critically endangered species. This May, protection
for spotted owls and other species at risk in B.C. was further
eroded. This past summer, Premier Gordon Campbell
acknowledged in a letter to the wilderness committee that the
provincial government now supports “industry-led recovery
strategies for species at risk” in British Columbia. Provincially,
we also have a new results-based forestry practices code that no
longer requires provincial biologists to sign off on logging
operations that occur on Crown land. Today in British
Columbia, a province that has the greatest biodiversity in
Canada, species at risk will have to rely on the goodwill of
mining and logging corporations, whose primary interest is
efficiency in the search for quarterly profits.

The northern spotted owl should be the perfect candidate for
protection under the proposed SARA. Ranked as endangered by
COSEWIC in 1986 — meaning it is at risk of extinction or
extirpation over a significant portion of its original range — the
owl is also red-listed provincially and has a global ranking of S1,
which indicates extreme rarity similar to that of white rhinos and
Javan tigers. Additionally, in a draft copy of the national
prioritization scheme for recovery, produced in 2000 by
Recovery of Nationally Endangered Wildlife, RENEW, the
northern spotted owl was the top species identified in Canada

cause des coupes industrielles qui sont faites dans son habitat.
Deux semaines seulement apres la diffusion de notre rapport, le
gouvernement de la Colombie-Britannique confirmait la chute
dramatique de la population de chouettes tachetées et a estimé
qu’elle serait probablement disparue du Canada non pas dans dix
ans, mais dans cinq ans. En octobre, les scientifiques du
gouvernement ont capturé un unique petit de chouette tachetée
pour le protéger pendant I’hiver. C’était I'un de quatre petits, les
trois autres étant présumés morts, qui étaient nés cette année de
deux couples de chouettes.

Les biologistes du gouvernement de la Colombie-Britannique
ont confirmé que, en vertu du plan de gestion de la chouette
tachetée de la Colombie-Britannique qui sanctionne la coupe dans
les régions d’habitat critique, la population de chouettes en
Colombie-Britannique a chuté de 70 p. 100 depuis 1994 — cinq
fois plus vite que les prédictions optimistes du gouvernement. Ce
plan de gestion de la chouette tachetée, que les scientifiques du
gouvernement ont refusé de signer a cause de ses faibles
probabilité de succés, est fondé sur la prémisse scientifique
indéfendable que la coupe industrielle peut «préserver ou
améliorer» I’habitat de foréts anciennes de la chouette.

En réaction a cette nouvelle alarmante, le gouvernement de la
Colombie-Britannique a mis sur pied une nouvelle équipe chargée
du rétablissement de la chouette tachetée. Cependant, la coupe
forestiére, qui est la principale cause du sort de la chouette, se
poursuit. Il convient de souligner que le principal responsable de
la coupe de I’habitat de la chouette tachetée est le gouvernement
de la Colombie-Britannique, qui est aussi responsable de la
protection de cette espéce qui est trés menacée. En mai dernier, la
protection des chouettes tachetées et d’autres especes en danger en
Colombie-Britannique a subi un nouveau revers. L’été dernier, le
premier ministre, Gordon Campbell, a reconnu dans une lettre au
Comité sur les especes en péril que le gouvernement provincial
appuie maintenant les «stratégies de recouvrement dirigées par
I'industrie, pour les espéces en péril» en Colombie-Britannique. A
I’échelle provinciale, nous avons un nouveau code de pratique
forestiere fondé sur les résultats qui n’exigent plus que les
biologistes de la province avalisent les opérations de coupe sur les
terres domaniales. Aujourd’hui, en Colombie-Britannique, une
province qui a la plus grande biodiversité du Canada, les especes
menacées devront dépendre de la bonne volonté des sociétés
miniéres et forestiéres, dont le principal intérét est ’efficience dans
la course au profit trimestriel.

La chouette tachetée du Nord devrait étre le candidat parfait a
la protection en vertu de la Loi sur la protection des espéces en
péril qui est proposée. Déclarée en péril par le COSEPAC
en 1986 — ce qui signifie qu’elle est en danger d’extinction ou de
disparition pour une partie importante de son habitat original —
la chouette est aussi sur la liste rouge de la province et a une cote
mondiale de S1, ce qui veut dire qu’elle est extrémement rare, dans
la méme mesure que le rhinocéros blanc et le tigre de Java. De
plus, dans un avant-projet de scénario d’établissement des
priorités nationales en matiere de rétablissement, produit en
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for recovery. The spotted owl was ranked ahead of such critically
endangered animals as the Vancouver Island marmot, the right
whale and the woodland caribou.

We need to ask ourselves, as Canadians and as
environmentalists: Does the proposed SARA apply to the
spotted owl? More importantly, the question should be: Given
the complete lack of provincial leadership on this issue, will the
proposed SARA, once enacted, protect the critical habitat of the
spotted owl? Given that SARA will apply to only one per cent of
the land base in B.C., the answer is no. Instead, we must rely on a
provincial government that has no interest in taking meaningful
action. We must rely on a government that is content to hand
over protection of the spotted owl to the very timber companies
that are logging it to extinction in Canada.

Given these circumstances, how will the proposed SARA apply
to Canada’s most critically endangered species? Canadians and
the environmental community have been told to rely on the
discretionary safety net provision contained in the bill. The
Honourable David Anderson, Minister of Environment, has
repeatedly assured us that SARA will provide the necessary tools
to protect all species in Canada, including the spotted owl. The
environmental community and the 94 per cent of Canadians who
want effective endangered species legislation have been told that
the safety net provisions in the proposed SARA would ensure, in
the case of provincial or territorial inaction, that the federal
government would step in to provide protection.

As much as I am an optimist, a requirement in my job, a
discretionary safety net is simply insufficient for the obvious
reason that it is unlikely to be used. As the Sierra Legal Defence
Fund observed, similar discretionary safety net provisions in
Canadian environmental legislation have not been used. In the
Canada Wildlife Act, the Canadian Environmental Assessment
Act, the Canada Water Act and the Canadian Environmental
Protection Act, comparable discretionary safety nets have never
been utilized. In light of this history of inaction, a mandatory
safety net is required to ensure protection for species that fall
outside of areas of federal jurisdiction.

I would like to believe that the proposed SARA would protect
the spotted owl and all of Canada’s species at risk. However,
common sense tells me otherwise. I would love to be mistaken in
this assumption and I hope that I am proven wrong. I predict that
when Bill C-5 is enacted, B.C. will continue to allow industrial

I’an 2000 par Recovery of Nationally Endangered Wildlife,
RENEW, la chouette tachetée du Nord était la premiére espéce
recensée au Canada aux fins de rétablissement. La chouette
tachetée passait avant d’autres animaux trés menacés comme la
marmotte de I'lle de Vancouver, le dauphin a dos lisse et le
caribou des foréts. Nous devons nous demander, en tant que
Canadiens et environnementalistes: est-ce que la Loi sur la
protection des especes en péril qui est proposée s’applique a la
chouette tachetée?

Plus important encore, la question devrait étre: Etant donné le
mangque absolu de leadership de la province sur ce plan, est-ce que
la loi qui est proposée, une fois en vigueur, protégera I’habitat
critique de la chouette tachetée? Etant donné que cette loi ne
s’appliquera qu’a 1 p. 100 du territoire de la Colombie-
Britannique, la réponse est non. Au lieu de cela, nous devons
compter sur un gouvernement provincial qui n’a aucun intérét a
prendre des mesures réelles. Nous devons nous appuyer sur un
gouvernement qui se contente de laisser la protection de la
chouette tachetée aux compagnies d’exploitation forestiére mémes
qui sont responsables de son extinction au Canada.

Etant donné cette situation, comment la loi qui est proposée
s’appliquera aux espéces les plus en péril du Canada? Les
Canadiens et les défenseurs de I'environnement se sont fait dire
de compter sur la disposition de filet de sdreté discrétionnaire que
renferme le projet de loi. L’honorable David Anderson, ministre
de ’Environnement, nous a assuré a maintes reprises que la Loi
sur la protection des espéces en péril prévoira les outils nécessaires
pour protéger toutes les especes du Canada, y compris la chouette
tachetée. Le milieu environnemental et les 94 p. 100 des
Canadiens qui veulent une loi efficace de protection des especes
en danger se sont fait dire que la disposition sur le filet de sireté et
la loi proposée sur la protection des espéces en péril ferait en
sorte, en cas d’inaction de la part des provinces ou territoires, que
le gouvernement fédéral puisse intervenir et fournir une
protection.

Bien que je sois de nature optimiste, ce qui est indispensable
dans mon travail, un filet de sécurité discrétionnaire ne suffit tout
simplement pas, pour la raison évidente qu’il est peu probable
qu’il soit utilisé. Comme 1’a fait observer le Sierra Legal Defence
Fund, des dispositions similaires relatives a un filet de sécurité,
dans la Loi canadienne sur la protection de I’environnement,
n’ont pas été utilisées. Dans la Loi canadienne sur la protection
des especes en péril, la Loi canadienne sur la protection de
I’environnement et la Loi sur les ressources en eau du Canada et la
Loi canadienne sur la protection de I’environnement, des filets de
sécurité discrétionnaires n’ont jamais été utilisés. A la lumiére de
ce passé d’inaction, il est nécessaire de prévoir un filet de sécurité
obligatoire pour assurer la protection des espéces qui ne relévent
pas de la compétence fédérale.

Rien ne me plairait plus que de croire que la Loi sur la
protection des espéces en péril protégera la chouette tachetée et
toutes les autres espéces en péril au Canada. Toutefois, mon petit
doigt me dit que ce ne sera pas le cas. Je serais trés heureuse de me
tromper et j’espére que I’avenir prouvera que j’ai tort. Je crois que
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logging in critical spotted owl habitat. I also predict that the
federal government will decline to use the discretionary safety net
provision.

As T sit here today, I am acutely aware of the political realities
of this bill. I am also aware that there is a concern that if the
Senate were to try to improve the bill, it would be killed in the
House. I am also aware of the principled fight by some Liberal
members of Parliament, such as Charles Caccia, Karen Kraft
Sloan and Clifford Lincoln, to improve the bill.

Notable improvements would include habitat protection in
areas of limited federal jurisdiction and a more scientifically based
listing. However, ultimately I am aware that the bill, as written
now, does not offer meaningful protection to the vast majority of
species listed as at risk in Canada.

SARA is a paper tiger. It is a bill that relies almost exclusively
on discretionary language, political will and voluntary measures.
Its credibility requires an enormous leap of faith. Certainly the
environmental community encourage measures and cooperation
to protect species at risk in Canada, but when, or if, these
measures fail, it is necessary to have effective legislation in place.

Significant amendments need to be made to enable this
proposed legislation to protect species at risk in Canada. I will
not go into exhaustive detail here, because I am sure that others
who are much better qualified have already done so. However, I
will say that for SARA to be credible, it must apply to all species
at risk across Canada. SARA must apply to transboundary
species. These species clearly fall under federal jurisdiction and
comprise 80 per cent of species that are listed by COSEWIC.

Habitat protection, or lack thereof, is also a significant
weakness of SARA. To be meaningful, habitat protection must
be comprehensive, timely and mandatory. As it stands now,
protection of habitat does not start until a recovery plan has
identified it, which can take up to three years or more per species
on the initial list. In addition, interim habitat protection
provisions must be strengthened.

SARA desperately needs a mandatory safety net and defined,
explicit and compulsory timelines for implementation of action
plans. Without such timelines, there is a distinct likelihood of
non-compliance.

Finally, SARA requires sufficient funding. After the first three
years, funding will amount to literally less than a can of beans,
less than $1.50 per capita annually.

lorsque le projet de loi C-5 entrera en vigueur, la Colombie-
Britannique continuera de permettre la coupe industrielle dans les
habitats essentiels de la chouette tachetée. Je crois aussi que le
gouvernement fédéral choisira de ne pas avoir recours a la
disposition de filet de sécurité.

Je connais parfaitement le contexte politique qui entoure le
projet de loi. Je sais que certains craignent que si le Sénat tente
d’améliorer le projet de loi, ce dernier sera rejeté par la Chambre.
Je sais aussi que pour certains députés libéraux comme Charles
Caccia, Karen Kraft Sloan et Clifford Lincoln, c’est une lutte
fondée sur des principes.

Certaines améliorations importantes pourraient étre apportées
au projet de loi, par exemple des mesures de protection de
I’habitat dans des secteurs de compétence fédérale limitée et
l’ajout d’une liste reposant sur des données plus scientifiques.
Toutefois, je sais aussi qu’en bout de ligne, le projet de loi, dans
son libellé actuel, ne fournira pas une protection significative a la
grande majorité des especes en péril inscrites au Canada.

La Loi sur la protection des espéces en péril est un colosse aux
pieds d’argile. C’est un projet de loi qui mise exclusivement ou
presque sur un pouvoir discrétionnaire, sur la volonté politique et
sur des mesures volontaires. Il faut avoir une foi immense pour
croire en son efficacité. La communauté de l’environnement
encourage certainement I’adoption de mesures et la coopération
visant a protéger les espéces en péril au Canada, mais lorsque de
telles mesures s’avérent inefficaces, il faut adopter des mesures
législatives efficaces.

Des changements importants doivent étre apportés au projet de
loi pour protéger les espéces en péril au Canada. Je n’entrerai pas
dans le détail, puisque d’autres personnes bien plus compétentes
que moi dans ce domaine 1’ont certainement déja fait. Toutefois,
je tiens a dire que pour que la loi de protection soit crédible, il faut
qu’elle s’applique a toutes les espéces en péril au Canada, y
compris aux especes transfrontaliéres, qui sont manifestement de
compétence fédérale et qui représentent 80 p. 100 des espéces
inscrites par le COSEPAC.

L’insuffisance des mesures de protection de I’habitat est aussi
une faiblesse importante de la loi projetée. Pour que la protection
de I’habitat soit significative, elle doit faire I'objet de mesures
complétes, opportunes et coercitives. Telle que congue
actuellement dans le projet de loi, la protection de I’habitat ne
débute que lorsqu’un plan de rétablissement démontre que de
telles mesures sont requises, ce qui peut prendre jusqu’a trois ans,
si ce n’est plus, pour chaque espéce inscrite. De plus, il faut
renforcer les dispositions provisoires de protection de I’habitat.

Des dispositions coercitives de protection doivent absolument
étre ajoutées a la loi de protection, ainsi que des échéanciers bien
définis, explicites et contraignants pour la mise en oeuvre des
plans d’action. Sans de tels échéanciers, il est fort probable que la
loi ne sera pas respectée.

Enfin, 'application de la loi a I’étude requiert un financement
suffisant. Aprés les trois premicres années, les fonds versés seront
littéralement moins élevés que le prix d’une boite de petits pois,
c’est-a-dire qu’ils seront chaque année de moins de 1,50 § par
habitant.
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As a society, will we do that which is politically expedient, or
will we do what needs to be done? The species at risk bill is a step
in the right direction, but at the end of the day, it will not stop
species from disappearing in Canada.

We can try to convince ourselves that the proposed legislation
will make a difference. However, a pragmatic examination of the
bill shows that it provides for political half-truths rather than
meeting the fundamental biological requirements of species at risk
in Canada.

Canadians are looking to the Senate for leadership and vision
on this issue. We live in an area where our action or inaction will
make a tremendous difference to all future generations of human
beings, and all other species for all time. I urge the Senate to do
the right thing and provide for meaningful amendments to the
species at risk bill.

The Chairman: Thank you. Are you prepared to accept
questions?

Ms. Barlee: Yes, I am.

The Chairman: For the record, I need to observe that this is a
confederation. The question of mandatory imposition of things
by the federal government upon provincial rights that are clearly
set out in the Constitution must be dealt with carefully and
gingerly in order to ensure that it is done correctly.

We need also to observe, with respect, the difference between
the carrot approach and the stick approach. We have heard from
the minister many examples of the stick approach not working
very well in the U.S., with matters ending up in court. Therefore,
it is the intention to use the carrot approach and find out if it will
work.

Senator Cochrane: In your brief, you note that species at risk
will have to rely on the goodwill of logging and mining
corporations, whose primary interest is efficiency in search of
quarterly profits. When the industry representatives were here, |
asked them how efficient the stewardship approach was from the
business perspective. I received the response that they favour such
an approach as a smart one for the business community in the
long term.

Perhaps you can tell the committee, from your experience, how
often forestry companies and others take this voluntary
stewardship approach and how effective it has been?

Ms. Barlee: We do encourage voluntary stewardship. Some
companies step up to the plate, and others do not. I will give you
an example.

We distributed the report entitled “Logging to Extinction —
The Last Stand of the Spotted Owl in Canada,” to the top 10
companies that were logging in critical owl habitat. One of them
was Interfor. They decided that they did not want to be a
lightning rod for discontent in this country. They decided to
withdraw until the provincial government decided on a plan of

En tant que société, choisirons-nous I’expédient politique ou
ferons-nous ce qui doit étre fait? Le projet de loi sur les espéces en
péril représente un premier pas dans la bonne voie, mais il
n’empéchera pas la disparition des espéces au Canada.

On peut essayer de se convaincre que le projet de loi améliorera
la situation, mais un examen pragmatique révéle qu’il ne
correspond qu’a des demi-vérités politiques, qu’il ne répond pas
aux besoins biologiques fondamentaux des espéces en péril au
Canada.

Les Canadiens comptent sur le leadership et la vision du Sénat.
Nous vivons une période ou nos actes ou notre inertie
influenceront énormément la vie des générations futures de
I’espéce humaine et de toutes les autres espéces. Je demande
avec instance au Sénat de faire ce qu’il faut et d’apporter des
changements significatifs au projet de loi sur les espéces en péril.

Le président: Merci. Etes-vous préte a répondre aux questions?

Mme Barlee: Oui.

Le président: Je tiens a préciser officiellement que le Canada est
une confédération. L’imposition par le gouvernement fédéral de
mesures obligatoires aux provinces a propos de droits clairement
définis dans la Constitution doit se faire avec grande prudence et
beaucoup de précautions si ’on veut que ce soit fait correctement.

Nous devons aussi tenir compte de la différence qui existe entre
I’approche de la carotte et celle du baton. Le ministre nous a
donné de nombreux exemples des mesures coercitives appliquées
aux Etats-Unis qui ne sont pas trés efficaces puisqu’il faut
constamment faire appel aux tribunaux. Nous projetons donc de
recourir a des mesures facultatives et de voir si elles ne donnent
pas de meilleurs résultats.

Le sénateur Cochrane: Dans votre mémoire, vous dites qu’on
s’en remet a la bonne volonté des sociétés d’exploitation forestiére
et miniére pour protéger les especes en péril et que le
comportement de ces sociétés est avant tout dicté par le
principe de lefficacit¢é dans la course au profit trimestriel.
Lorsque les représentants de I'industrie sont venus témoigner, je
leur ai demandé si, d’apres eux, approche de I'intendance était
efficace. Ils ont répondu qu’a long terme, une telle approche
convenait parfaitement au milieu des affaires.

Pourriez-vous dire au comité si, d’aprés votre expérience, il
arrive souvent que les sociétés d’exploitation forestiere et d’autres
sociétés adoptent volontairement une telle approche et a quel
point elle est efficace?

Mme Barlee: Nous encourageons I’adhésion volontaire au
principe de I'intendance. Certaines sociétés le font, d’autres, pas.
Je vous en donne un exemple.

Nous avons distribué le rapport intitulé «Couper jusqu’a
I’extinction: La derniére retraite de la chouette tachetée au
Canada» aux dix principales sociétés qui font de la coupe
forestiere dans les habitats essentiels de la chouette. La société
Interfor ne voulait pas étre une source de mécontentement pour la
population du Canada. Elle a donc décidé de ne plus faire de
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action to save this critically endangered species. However, the
other nine industry players have chosen not to step up to the plate
and continue to log in spotted owl habitat.

Some companies will step up to the plate, and we applaud them
for doing that. However, in instances that they do not, or other
bottom-feeding companies arrive to take the cut, we need to have
firm legislation in place. We cannot rely on goodwill, although we
encourage it.

Senator Cochrane: If SARA is so weak or toothless, is it worth
having at all? Much has been said to suggest that C-5 will likely
die if any amendments are made at this point. Is that a risk with
which you could live?

Ms. Barlee: That is a difficult question to answer, because on
one hand, it promotes public discussion and raises public
awareness. On the other hand, Bill C-5 is not being honest with
the Canadian public. It purports to protect endangered species,
but people familiar with the bill know that it is merely the first
step out of a hundred steps that need to be taken.

The bill will not fulfil the intentions that it is set out to fulfil. I
would like to see the bill strengthened, but if it is not, then I do
believe that it is so weak that it should not be enacted.

Senator Spivak: What is your knowledge of the legislation in
the United States concerning the spotted owl? There has been
much discussion about it, and I am not sure of the results. Could
you enlighten us as to the differences between this bill and the
legislation in the United States, and its impact?

Ms. Barlee: Yes, I am sure many people have heard of the
spotted owl and the role it played as the flashpoint in the
discussion of environmental protection in the United States. The
U.S. introduced in the mid-80s an option for the protection of the
spotted owl that was considerably more progressive and based on
sound science than is the option of the Spotted Owl Management
Plan in British Columbia, which the government has been using
for the past seven years.

The spotted owl is declining in the United States despite its
having more progressive legislation; however, it is not declining
anywhere nearly as quickly as in Canada, and particularly British
Columbia. Government scientists in B.C. anticipate that the owl
will be extirpated within five years because of ongoing logging of
habitat.

We are calling for a moratorium on logging in critical spotted
owl habitat in B.C. Anything less, and you will see this owl
extirpated from Canada.

Senator Spivak: The chairman pointed out that there are
certainly provincial-jurisdiction considerations, as we all know.

Ms. Barlee: Yes.

coupe dans ces habitats en attendant que le gouvernement
provincial élabore un plan d’action pour sauver 1’espéce en voie
de disparition. Toutefois, les neuf autres sociétés ont choisi de ne
pas répondre a I’appel et elles continuent a exploiter la forét dans
les habitats essentiels de la chouette tachetée.

Certaines sociétés décident de réagir, et nous applaudissons
cette décision. Toutefois, lorsqu’elles décident de ne pas le faire ou
que d’autres sociétés décident de s’approprier leur part du gateau,
nous devons pouvoir compter sur des mesures législatives strictes.
Méme si nous encourageons les sociétés a manifester de la bonne
volonté, nous ne pouvons pas compter qu’elles le feront.

Le sénateur Cochrane: Si la loi de protection est si faible, si elle
est si peu musclée, mérite-t-elle d’étre adoptée? Bien des témoins
ont laissé entendre que le projet de loi C-5 serait rejeté si des
changements y étaient apportés maintenant. Seriez-vous préte a
en courir le risque?

Mme Barlee: 11 est difficile de vous répondre puisque le projet
de loi C-5 favorise un débat public de la question et y sensibilise
davantage la population. Par contre, il masque la vérité. Il
prétend protéger les espéces en voie de disparition, mais ceux qui
le connaissent bien savent qu’il n’est que la premiére étape du long
processus qui s’impose.

Le projet de loi n’atteindra pas les objectifs qu’il s’est fixés.
Jaimerais qu’il soit renforcé, mais s’il ne ’est pas, je doute qu’il
soit efficace et je ne crois donc pas qu’il mérite d’étre adopté.

Le sénateur Spivak: Que savez-vous des mesures législatives
adoptées aux Etats-Unis pour protéger la chouette tachetée? On
en a beaucoup parlé, mais je ne suis pas trop sire des résultats.
Pouvez-vous nous expliquer la différence entre ce projet de loi et
les mesures législatives des Etats-Unis et leurs impacts?

Mme Barlee: Je suis certaine que beaucoup ont entendu parler
de la chouette tachetée et du role majeur qu’elle a joué dans le
débat sur la protection de I’environnement aux Etats-Unis. Vers le
milieu des années 80, les Etats-Unis ont adopté une mesure de
protection de la chouette tachetée qui était beaucoup plus
progressive et qui reposait beaucoup plus sur des principes
scientifiques objectifs que ’actuel plan de gestion de la chouette
tachetée de la Colombie-Britannique, en place depuis sept ans.

Il est vrai que le nombre de chouettes tachetées est en baisse
aux Etats-Unis malgré des mesures législatives plus progressives.
Toutefois, cette baisse est beaucoup moins rapide qu’au Canada,
surtout en Colombie-Britannique. Selon les scientifiques du
gouvernement de la Colombie-Britannique, la chouette aura
disparu d’ici cinq ans a cause de la coupe que I’on continue de
pratiquer dans les habitats essentiels.

Nous demandons un moratoire sur la coupe forestiére dans les
habitats essentiels de la chouette tachetée en Colombie-
Britannique. C’est la seule fagon d’éviter la disparition de
I’espece au Canada.

Le sénateur Spivak: Le président a expliqué que la question
mettait en jeu des compétences provinciales, comme nous le
savons tous.

Mme Barlee: Effectivement.
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Senator Spivak: However, it seems to me, with all due respect,
Mr. Chairman, that if the federal government is unable to act in
those areas, there is no point in saying that the federal minister
may intervene in the absence of a safety net. It is obvious to me,
and I would like your opinion, that the federal government has
sufficient power in areas of protection of endangered species and
environmental degradation. The federal government is merely
timid.

I beg to differ with our esteemed chair. It makes a mockery of
this bill to say that the federal government cannot intrude. In fact,
they certainly can.

The Chairman: I certainly did not say that they cannot. I said
we have to deal gingerly with those questions. The bill clearly, as
the witness has pointed out and as we have heard before, provides
the Government of Canada with the authority, if it has the will to
invoke it, to oblige the provinces and territories, if they do not
measure up to what needs to be done, to do so. There is no
question that the authority exists. The question is wielding it.

Ms. Barlee: That was also the opinion of the environmental
community, at least in British Columbia. The protection of
endangered species can definitely be seen as a national concern.
Given that it is a national concern — the federal government legal
experts have agreed on this — they could step in, and this would
fall under areas of federal jurisdiction. In particular, I have great
concern about the federal government’s unwillingness to
recognize its authority over transboundary species.

Senator Spivak: Would you comment on how this bill relates to
protection of transboundary species? You mentioned it in your
brief.

Ms. Barlee: Transboundary species make up anywhere from
80 to 90 per cent of the species listed by COSEWIC, yet they are
not given meaningful protection under the species at risk bill,
regardless of the fact that they clearly fall under an area of federal
jurisdiction. That is an enormous oversight, and if anything
should be added to the bill, it should be the inclusion of
transboundary species. How woodland caribou and swift fox can
fall outside of this bill or be given secondary consideration
bemuses me.

The Chairman: Would you let us know in what sense
transboundary species are not included? For example, all
species are transboundary. The spotted owl is not, but it could
be. Animals do not understand borders.

Ms. Barlee: No, they do not, and especially not arbitrary
political or historical borders.

The Chairman: If province A and province B are failing to
protect species X, the authority exists in this bill for the
Government of Canada to oblige province A and province B
both to protect species X, does it not?

Le sénateur Spivak: Toutefois, il me semble, sauf votre respect,
monsieur le président, que si le gouvernement fédéral est
incapable d’agir dans ces domaines, il est inutile de dire que le
ministre fédéral peut intervenir en I’absence d’un filet de sécurité.
Il me parait évident, et j’aimerais connaitre votre point de vue a ce
sujet, que le gouvernement fédéral jouit de pouvoirs suffisants
dans le domaine de la protection des espéces en voie de disparition
et de la dégradation de ’environnement pour agir. Le probléme,
c’est simplement qu’il est trop timide.

En dépit de toute I'estime que j’ai pour lui, je ne suis pas
d’accord avec le président. Dire que le gouvernement fédéral ne
peut pas intervenir revient a tourner le projet de loi en ridicule. En
réalité, il en certes le pouvoir.

Le président: Je n’ai pas dit qu’il ne pouvait le faire. J’ai dit
qu’il devait le faire avec beaucoup de précaution. Comme 1’a
expliqué le témoin et comme d’autres I’'ont mentionné avant elle,
le projet de loi autorise le gouvernement du Canada a obliger les
provinces et les territoires a agir s’ils ne prennent pas les mesures
qui s’imposent. Le gouvernement doit toutefois avoir la volonté
d’utiliser ce pouvoir. Il n’y aucun doute que ce pouvoir existe; il
s’agit de savoir s’il faut I’exercer.

Mme Barlee: C’est aussi le point de vue de la communauté de
I’environnement, du moins en Colombie-Britannique. La
protection des espéces en péril est certainement considérée
comme une question d’intérét national. C’est pourquoi le
gouvernement fédéral pourrait exercer ce pouvoir puisqu’il
s’agit d’'un domaine de compétence fédérale. Les experts
juridiques du gouvernement fédéral 'ont confirmé. Je
m’inquiéte surtout du refus du gouvernement fédéral de
reconnaitre son autorité sur les espéces transfrontaliéres.

Le sénateur Spivak: Pouvez-vous nous expliquer en quoi le
projet de loi a un rapport avec la protection des espéces
transfrontaliéres? Vous en parlez dans votre mémoire.

Mme Barlee: Les especes transfrontaliéres représentent de 80 a
90 p. 100 des especes inscrites par le COSEPAC, mais elles ne font
pas ’objet de véritables mesures de protection dans le projet de loi
sur les espéces en péril, méme si elles sont manifestement de
compétence fédérale. C’est un oubli immense, et si on ne doit
apporter qu'un seul ajout au projet de loi, il faudrait que ce soit
les espéces transfrontaliéres. Je n’arrive pas a comprendre que le
caribou des bois et le renard véloce ne soient pas inclus ou qu’on
leur accorde une importance secondaire.

Le président: Pouvez-vous nous expliquer pourquoi vous dites
que les espéeces transfrontaliéres ne sont pas incluses? Par exemple,
toutes les espéces sont des espéces transfrontaliéres. La chouette
tachetée n’en est pas une, mais elle pourrait le devenir. Les
animaux n’ont pas la notion des fronticres.

Mme Barlee: En effet, surtout pas des frontiéres historiques ou
politiques arbitraires.

Le président: Si des provinces ne protégent pas une espéce en
particulier, le projet de loi autorise le gouvernement du Canada a
les y obliger, n’est-ce pas?
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Ms. Barlee: The authority is there. However, the wording is
problematic. It is discretionary. It is “may,” “if,” “and” and
“but.” Looking at previous environmental legislation that I
referred to in my brief, where there were similar discretionary
safety net provisions, they have not been utilized. I would be
excited if the federal government stepped up to the plate. You will
see this shortly if SARA is enacted. I believe the B.C. government
will not take adequate measures to stop species from becoming
extinct in Canada. I would love to see the federal government
stepping up to the plate, but looking historically at similar
legislation, I do not believe that will be the case.

The Chairman: The bill uses “may” a lot and “shall”
infrequently, but it is also not possible for a bill to determine
the courses of action that will be taken by subsequent
governments. Bills cannot bind governments to take action; so
all bills depend, in the end, upon the will of the government, when
they become acts, to exercise them.

Ms. Barlee: I am not sure if that is correct.
The Chairman: I think it is.

Ms. Barlee: If you look at previous drafts of the bill, the
wording was stronger. I believe it is well within the government’s
powers to step in on matters of national concern. This very weak
wording is a key concern of the environmental community, and
especially the wilderness community.

Senator Milne: Mr. Chairman, the federal government has
criminal law power. If this committee decided to strengthen this
bill, it could certainly do so and could, through the criminal law,
make it apply to the provinces, because the provinces have to
apply the criminal law. They cannot ignore the criminal law.
Therefore, there is strength here in federal hands, even given
provincial jurisdiction, through the criminal law.

Ms. Barlee, I am concerned, though, about what precisely you
would like us to do to strengthen this bill. You have given us
marvellous anecdotes, but nothing in black and white as to what
specific amendments, or additions or removals, you would like to
see the committee make.

Ms. Barlee: I would be pleased to follow up on my presentation
and, time permitting, provide specific examples and wording we
would like to see implemented in the bill. I do not think I can do
that from the table, but I will be happy to do that later.

The Chairman: Would you send that to the clerk?
Ms. Barlee: Yes.

Mme Barlee: Il en a le pouvoir, mais le libellé choisi est
problématique. Le pouvoir est discrétionnaire. Les termes «peuty,
«siy», «et» et «mais» sont utilisés. Si 'on se fie aux mesures
législatives antérieures prises en matiére d’environnement dont il
est question dans le mémoire, des mesures qui prévoyaient des
dispositions discrétionnaires semblables, on constate que ce
pouvoir n’a pas été exercé. Je serais ravie de voir le
gouvernement fédéral le faire. L’occasion se présentera trés vite
si la loi de protection est adoptée. A mon avis, le gouvernement de
la Colombie-Britannique ne prendra pas les mesures requises pour
empécher la disparition de certaines especes au Canada. Rien ne
me ferait plus plaisir que de voir le gouvernement fédéral exercer
ce pouvoir, mais étant donné sa réaction aprés 1’adoption de
mesures législatives semblables dans le passé, je ne crois pas qu’il
le fasse.

Le président: Le projet de loi parle souvent de la possibilité
d’exercer le pouvoir et rarement de ’obligation de le faire. Il est
toutefois impossible dans un projet de loi de dicter a des
gouvernements futurs la ligne de conduite a adopter. Les projets
de loi ne peuvent pas lier les mains des gouvernements. En bout de
ligne, tous les projets de loi, lorsqu’ils sont adoptés, dépendent du
bon vouloir du gouvernement.

Mme Barlee: Je n’en suis pas si sire.
Le président: Je le maintiens.

Mme Barlee: Si 'on se reporte aux versions antérieures du
projet de loi, le libellé était plus musclé. Le gouvernement a, selon
moi, le pouvoir d’intervenir a propos de questions d’intérét
national. Le libellé actuel, qui est trés édulcoré, est une des
principales sources de préoccupation de la communauté de
I’environnement, surtout de ceux qui s’intéressent plus

particulierement aux espéces sauvages.

Le sénateur Milne: Monsieur le président, le gouvernement
fédéral a compétence en matiére de droit pénal. Le comité peut
certainement décider de renforcer le projet de loi et, par
I’entremise du droit pénal, il pourrait faire en sorte que la loi
soit appliquée dans les provinces puisque celles-ci sont tenues
d’observer le droit pénal. Elles ne peuvent pas en faire fi. Par
conséquent, le gouvernement fédéral a un certain pouvoir grace
au droit pénal, en dépit des compétences provinciales dans le
domaine.

Madame Barlee, je me demande toutefois de quelle maniére
vous aimeriez que nous renforcions le projet de loi. Vous nous
avez fait part d’anecdotes intéressantes, mais, concrétement, vous
n’avez pas suggéré au comité de changement, d’ajout ou de
suppression qui pourrait étre fait.

Mme Barlee: Je le ferais avec plaisir. Si vous m’en donnez le
temps, je pourrais vous donner des exemples précis et vous
soumettre le libellé que nous aimerions retrouver dans le projet de
loi. Je ne crois pas pouvoir le faire tout de suite, mais je le ferai
volontiers plus tard.

Le président: Vous enverriez vos documents au greffier?

Mme Barlee: Oui.
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The Chairman: Senator Milne, you are right. Obviously the
authority does exist. However, unless I misunderstand it, if I, to
be absurd, kill someone, the Criminal Code does not say that |
“shall” be charged with murder. It says that I “may” be charged
with murder, depending on many things. Attorneys General and
prosecutors always have discretion to determine whether there is
the likelihood of obtaining a conviction. There is very little
“shall” in terms of government action. There is always discretion,
and there are always the words “normal” and “may,” usually for
good reason, I think.

Senator Buchanan: Does B.C. have an endangered species act?

Ms. Barlee: It does not have stand-alone legislation. It has a
piecemeal approach. The majority of the legislation is
constrained. You cannot have more than a one per cent impact
on forestry in the area. Because of that, we have over 1,000 species
at risk provincially, and just one or two receive habitat protection.
The rest are left to fend for themselves.

Senator Buchanan: It is not an act on its own.
Ms. Barlee: It is not.

Senator Buchanan: Are you aware of the Nova Scotia
Endangered Species Act?

Ms. Barlee: I have heard of it. I am not that familiar with it.

Senator Buchanan: It is the best in Canada. It is better than this
one.

Ms. Barlee: I have read it over briefly, but I would not feel
comfortable discussing it at length.

The Chairman: We will take notice of that and take it under
advertisement.

Senator Buchanan: I am a little concerned. Senator Milne just
talked about the Criminal Code. I had a meeting in Halifax last
week with the university group, as [ mentioned to our committee,
and we had quite a discussion about the jurisdictional problem
here. You hear people saying — and you said it — that the federal
government has the authority to move onto provincial grounds
because this is criminal law. Why do you think this is criminal
law?

Ms. Barlee: I am not a lawyer, and I would not be comfortable
going into detail on this, but my understanding, from the legal
briefs I have read and the legal opinions that have been given, is
that it could fall under “prohibitions,” and it could also fall under
“areas of national concern.” From the half-dozen or so political
opinions that I have read, if the federal government wanted to
step in and exercise their authority over areas of federal
jurisdiction, they could, and I do not see them doing that.

Le président: Sénateur Milne, vous avez raison. Ce pouvoir
existe bel et bien. Toutefois, si je ne m’abuse, le Code criminel ne
parle pas d’une éventuelle accusation de meurtre si je tue
quelqu’un par exemple, pour utiliser un exemple absurde. Il
prévoit plutoét que des accusations peuvent étre portées, selon les
circonstances. On laisse les procureurs généraux et les procureurs
de la Couronne juger de la probabilité d’obtenir une
condamnation. Le gouvernement est rarement obligé d’agir. Il
en a plutét le pouvoir discrétionnaire, et les termes
«habituellement» et «peut» reviennent toujours, habituellement
pour de bonnes raisons.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Est-ce que la Colombie-Britannique a
une loi sur les espéces en voie de disparition?

Mme Barlee: Elle n’a pas de loi autonome dans ce domaine.
Elle a adopté une approche morcelée. La majorité des mesures
législatives sont assorties de restrictions. I1 ne faut pas que
I'impact sur I’exploitation forestiére de la région soit supérieur a
un pour cent. C’est pourquoi il existe plus de 1 000 especes en péril
dans la province et que I’habitat de seulement une ou deux especes
est protégé. Le reste est laissé pour compte.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Ce n’est pas une loi comme telle.
Mme Barlee: Non, ce n’en est pas une.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Connaissez-vous la loi sur les espéces en
voie de disparition de la Nouvelle-Ecosse?

Mme Barlee: J’en ai entendu parler, mais je ne peux pas dire
que je la connais.

Le sénateur Buchanan: C’est la meilleure au Canada. Elle est
encore meilleure que le projet de loi a I’étude.

Mme Barlee: Je I’ai lue rapidement, mais je ne me sentirais pas
a l'aise d’en discuter.

Le président: Nous en prenons bonne note et en tiendrons
compte.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Je suis un peu préoccupé. Le sénateur
Milne vient de parler du Code criminel. La semaine derniére, a
Halifax, j’ai rencontré, comme je I’ai mentionné au comité, un
groupe d’universitaires avec lesquels j’ai longuement discuté des
problémes de compétence posés par le projet de loi. Certains
affirment, comme vous I’avez vous-méme dit, que le
gouvernement fédéral a le pouvoir d’intervenir dans des champs
de compétence provinciale grice a sa compétence en matiere
pénale. Pourquoi croyez-vous qu’il y a matiére pénale?

Mme Barlee: Je ne suis pas avocate, et je ne serais pas a l’aise
d’aborder le sujet en détail avec vous. Toutefois, si j’ai bien
compris les mémoires et les avis juridiques que j’ai lus, ce pouvoir
pourrait étre exercé en vertu des «interdictions» et des «questions
d’intérét nationaly. D’aprées la demi-douzaine de points de vue
politiques que j’ai lus, si le gouvernement fédéral décidait
d’intervenir et d’exercer son pouvoir dans des domaines de
compétence fédérale, il pourrait le faire. Mais, je ne crois pas qu’il
le fera.
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Senator Buchanan: Over federal jurisdiction, but what about
provincial jurisdiction?

Ms. Barlee: Transboundary species is an area that is definitely
considered, in the legal opinions I have read, to fall under federal
jurisdiction, and the species at risk bill does not successfully
address the concerns and needs.

Senator Buchanan: This is not an amendment to the Criminal
Code of Canada.

Ms. Barlee: I realize that.

Senator Buchanan: This is stand-alone federal legislation. There
is no mention anywhere here of the Criminal Code. I have not
read it. Anyway, this will end up in the courts sometime.

Ms. Barlee: That is very likely.

Senator Buchanan: I wonder why we in this country pass bills
that we know very well will end up in the courts and will be
challenged. This one will be. The people we met with in Halifax
last week were a very sophisticated university group who had
studied this bill inside out, and I thought they were going to be
100 per cent in favour, but maybe 70 per cent would be in favour
of some amendments. I asked a question of three of the
professors. I said, “Would you prefer this bill to go through as
is, or would you prefer that the Senate amend the bill, send it back
to the House of Commons, and have it sit there again for another
three or four years?” Every one of them agreed it should go
through now rather than have that happen. What do you think?

Ms. Barlee: As [ mentioned earlier, I am really torn about this.
On the one hand, I would love to see a meaningful SARA, but |
do not believe Bill C-5 is that. It would be dishonest toward the
Canadian public to pass into law a bill that will not do what it
purports to do, which is to protect endangered species across
Canada. Based on that, if the bill cannot be improved, then
perhaps it should not be enacted into legislation.

Senator Buchanan: That is very honest.

Senator Christensen: It is certainly interesting to hear our
different witnesses. We have had one group of witnesses saying
that they would like changes, but get it through, because it is
better than what exists now and we could work on changes later.
We have had another group that said that the bill is far too strong
in giving powers to the government to intrude on personal
property that are out of line, and the bill should be killed.

You are saying that the powers are not nearly strong enough
on the government side. It should be improved, and it is not better
than nothing.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Dans les domaines de compétence
fédérale, mais qu’en est-il des domaines de compétence
provinciale?

Mme Barlee: D’aprés les avis juridiques que j’ai lus, il est clair
que les especes transfrontaliéres relévent de la compétence du
gouvernement fédéral. Le projet de loi sur les espéces en péril ne
répond pas comme il se doit aux besoins et n’élimine pas les
préoccupations.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Il ne s’agit pas d’une modification au
Code criminel du Canada.

Mme Barlee: Je le sais.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Il s’agit d’une loi fédérale distincte.
Aucune mention n’y est faite du Code criminel. Je n’en ai pas vu.
Quoi qu’il en soit, le projet de loi sera porté devant les tribunaux a
un moment donné.

Mme Barlee: C’est trés possible.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Je me demande pourquoi au Canada
nous adoptons des projets de loi qui, nous le savons trés bien,
seront contestés devant les tribunaux. La présente mesure le sera.
Les personnes que nous avons rencontrées a Halifax la semaine
derniére étaient des universitaires trés avertis qui avaient étudié en
profondeur le projet de loi. Je croyais qu’ils allaient é&tre
totalement en faveur, mais 70 p. 100 ont affirmé étre en faveur
de certains amendements. J’ai posé une question a trois des
professeurs présents. Je leur ai demandé s’ils préféraient que le
projet de loi soit adopté tel quel ou que le Sénat le modifie et le
renvoie a la Chambre des communes ou il y restera pendant trois
ou quatre années encore. Chacun d’entre eux était d’avis qu’il
fallait plutot ’'adopter maintenant. Que pensez-vous?

Mme Barlee: Comme je 1'ai dit plus tot, je suis vraiment
déchirée. D’un coté, jaimerais qu’on nous présente une loi
sérieuse sur les especes en péril, mais je ne crois pas que le projet
de loi C-5 en soit une. Ce ne serait pas honnéte envers les
Canadiens d’adopter un projet de loi qui ne réalisera pas son
objectif, c’est-a-dire protéger les espéces menacées du Canada. Si
le projet de loi ne peut étre amélioré, il ne devrait peut-étre pas
étre adopté.

Le sénateur Buchanan: C’est trés juste.

Le sénateur Christensen: Il est trés intéressant d’entendre le
point de vue de nos différents témoins. Un groupe de témoins a
affirmé qu’il souhaite des changements au projet de loi, mais il
nous a demandé de I’adopter ainsi pour I'instant, car il permettra
d’améliorer la situation actuelle. Selon lui, il sera toujours temps
plus tard d’y apporter des changements. Un autre groupe nous a
dit que le projet de loi conférait au gouvernement un pouvoir
beaucoup trop grand de s’introduire sur des propriétés privées et
qu’il devrait étre éliminé.

Vous dites que les pouvoirs dont dispose le gouvernement sont
trop faibles. Vous affirmez aussi que le projet de loi devrait étre
amélioré et qu’il n’est pas mieux que rien.
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Legislation is always a work in progress. We should be building
upon it. We will never see a perfect bill. A bill can always be
improved. Through use, it becomes very obvious whether there is
a need for changes.

The Senate is often accused of not changing many bills.
However, there are addendums attached to almost every bill,
giving recommendations and follow-up as amendments are
brought forward. That is certainly one of our jobs.

In your presentation, you said that there are safety nets that
have never been used. Do you have any examples of where the
safety net provision should have been used and was not?

Ms. Barlee: This came from a discussion with Kate Smallwood
of the Sierra Legal Defence Fund. We were talking about the
likelihood that a discretionary safety net would be used in a
species at risk act. She mentioned that where there were similar
safety nets in this type legislation, they had not been utilized. I
included that in my presentation as an historical example.

Senator Christensen: Perhaps there was provincial legislation
that met the requirement, and the safety net was not used for that
reason.

Ms. Barlee: It is my understanding that there were instances,
but I cannot give specifics at this time. I would be happy to do
that in my follow-up submission. There are instances where
adequate legislation did not exist, and the federal government did
not step in.

Senator Christensen: You mentioned woodland caribou and
grizzly bears. In the Yukon, we have very strong legislation for
protection of animals. We have healthy populations of woodland
caribou and grizzlies. They are hunted. When there are problems
with a particular group, requirements are withdrawn.

If grizzlies and caribou were to be added to a list of endangered
species, would you foresee that areas with numerous such animals
should be included?

Ms. Barlee: It is up to scientists and biologists to make that
recommendation, based on the population or sub-population. We
have several sub-populations of woodland caribou and mountain
caribou in British Columbia that are acutely at risk. The
provincial government started the grizzly bear hunt, which is a
concern. There are a large number of grizzlies in B.C, from 4,000
to 13,000. Again, I am not a biologist. I would leave it to those
people to make those determinations.

Senator Christensen: Your membership is 25,000, with an
additional 30,000 supporters? How did you arrive at the 30,000?

Ms. Barlee: Yes. The 30,000 are people who are not members,
but receive calendars. They send in a one-time donation. We keep
careful track of both the one-time donor and permanent member.

Une mesure législative peut toujours étre améliorée. Nous ne
verrons jamais un projet de loi parfait. Des améliorations peuvent
toujours étre apportées. C’est en appliquant une loi qu’on se rend
compte des changements qui devraient y étre effectués.

On accuse souvent le Sénat de modifier tres peu de projets de
loi. Toutefois, nous joignons a presque chaque projet de loi des
additifs dans lesquels nous formulons des recommandations et
donnons suite aux amendements. C’est I'une de nos taches.

Dans votre exposé, vous avez mentionné qu’il existait des filets
de sécurité qui n’avaient jamais été utilisés. Avez-vous des
exemples de situations lors desquelles la disposition du filet de
sécurité aurait da étre utilisée?

Mme Barlee: Kate Smallwood, du Sierra Legal Defence Fund,
m’a donné un exemple. Nous discutions de la possibilité que la loi
sur les espéces en péril prévoit un filet de sécurité facultatif. Elle
m’a expliqué qu’il existait déja dans des lois de ce type des filets de
sécurité similaires qui n’avaient pas été utilisés. J’ai parlé de cela
dans mon exposé afin de donner un exemple tiré du passé.

Le sénateur Christensen: Peut-étre qu’il existait une loi
provinciale qui permettait de satisfaire a ’exigence, et que c’est
pour cette raison que le filet de sécurité n’avait pas été utilisé.

Mme Barlee: Je crois savoir que c’est arrivé, mais je ne peux
donner de détails pour I'instant. Je serais ravie d’en donner dans
ma présentation de suivi. Il est arrivé qu’il n’existe pas de loi
appropriée et que le gouvernement fédéral n’intervienne pas.

Le sénateur Christensen: Vous avez parlé du caribou des bois et
de I’ours brun. Au Yukon, il existe une loi trés musclée en faveur
de la protection de ces animaux. Nous avons une trés bonne
population de caribous des bois et d’ours bruns. On en fait la
chasse. Lorsqu’une espéce est en difficulté, les exigences sont
éliminées.

Si I'ours brun et le caribou étaient ajoutés a la liste des especes
menacées, pensez-vous que les endroits ou ces animaux sont
nombreux devraient étre inclus?

Mme Barlee: Il incombe aux scientifiques et aux biologistes
d’en faire la recommandation en fonction de la taille de la
population et de la sous-population. Nous avons en Colombie-
Britannique plusieurs sous-populations de caribous des bois et de
caribous de montagne qui sont trés en péril. Le gouvernement
provincial a autorisé la chasse a I’ours brun, ce qui constitue une
préoccupation. La Colombie-Britannique compte un grand
nombre d’ours bruns, a savoir de 4 000 a 13 000. Je le répete, je
ne suis pas une biologiste. Je laisse la décision aux spécialistes.

Le sénateur Christensen: Votre comité compte 25 000 membres
et vous bénéficiez de I'appui de 30 000 autres personnes, n’est-ce
pas? Qui sont ces 30 000 personnes?

Mme Barlee: C’est exact. Il s’agit de personnes qui ne sont pas
membres, mais qui recoivent les calendriers. Elles ont fait un don
unique. Nous tenons minutieusement le compte de ces donateurs
et des membres permanents.
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Senator Milne: I wanted to clarify something that Senator
Buchanan said, because it is a matter of criminal law, even if it is
not in the Criminal Code, given the definition of the Supreme
Court of criminal law.

The court has said that criminal law is more than the Criminal
Code. It includes any law to protect the health, safety and
morality of Canadians. This bill could be classified as concerning
the morality of Canadians.

Senator Buchanan: There are a few questions there.

Senator Milne: Ms. Barlee, in your opinion, would it
strengthen this bill in relation to transboundary species if
clauses 34 and 35 were completely removed?

Ms. Barlee: I would not like to speak off the top of my head. I
would like to give it further consideration. I will comment on that
when I present a more detailed written analysis to the Senate.

Senator Milne: Clause 34 applies to provincial lands and
clause 35 to territorial.

Ms. Barlee: I would not feel comfortable speaking to that right
now.

The Chairman: Would you send an answer to Senator Milne’s
question to the clerk?

Ms. Barlee: 1 will.

Senator Eyton: Your approach of “all or nothing” is different
from that of the majority of witnesses who have appeared before
us. It may be laudable, but it is impractical.

Would it be helpful if it was acknowledged, plainly and
publicly, that this bill was a first step, and if some process were
put in place that provided for mandatory review and an
examination of the provisions?

Ms. Barlee: That would be a helpful step. I would like to clarify
our hard line. We talked about this within the committee and with
our members. We have had more response from members on this
piece of proposed legislation than any other issue on which we
have worked.

People ask us repeatedly why the government would introduce
a bill for the protection of endangered species that will not protect
endangered species. We are taking this position in order to be
honest with our members. People want us to step up to the plate
and represent their concerns.

I would not say, cavalierly, chuck the bill. I realize the amount
of time and compromise that has gone into it. However, our
members have forwarded hundreds of letters and made hundreds
of phone calls. I have had hundreds of conversations with people.
They are saying that they want a meaningful bill for species at risk
across Canada.

If we could revisit the proposed legislation, meaningful
amendments would be made. Why not have those amendments
there in the first place?

Le sénateur Milne: Je veux clarifier un des propos du sénateur
Buchanan, car il s’agit d’'une question qui touche le droit pénal,
méme si le Code criminel en fait abstraction, étant donné la
définition du droit pénal établie par la Cour supréme.

Selon la Cour supréme, le droit pénal ne se limite pas au Code
criminel. Il comprend toute loi visant a protéger la santé, la
sécurité et les valeurs des Canadiens. On pourrait dire que le
présent projet de loi touche les valeurs des Canadiens.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Cette affirmation suscite quelques
questions.

Le sénateur Milne: Madame Barlee, selon vous, le projet de loi
serait-il renforcé en ce qui a trait aux espéces transfrontaliéres si
les articles 34 et 35 étaient supprimés?

Mme Barlee: Je ne veux pas répondre a cette question a brile-
pourpoint. J’aimerais y réfléchir. Je donnerai mon point de vue
dans P’analyse écrite détaillée que je présenterai au Sénat.

Le sénateur Milne: L’article 34 porte sur les terres provinciales,
tandis que I’article 35 concerne les terres territoriales.

Mme Barlee: Je ne me sens pas a I’aise de répondre maintenant.

Le président: Voudriez-vous envoyer au greffier une réponse a
la question de madame le sénateur Milne?

Mme Barlee: Oui, je le ferai.

Le sénateur Eyton: L’approche du «tout ou rien» que vous
adoptez différe de celle de la majorité des témoins qui ont
comparu devant nous. Elle est peut-étre louable, mais elle est
difficilement applicable.

Serait-il utile qu’il soit reconnu publiquement que le projet de
loi constitue un premier pas et qu’on exige la tenue d’un examen
des dispositions?

Mme Barlee: Ce serait utile. J’aimerais clarifier notre position
bien arrétée. Nous en avons parlé au sein du comité et avec nos
membres. Nous avons regu davantage de commentaires de la part
de nos membres a propos du présent projet de loi qu’au sujet de
tout autre dossier sur lequel nous nous sommes penchés.

Les gens n’ont cessé de nous demander pourquoi le
gouvernement proposait un projet de loi sur la protection des
espéces menacées qui ne protégera pas ces espéces. Nous prenons
cette position par honnéteté envers nos membres. Ils veulent que
nous fassions valoir leurs préoccupations.

Je ne dirai pas qu’il faut laisser tomber le projet de loi. Je suis
consciente du temps et des compromis qu’il a nécessités.
Cependant, nous avons recu des centaines de lettres et des
centaines d’appels téléphoniques de la part de nos membres. Je me
suis entretenue avec des centaines de personnes. Nos membres ont
déclaré qu’ils voulaient un projet de loi sur les espéces en péril qui
soit sérieux.

Si nous pourrions réexaminer le projet de loi, des modifications
sensées pourraient y étre apportées. Pourquoi ne pas les apporter
maintenant?
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Senator Eyton: Partly because, as you yourself acknowledged
earlier, if we were to do that, it is likely the bill will die, and then
we will have to start all over again.

Ms. Barlee: I have heard that concern for the last 18 months or
so, and the bill has not died yet.

Senator Eyton: Does your organization ever look at the
economic consequences of designating areas as protected habitat?

Ms. Barlee: We will be commissioning two reports on just that
to do with the spotted owl. We are in the process. The black eye
that British Columbia will get, and Canada also, from having a
species extirpated in Canada due to logging will do far more
damage than the cost of setting aside the habitat to protect this
endangered species, and many others that fall in the habitat area
covered by the spotted owl. That is definitely a consideration, and
I will tell you that that report is going out internationally. We
spoke with the New York Times last week. People are amazed and
appalled that the spotted owl will very likely be extirpated because
it will be logged into extinction in Canada.

Senator Eyton: I was trying to be a little more direct than that.
For example, there is a logging community of, say, 10,000 people
who may be dramatically impacted by some declaration of a
protected habitat and who may lose their jobs, and that
community will be badly hurt. Does that enter into your
equation? That is an immediate impact, as opposed to the
longer-term consequence of which you speak.

Ms. Barlee: Our first priority, given our name, the Western
Canada Wilderness Committee, is protecting endangered habitat
and the endangered species that rely upon this habitat. Your
concern is obviously valid. I grew up in a small community that
was dependent on extraction industries, so I have seen it from a
different perspective. That is one reason we are also interested in
commissioning these economic analyses.

Just to speak to this very briefly, and I am not an economist,
there are many things that you could do in value added, in tenure
reform, in stock and raw log exports, that would dramatically
improve employment.

Senator Eyton: Over time. I am talking about the immediate
impact. There is another endangered species, and that is people
with jobs in the smaller logging communities in British Columbia.

Senator Watt: As to the spotted owl being logged to extinction,
have studies been done? In regards to the presentation that you
have made, I think I understand your concern. You mostly focus
on the fact that logging seems to be having a great deal of impact
on the spotted owls in the Vancouver area.

Ms. Barlee: Yes.

Le sénateur Eyton: En partie parce que, comme vous l’avez
reconnu plus tot, le projet de loi serait probablement abandonné,
et nous devrions recommencer a z€ro.

Mme Barlee: C’est ce qu’on répéte depuis 18 mois environ,
mais le projet de loi n’a toujours pas été abandonné.

Le sénateur Eyton: Votre organisme examine-t-il les
conséquences économiques qu’'entraine la désignation d’une
zone de protection?

Mme Barlee: Nous sommes en train de commander deux
rapports sur le sujet en ce qui concerne la chouette tachetée. Le
dur coup que subira la Colombie-Britannique, et le Canada
également, a la suite de I’éradication d’une espéce au Canada en
raison de I’exploitation forestiére fera beaucoup plus mal que le
colt lié a la désignation d’un habitat en vue de protéger cette
espéce menacée et bien d’autres qui vivent au méme endroit. Nous
nous préoccupons définitivement de la question, et je vais vous
dire que les rapports seront diffusés a 1’échelle internationale.
Nous nous sommes entretenus avec le New York Times la semaine
derniére. Les gens sont étonnés et outrés par le fait que la chouette
tachetée sera trés probablement éradiquée a cause de
I’exploitation forestiére au Canada.

Le sénateur Eyton: J’essayais d’étre un peu plus direct que cela.
Par exemple, une collectivité vivant de I’exploitation forestiére qui
compte, disons, 10 000 habitants pourrait étre touchée de fagon
dramatique par la désignation d’une zone de protection. Les
habitants pourraient perdre leur emploi, et la collectivité se
retrouverait dans une situation trés difficile. Est-ce que cet
¢élément fait partie de votre équation? Il s’agit d’une répercussion
immédiate, contrairement a la conséquence a long terme dont
vous parlez.

Mme Barlee: Notre priorité, comme notre nom l'indique, c’est
de protéger les habitats et les espéces menacés. Votre
préoccupation est certes valide. J’ai grandi dans une petite
collectivité qui dépendait des industries d’extraction, alors j’ai
également une autre perspective. C’est I'une des raisons pour
lesquelles nous commandons ces analyses économiques.

Je ne suis pas une économiste, mais je crois qu’il y a beaucoup
que vous pourriez faire au chapitre de la valeur ajoutée, de la
méthode de tenure et de I’exportation des stocks et des billes afin
d’améliorer I'emploi de fagon dramatique.

Le sénateur Eyton: Au fil du temps. Je parle des répercussions
immédiates. Il existe une autre espéce menacée, a savoir les
personnes qui vivent de I’exploitation forestiére dans des petites
collectivités de la Colombie-Britannique.

Le sénateur Watt: Des études ont-elles été menées sur
I’extinction de la chouette tachetée en raison de l’exploitation
forestiére? Je crois que je comprends les préoccupations que vous
avez exposées. Vous insistez sur le fait que I’exploitation forestiére
semble toucher grandement la chouette tachetée dans la région de
Vancouver.

Mme Barlee: Oui.
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Senator Watt: You also touch upon the transboundary aspects
of the matter. To what extent have surveys been done? Have
surveys only been done in the area where the logging is taking
place? Have you ever taken a survey outside of British Columbia?
Let us say in the sub-Arctic, for example. This is not new to me. [
have lived with spotted owls, practically ever since I was very
small. There are plenty of them in the sub-Arctic. Now you are
talking about them becoming extinct.

I never cease to be amused by the way we conduct business
here in the Senate, and also within the Parliament. Maybe the
same thing applies in the legislatures or the lower houses.
Whenever we begin to focus on what we consider to be the
essential thing, we slide away from what is causing it. The witness
is raising the fact that logging is damaging the habitat. In a sense,
you are also citing other factors when you are formulating the
law, because the law is so broad that it has an impact on other
matters. Does that concern you? You would like this bill to have
more teeth in order for you to be able to take action, or for the
Criminal Code to kick in.

We have to be very careful here. I do agree with you in terms of
wanting to protect the species, but do we know whether it is really
becoming extinct? Is it only within a geographical area?

Ms. Barlee: It is not the wilderness committee that takes
surveys; it is government biologists. COSEWIC has done previous
surveys, and according to their information, which has been
thoroughly examined, the spotted owl only exists in a very small
portion of south-western British Columbia. It does not exist
beyond those boundaries. I am not using the wilderness
committee’s own data. This is provincial government data and
national data, and this is something that has been evaluated for
approximately 15 years. It is my firm understanding that the
spotted owl does not exist in the sub-Arctic, only in this precise
geographic area.

Senator Watt: Only in that area?

Ms. Barlee: Yes. Again, that is based on provincial government
data and national data.

Senator Watt: Therefore, I am not seeing the spotted owl.

Ms. Barlee: I can nearly guarantee that, unless it was stuffed.

Senator Watt: We will have to call it something else, then. I do
not know what.

The Chairman: It may be an owl with spots, but it may not be a
spotted owl. We should check that out, Senator Watt.

Ms. Barlee: I would be happy to provide information on that.

The Chairman: Would you, please? We will promise to have
Senator Watt’s eyes checked as well, to see where those spots are
coming from.

Le sénateur Watt: Vous parlez aussi de ’aspect transfrontalier
de la question. De quel ordre sont les enquétes qui ont été menées?
Ont-elles seulement été effectuées dans la région ou il y a de
I’exploitation forestiére? Avez-vous déja effectué une enquéte a
I’extérieur de la Colombie-Britannique? Par exemple, dans la
région subarctique. Cela n’est pas nouveau pour moi. J’ai vécu
avec des chouettes tachetées depuis que je suis tout petit. Il y en a
beaucoup dans la région subarctique. Or, vous affirmez qu’elles
sont en voie d’extinction.

La facon dont nous menons nos travaux ici au Sénat et
également au Parlement ne cesse de m’amuser. Peut-étre qu’il en
est de méme dans les autres assemblées législatives ou chambres
basses. Chaque fois que nous commengons a nous concentrer sur
ce que nous considérons étre 1’essentiel, nous en dérivons. Le
témoin souligne le fait que I’exploitation forestiére cause des
dommages a I’habitat. Dans un sens, la loi est si générale qu’elle a
une incidence sur d’autres éléments. Cela vous préoccupe-t-il?
Vous voudriez que le projet de loi soit plus musclé afin que vous
puissiez prendre des mesures ou pour que le Code criminel puisse
s’appliquer.

Nous devons faire tres attention. Je conviens qu’il faut protéger
I’espéce dont vous parlez, mais savons-nous si elle est vraiment en
voie d’extinction? L’est-elle dans une seule région géographique?

Mme Barlee: Ce n’est pas notre comité qui effectue les
enquétes; ce sont des biologistes du gouvernement. Le
COSEPAC a déja mené des enquétes, et, selon leurs
informations, qui a été examiné en profondeur, la chouette
tachetée existe seulement dans une tres petite partie du sud-ouest
de la Colombie-Britannique. Elle n’existe pas ailleurs. Il ne s’agit
pas d’une information recueillie par notre comité. Il s’agit d’une
information qui provient des gouvernements provincial et fédéral.
La situation de la chouette tachetée est examinée depuis environ
15 ans. Je crois fermement que cette espéce n’existe pas dans la
région subarctique mais bien seulement dans la région
géographique précise dont je viens de parler.

Le sénateur Watt: Seulement dans cette région?
Mme Barlee: Oui. Je répéte qu’il s’agit 1a d’une information

provenant du gouvernement provincial et du gouvernement
fédéral.

Le sénateur Watt: C’est donc dire que ce n’est pas la chouette
tachetée que je vois.

Mme Barlee: Je peux pratiquement vous le garantir, a moins
que I'information soit fausse.

Le sénateur Watt: Nous devrons lui donner un autre nom alors.
Je ne sais pas lequel.

Le président: 11 peut s’agir d’une chouette avec des taches, mais
ce nest peut-&tre pas une chouette tachetée. Nous devrions
vérifier sénateur Watt.

Mme Barlee: Je serais ravie de vous donner I'information.

Le président: Voudriez-vous, s’il vous plait? De notre c6té,
nous promettons de faire examiner les yeux du sénateur Watt afin
de savoir d’ou proviennent ces taches qu’il voit.
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As Senator Buchanan pointed out, the Nova Scotia legislation,
the free-standing provincial legislation, is very highly regarded.
My understanding is that it was modelled very carefully in
consultation with the federal government —

Senator Buchanan: I am sure it was.

The Chairman: — while the previous SARA was being
considered a long time ago, in order to ensure they
complemented each other, that there was a great synergy
between them and that two plus two equals six.

Senator Buchanan: It was also to avoid possible conflicts
between federal and provincial governments over the jurisdiction
issue. There will be no conflicts in Nova Scotia because the act is
very comprehensive and put together in synergy with the federal
people who were working this out. However, it was a long time
coming. It has been a little while since I was premier, but even
then we were talking about it. Over the years, it evolved into the
act that was passed about seven years ago.

The Chairman: In some sense, at least, and using the witness’s
optimism, that might augur well for this bill, because it is
something that the provinces can refer to in order to see, as Nova
Scotia has, how what they do will fit nicely and be synergistic with
this proposed legislation.

Senator Buchanan: Is the Sierra Legal Defence Fund the same
as the Sierra Club?

Ms. Barlee: No. There is great confusion over that. They are
completely separate. Way back, they had a common root, but
now they are totally separate entities.

Senator Buchanan: We heard from Elizabeth May.

Ms. Barlee: She is with the Sierra Club.

Senator Buchanan: She is a great Nova Scotian, with whom I
agree totally.

The Chairman: The senator never fails to make the Nova Scotia
point, which is part of all our jobs.

I know that all comparisons of this kind are odious, but you
mentioned that 94 per cent of Canadians want species at risk to be
protected. That is a motherhood statement. It is also the case that
80 per cent of Canadians live in large urban regions. I know this
does not fairly indicate interest — people who walk on pavement
all the time do not necessarily lack legitimacy in their concern for
endangered species — however, as Senator Eyton pointed out,
they do not walk in those particular shoes. Do you know what
proportion of your 25,000 members and 30,000 supporters live in
major urban regions in Western Canada — not that that will be a
determining factor?

Ms. Barlee: 1 do not have that information handy, but I will
obtain it for you.

Comme I’a fait remarquer le sénateur Buchanan, la loi de la
Nouvelle-Ecosse est considérée comme excellente. Je crois savoir
qu’elle a été élaborée trés minutieusement en collaboration avec le
gouvernement fédéral...

Le sénateur Buchanan: Je suis certain que c’est vrai.

Le président: ... pendant que I’ancienne loi sur les espéces en
péril était en cours d’élaboration afin de faire en sorte que les deux
lois se complétent.

Le sénateur Buchanan: C’était aussi pour éviter des conflits
potentiels entre les gouvernements fédéral et provincial a propos
de la question de la compétence. Il n’y aura aucun conflit en
Nouvelle-Ecosse, car la loi est trés compléte et elle a été élaborée
conjointement avec le gouvernement fédéral qui était en train
d’¢laborer la sienne. Toutefois, le processus a été long. Méme a
I’époque a laquelle j’étais premier ministre, il y a assez longtemps,
nous en parlions. Au fil des ans, la loi a pris forme et elle a été
adoptée il y a environ sept ans.

Le président: Si I’on fait preuve d’optimisme comme le témoin,
nous pouvons donc croire que les choses augurent bien pour le
projet de loi, car il s’agit d’'une mesure a laquelle les provinces
peuvent se reporter pour évaluer, comme 1’a fait la Nouvelle-
Ecosse, comment leur propre loi la compléte.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Le Sierra Legal Defence Fund est-il la
méme chose que le Sierra Club?

Mme Barlee: Non. Il y a beaucoup de confusion a ce sujet. Ils
sont entiérement distincts. Jadis, la racine était commune, mais
maintenant ce sont deux entités totalement distinctes.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Nous avons entendu le témoignage de
Elizabeth May.

Mme Barlee: Elle est membre du Sierra Club.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Elle est une grande Néo-Ecossaise, avec
qui je suis tout a fait d’accord.

Le président: Le sénateurs ne manque jamais de faire valoir le
point de vue de la Nouvelle-Ecosse. Nous devons tous d’ailleurs
faire valoir celui de notre région.

Je sais que toutes les comparaisons du genre sont ignobles,
mais vous avez mentionné que 94 p. 100 des Canadiens veulent
que les espéces en péril soient protégées. C’est un truisme. Il est
aussi vrai que 80 p. 100 des Canadiens habitent dans de grandes
régions urbaines. Je sais que ce n’est pas juste — les gens qui
marchent toujours sur du pavé peuvent Etre sincérement
préoccupés par les espéces en péril — cependant, comme le
sénateur Eyton l’a fait remarquer, ils ne sont pas prés du
probléme. Savez-vous quelle proportion de vos 25 000 membres
et 30 000 partisans habite dans de grandes régions urbaines de
I’'ouest du Canada — non pas que cette donnée constituera un
facteur déterminant?

Mme Barlee: Je n’ai pas cette information sous la main, mais je
vais vous I’obtenir.
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The Chairman: In answer to an earlier question from a senator,
you said that you would rather, in light of the fact that you think
this bill lacks teeth, it were not passed into law at all. That is a
distinct possibility if it were amended, because of the time
constraints and what may happen in the other place. You also
said that British Columbia presently has no stand-alone species at
risk legislation. With respect to the spotted owl and other species
in British Columbia, because the province does not seem likely to
enact legislation, and if the federal government were not to enact
any legislation, however inadequate you believe it to be, they
would be left with no protection whatsoever.

Ms. Barlee: That is the impression that I have.

The Chairman: You would prefer that they were left with no
protection at all rather than the hope of some protection.

Ms. Barlee: It is not that I would prefer no protection for them,
but rather that I would prefer meaningful protection. I hope I am
mistaken in this, but if the B.C. government does not take action
to protect its more than 1,000 species at risk, I do not see the
federal government doing so. That is why I would like to see
amendments, on behalf of our members, so that there would be
meaningful legislation in place to protect species at risk in British
Columbia, and other provinces in Canada, that fall outside the
area of federal jurisdiction.

The Chairman: The hammer rather than the carrot.

Ms. Barlee: By all means, I encourage the carrot, but there
needs to be something in place if the carrot does not work.

The Chairman: Would you comment on clause 129 of the
current bill, which says that at a time specified, the bill will be re-
examined and its efficacy reconsidered to find out from
Canadians what they think about how it is going?

Ms. Barlee: If the bill is enacted, it is important that it be re-
examined. However, it is not sufficient to do so only once. For
some species in British Columbia, five years will be too long to
wait.

The Chairman: Ms. Barlee, you talked about B.C.’s spotted owl
only as an example, and about the lack of teeth in the proposed
legislation as it applies in British Columbia. However, you are the
Western Canada Wilderness Committee, so I presume that your
bailiwick would reach as far as Manitoba?

Ms. Barlee: Yes.
The Chairman: Does it stop there?

Ms. Barlee: It does not stop there, but that is the area on which
we concentrate.

The Chairman: Would you let us have your thoughts on
Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba?

Ms. Barlee: It would be unwise for me to speak to that today,
but I will send you detailed information on Alberta,
Saskatchewan and Manitoba.

Le président: Vous avez dit plus tot, en réponse a une question,
que vous préférez que le projet de loi ne soit pas adopté parce qu’il
n’est pas assez rigoureux. C’est ce qui risque de se produire s’il est
modifié, en raison des contraintes de temps et de ce qui pourrait se
passer dans l'autre endroit. Vous avez dit, en outre, que la
Colombie-Britannique n’a pas de loi sur les espéces en péril. Or,
comme il est peu vraisemblable qu’elle en adopte une, et si le
gouvernement fédéral décide lui aussi de ne pas en adopter une,
ou de ne pas adopter méme une loi que vous qualifiez
d’imparfaite, la chouette tachetée et d’autres espéces en
Colombie-Britannique vont se retrouver sans protection.

Mme Barlee: C’est I'impression que j’ai.

Le président: Au licu de leur offrir une protection quelconque,
vous préférez qu’elles ne soient pas du tout protégées.

Mme Barlee: Ce n’est pas que je préfére qu’elles ne soient pas
du tout protégées. Je veux qu’elles bénéficient d’une protection
adéquate. J’espére me tromper, mais le gouvernement de la
Colombie-Britannique ne fait rien pour protéger les plus de
1 000 espéces en péril, et le gouvernement fédéral non plus. Voila
pourquoi je demande, au nom de nos membres, qu’on modifie le
projet de loi et qu’on adopte une loi efficace qui permettra de
protéger les espéces en péril en Colombie-Britannique, et ailleurs
au Canada, qui ne relévent pas de la compétence du
gouvernement fédéral.

Le président: La technique du baton et la carotte.

Mme Barlee: Je préfere la technique de la carotte, mais il faut
prévoir des mesures si cela ne donne pas de résultats.

Le président: Que pensez-vous de I’article 129 du projet de loi,
qui précise qu’apres le délai établi, la loi sera réexaminée et son
efficacité évaluée pour voir ce qu’en pensent les Canadiens?

Mme Barlee: Si le projet de loi est adopté, il faut que la loi soit
réexaminée. Toutefois, il ne faut pas le faire seulement une fois.
Pour certaines espéces en Colombie-Britannique, cinq ans, c’est
trop long.

Le président: Madame Barlee, vous avez dit que la chouette
tachetée de la Colombie-Britannique n’était quun exemple parmi
d’autres. Vous avez dit, aussi, que le projet de loi n’est pas assez
sévére en ce qui concerne la Colombie-Britannique. Toutefois,
vous représentez le Western Canada Wilderness Committee. Je
présume que cela comprend le Manitoba?

Mme Barlee: Oui.
Le président: Est-ce qu’il englobe d’autres provinces?

Mme Barlee: Oui, mais c’est la région sur laquelle nous
concentrons nos efforts.

Le président: Que pensez-vous de la situation qui existe en
Alberta, en Saskatchewan et au Manitoba?

Mme Barlee: Je pense qu’il serait peu judicieux de ma part de
vous en parler aujourd’hui. Je vais toutefois vous faire parvenir
des renseignements détaillés sur la situation qui existe en Alberta,
en Saskatchewan et au Manitoba.
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The Chairman: Your office is in British Columbia.

The Acting Chairman: Yes, in Vancouver.

The Chairman: Does your organization have offices in other
provinces?

The Acting Chairman: We have offices in Alberta and
Manitoba.

Senator Spivak: In Manitoba, the woodland caribou in
Nopiming Provincial Park, where logging is allowed, is at risk.
The question of logging is interesting. Senator Eyton talked about
the elimination of jobs, which is not the case in this park. If the
federal government were to take action, what kind of action could
be taken against the logging companies?

Ms. Barlee: Are you talking about Manitoba or British
Columbia?

Senator Spivak: 1 am talking about the spotted owl, the
woodland caribou and other species. If these species were to
disappear, we might be next. It is not only a matter of economics;
it is also a matter of long-term survival. There is such an economic
cost/benefit issue, and there are people who have looked at that
angle. What action do you think the federal government could
take? What do you think that a minister’s course of action might
be?

Ms. Barlee: There was an older economic analysis of jobs that
could potentially be lost if spotted owl habitats were protected.
My recollection is that it would involve approximately 75 full-
time positions. I am not sure if that is still true. We would like to
see federal monies spent on preservation and protection of the
spotted owl, taking into account the jobs that could be lost due to
that protection. That is a consideration.

Senator Spivak: It scems to me that the federal government has
to stop the logging in those areas.

Ms. Barlee: In British Columbia, we are logging at a rate of
anywhere from 20 to 25 per cent above the sustainable rate. There
will be a huge reduction in the amount of timber cut in 40 years
time because there will be a gap between reforested plantation
timber and old-growth. At a rate of 20 per cent above sustainable,
that would mean turning every stick of merchantable wood into a
tree farm. That is a problem. We have repeatedly attempted to
have meetings with the Minister of Forests in British Columbia,
but to date we have been rebuffed.

Yes, it may mean that there will be no logging in these areas.
As I mentioned earlier, things could be done to offset job losses in
the British Columbia logging community. The number one
objective of logging companies is to realize profits, not to
provide jobs. Royal commissions have met and made
recommendations, but thus far, those recommendations have
been ignored.

Le président: Le siége social de votre organisme se trouve en
Colombie-Britannique.

Le président suppléant: Oui, a Vancouver.

Le président: Avez-vous des bureaux dans d’autres provinces?

Le vice-président: Nous avons des bureaux en Alberta et au
Manitoba.

Le sénateur Spivak: Au Manitoba, le caribou des foréts, dans le
parc provincial Nopiming, ou la coupe forestiere est autorisée, est
en péril. La question de la coupe forestiere est intéressante. Le
sénateur Eyton a mentionné la perte d’emplois, ce qui ne se
produirait pas dans ce parc-ci. Quelles mesures, s’il en est, le
gouvernement fédéral peut-il prendre contre les compagnies
forestiéres?

Mme Barlee: Vous parlez du Manitoba ou de la Colombie-
Britannique?

Le sénateur Spivak: Je parle de la chouette tachetée, du caribou
des foréts et d’autres espéces. Une fois ces espéces disparues, nous
serons peut-étre les prochains sur la liste. Ce n’est pas seulement
une question économique, mais une question de survie a long
terme. Nous avons déja discuté de I’aspect cotts et avantages
économiques. A votre avis, quelles mesures le gouvernement
fédéral peut-il prendre? Quelles mesures un ministre peut-il
prendre?

Mme Barlee: On a déja effectué une analyse économique des
emplois qui pourraient étre perdus si I’habitat de la chouette
tachetée était protégé. Si je ne m’abuse, environ 75 postes a temps
plein seraient éliminés. Je ne sais pas si ce chiffre tient toujours.
Nous aimerions que le gouvernement fédéral consacre des fonds a
la préservation et a la protection de la chouette tachetée, tout en
tenant compte des emplois qui seraient perdus. C’est un facteur
qu’il faut prendre en considération.

Le sénateur Spivak: Le gouvernement fédéral doit mettre un
terme a la coupe forestiére dans ces régions.

Mme Barlee: En Colombie-Britannique, la coupe forestiére se
pratique a un rythme 20 a 25 fois plus élevé que le rythme
conforme au développement durable. La coupe forestiére va
diminuer de fagon considérable d’ici 40 ans, en raison de I’écart
entre les foréts de plantation et les foréts anciennes. A un rythme
20 fois plus élevé que le rythme conforme au développement
durable, cela veut dire que chaque morceau de bois
commercialisable serait transformé en ferme forestiére. C’est un
probléme. Nous avons essayé a maintes reprises de rencontrer le
ministre des Foréts de la Colombie-Britannique, mais sans succes.

Il se peut qu’il n’y ait plus de coupe forestiére dans ces régions.
Comme je ’ai déja mentionné, on pourrait prendre des mesures
pour atténuer les pertes d’emploi dans le milieu forestier en
Colombie-Britannique. L’objectif premier des compagnies
forestiéres est de réaliser des profits, non pas de fournir des
emplois. Les commissions royales chargées d’examiner la question
ont formulé des recommandations, mais elles n’ont pas été mises
en applications.
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Senator Spivak: How likely is it that the federal government
would state to a provincial government that logging must end in a
certain area?

Ms. Barlee: It is unlikely because logging falls under provincial
jurisdiction; however, endangered species fall under federal
jurisdiction. The federal government could say that a species
must be protected and, in this case, that would mean no logging.
We are not opposed to logging and would like to see it continue in
B.C., on a sustainable basis, for many generations.

The first priority of the federal government should be recovery
and protection of the species.

However that is achieved, it is unlikely that the federal
government would want to step in and stop the logging.

The Chairman: As we said earlier, things move slowly. At the
moment, Canada has no stand-alone endangered species
legislation.

Ms. Barlee: Yes.

The Chairman: To my knowledge, it has taken eight or nine
years to get to the point we are at now. As Senator Christensen
said earlier, legislation is often a case of negotiation. We have
heard from people with differing opinions. It could be argued that
good contract negotiation and good legislation come from
situations in which everybody comes to the table and gives up a
little more than they wished, and leaves with less than they
wished, but they can live with it.

Very often, that results in good legislation and contracts. If
some people are jumping up and down with glee on one side and
others are hanging their heads on the other side, it is bad contract
negotiation and law.

We have here a balance, which to some degree dissatisfies
everyone at every point of the spectrum. If we make everyone
equally angry, we have done the right thing. With this bill, we will
at last have legislation in Canada that is subject to a mandatory
review. That is a start.

I want you to tell us again that you would prefer, all things
considered, that we defeat the bill, in effect.

Ms. Barlee: I would like to say something first. I do not think
the fact that all sides disagree is a sign of good legislation. It is not
that I want Bill C-5 defeated or destroyed. I want the bill to take
into account the biological requirements of species at risk in
Canada. I want the bill to protect them. I would ask that there be
amendments.

However, it is dishonest to introduce a bill that offers no
meaningful protection to the vast majority of Canadian species at
risk. We are making this representation on behalf of our
members. It is not an arbitrary or capricious position that we
are taking.

Le sénateur Spivak: A votre avis, est-ce que le gouvernement
fédéral peut dire a un gouvernement provincial de mettre un
terme a la coupe forestiére dans une région donnée?

Mme Barlee: Je ne le crois pas, car la coupe forestiére reléve de
la compétence des provinces. Toutefois, les espéces en péril
relevent de la compétence fédérale. Le gouvernement fédéral
pourrait dire qu'une espéce doit étre protégée, ce qui veut dire,
dans ce cas-ci, qu’il faudrait interdire la coupe forestiére. Nous ne
sommes pas contre la coupe forestiére. Nous souhaitons que cette
activité se poursuive en Colombie-Britannique, mais de fagon
durable, pour de nombreuses générations a venir.

Le gouvernement fédéral doit mettre 1’accent sur le
rétablissement et la protection des espéces.

Peu importe les mesures prises pour atteindre cet objectif, il est
peu probable que le gouvernement fédéral interdise la coupe
forestiére.

Le président: Comme nous ’avons déja mentionné, les choses
progressent lentement. Pour I'instant, le Canada n’a pas de loi sur
les espéces en péril.

Mme Barlee: C’est exact.

Le président: Il a fallu huit ou neuf ans pour arriver la ou nous
en sommes aujourd’hui. Comme 1’a mentionné plus tot le sénateur
Christensen, souvent, ’adoption d'une mesure législative passe
par la négociation. Nous avons recueilli le témoignage de
personnes aux points de vue divergents. On pourrait soutenir
qu’on obtient des résultats satisfaisants en matiére de négociations
contractuelles et de mesures législatives quand les personnes
réunies autour de la table acceptent de faire des compromis avec
lesquels elles peuvent vivre.

Trés souvent, ce processus aboutit a des lois, a des contrats
satisfaisants. Toutefois, quand on a, d’une part, des personnes qui
sautent de joie et, d’autre part, des personnes qui ont la mine
basse, cela veut dire qu’on se retrouve avec des mesures
législatives, des contrats qui ne sont pas satisfaisants.

Nous avons ici un compromis qui, dans une certaine mesure, ne
satisfait personne. Si nous arrivons a exaspérer tout le monde,
nous avons fait du bon travail. Ce projet de loi nous permettra
enfin d’avoir une loi au Canada qui fait 'objet d’un examen
obligatoire. C’est un début.

Je veux vous entendre dire encore une fois que, tout compte
fait, vous préférez que le projet de loi soit défait.

Mme Barlee: Je tiens tout d’abord a dire que le fait que tout le
monde soit en désaccord ne signifie pas, a mon avis, que la mesure
législative est satisfaisante. Je ne tiens pas a ce que le projet de
loi C-5 soit défait ou rejeté. Je veux qu’il tienne compte des
exigences biologiques des especes qui sont en péril au Canada. Je
veux que le projet de loi les protége. Voila pourquoi je demande
qu’on y apporte des modifications.

Toutefois, il est malhonnéte de déposer un projet de loi qui ne
protége pas adéquatement la grande majorité des espéces en péril
au Canada. Nous intervenons aujourd’hui au nom de nos
membres. La position que nous adoptons n’est ni arbitraire, ni
irréfléchie.
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As I mentioned earlier, the question I received again and again
from Canadians coast to coast was, “Why is the federal
government introducing legislation that will not protect
Canada’s species at risk?” We are here to represent those
concerns.

The Chairman: You said earlier that you would prefer that this
bill not be passed in its present state. Did I understand you
correctly.

Ms. Barlee: If you boil it down to that, yes, but several
important additions that I mentioned previously are left out. I
would like to see amendments that make for meaningful
protection.

Senator Buchanan: I do not want to push this point any more. I
believe the bill will pass.

Ms. Barlee: I do too.

Senator Buchanan: I am going to vote for the bill, even though I
believe that somewhere down the line, contrary to what Senator
Milne said, it will be challenged. It has happened before between
federal and provincial governments. However, I will vote for the
bill in spite of that, because I know damn well if this bill goes back
to the House of Commons, it is going to be there a long time.

Would your group be better off by opposing only certain
portions of this bill and working to make it better? You oppose
this bill primarily because there is no stand-alone endangered
species act in British Columbia. Why would you not do as Nova
Scotians and Newfoundlanders have done in the past, and
identify constitutional jurisdictional conflicts and sign agreements
with the federal government to set those things aside and not go
to court over them?

We did it in Nova Scotia with the Canada-Nova Scotia
Offshore Agreement. I negotiated that with the federal
government. In Newfoundland there is the Canada-
Newfoundland agreement. There have been no jurisdictional
disputes. There are problems, but they will not be court problems.

Nova Scotia has endangered species legislation. The federal
and provincial governments worked it out so there will be no
provincial-federal conflict over that. Why would you not spend all
your energy now on urging the Government of B.C. to pass stand-
alone legislation and work in synergy with the federal
government?

Ms. Barlee: We have sent briefs to and have met with the
current provincial government in British Columbia. We provided
them with educational material. They have said that they have no
intention of introducing stand-alone endangered species
legislation. We have not given up. We will continue to persevere.

Comme je I’ai déja mentionné, les Canadiens d’un océan a
I’autre m’ont demandé a maintes et maintes reprises: «Pourquoi le
gouvernement fédéral dépose-t-il un projet de loi qui ne protége
pas les espéces en péril au Canada?» Nous but ici est de défendre
ce point de vue.

Le président: Vous avez dit, plus tét, que vous préférez que le
projet de loi ne soit pas adopté dans sa forme actuelle. Est-ce bien
cela?

Mme Barlee: C’est ce que j’ai dit, oui, sauf que vous oubliez de
mentionner, entre autres, que j'aimerais que des modifications
soient apportées au projet de loi pour que les especes soient bien
protégées.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Je ne veux pas insister davantage la-
dessus. Je pense que le projet de loi va étre adopté.

Mme Barlee: Je le pense aussi.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Je vais voter en faveur du projet de loi,
méme si je crois, contrairement a ce que dit le sénateur Milne,
qu’il va faire ’objet d’'une contestation. Ce n’est pas la premiére
fois qu’une telle chose va se produire entre le gouvernement
fédéral et les provinces. Toutefois, je vais quand méme voter pour
le projet de loi, parce que je sais trés bien que s’il est renvoyé a la
Chambre des communes, il va trainer la pendant longtemps.

Ne serait-ce pas mieux si votre groupe s’opposait uniquement a
certaines dispositions du projet de loi, et qu’il proposait des
modifications pour en améliorer le contenu? Vous étes contre le
projet de loi parce qu’il n’existe pas de loi sur les espéces en péril
en Colombie-Britannique. Pourquoi ne pas faire comme la
Nouvelle-Ecosse et Terre-Neuve qui, dans le passé, ont cerné les
conflits d’attribution qui pourraient se présenter et ont conclu des
ententes avec le gouvernement fédéral pour éviter d’avoir a porter
l’affaire devant les tribunaux?

Nous avons signé, avec la Nouvelle-Ecosse, '’Accord Canada-
Nouvelle-Ecosse sur les ressources pétroliéres offshore. Jai
négocié cet accord avec le gouvernement fédéral. Une entente a
également été conclue entre le Canada et Terre-Neuve. Il n’y a pas
eu de conflits d’attribution. Il y a des problémes, mais ils ne seront
pas portés devant les tribunaux.

La Nouvelle-Ecosse a adopté une loi sur les espéces en péril. Le
gouvernement fédéral et la province ont conclu une entente dans
le but d’éviter tout différend fédéral-provincial la-dessus.
Pourquoi ne pas consacrer vos énergies a encourager le
gouvernement de la Colombie-Britannique a adopter une loi sur
les espéces en péril et a collaborer avec le gouvernement fédéral?

Mme Barlee: Nous avons envoyé des mémoires au
gouvernement de la Colombie-Britannique et nous avons
rencontré des représentants de celui-ci. Nous leur avons fourni
des documents d’information. Ils ont dit qu’ils n’avaient
aucunement l'intention d’adopter une loi sur les espéces en
péril. Nous n’avons pas abandonné la partie et nous n’avons
aucunement I'intention de le faire.
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The Government of B.C. has not only said that they are not
interested in introducing provincial endangered species
legislation, but also they have eroded environmental standards,
particularly with the Forest Practices Code.

We have submitted briefs to the federal government because
there is legislation in the works. Of course, we realize the
importance of working closely with the provincial government.

Senator Buchanan: What about the former provincial
government?

Ms. Barlee: That was before my time with the Wilderness
Committee. You have different levels of friendliness within
provincial governments. The NDP Clark government called the
environmental movement “enemies of B.C.” That government
worked very closely with the IWA, the Industrial, Wood and
Allied Workers of Canada.

I realize your point, and I agree that it is important to work
closely with the provincial government.

The Chairman: For those matters that fall under provincial
jurisdiction, the fact of this act looming on the horizon might help
persuade the provincial government to take action.

Ms. Barlee: 1 will refer again to the spotted owl situation. The
government has struck a recovery team; however, there has been
exhaustive research on the spotted owl. Although the province
has struck a recovery team and said that they will work quickly on
the issue, they continue to allow logging in spotted owl habitat.

One must wonder how serious the Government of B.C. is
about this initiative when they continue to allow logging in the
spotted owl habitat. The provincial government is the number-
one logger of owl habitat.

The Chairman: When the provincial government knows that
there is a hammer that can be applied by the federal government,
their attention to that question might be directed differently,
might it not? If this proposed legislation were not to pass, there
would be no such possibility.

Ms. Barlee: 1 think that they consider the hammer to be
spongy. They do not anticipate any fallout.

Senior bureaucrats have said that this government is
considering letting species become extinct in British Columbia.
They tell us that we must provide an economic argument to show
why they should not become extinct.

The Chairman: You are talking about the provincial government.

Ms. Barlee: Yes. They are in the process of repealing the Forest
Practices Code and revoking the very flimsy environmental
legislation that was to protect endangered species under that
code. I think if there were a legitimate hammer hanging over their
heads, you would see movement. I do not see that movement.

Le gouvernement de la Colombie-Britannique a non seulement
dit qu’il ne souhaite pas adopter une loi sur les espéces en péril,
mais il a également affaibli les normes environnementales, surtout
avec le code des pratiques forestiéres.

Nous avons soumis des mémoires au gouvernement fédéral
parce qu’il est en train d’adopter une loi sur le sujet. Bien entendu,
nous sommes conscients du fait qu’il est important de collaborer
étroitement avec le gouvernement provincial.

Le sénateur Buchanan: Qu’en est-il de ’ancien gouvernement
provincial?

Mme Barlee: C’était avant que je ne fasse partie du Comité sur
les espéces sauvages. Il existe différents niveaux d’amitié au sein
des gouvernements provinciaux. Le gouvernement Clark, qui était
un néo-démocrate, a qualifié le mouvement écologiste «d’ennemi
de la Colombie-Britannique». Le gouvernement a collaboré de
prés avec 'IWA, la Industrial, Wood and Allied Workers of
Canada.

Comme vous le dites, il est important de collaborer étroitement
avec le gouvernement provincial.

Le président: Le fait qu’une telle loi puisse étre adoptée devrait
persuader le gouvernement provincial d’intervenir dans les
domaines qui relévent de sa compétence.

Mme Barlee: Je reviens a I'exemple de la chouette tachetée. Le
gouvernement a mis sur pied une équipe de rétablissement.
Toutefois, cette espéce a déja fait 'objet d’études approfondies.
La province ne mettra pas fin a la coupe forestiére dans I’habitat
de la chouette tachetée méme si elle a créé une équipe de
rétablissement et affirmé qu’elle va intervenir rapidement dans ce
dossier.

On peut se demander si le gouvernement de la Colombie-
Britannique prend vraiment cette question au sérieux, s’il
continue d’autoriser la coupe forestiére dans I’habitat de la
chouette tachetée. Il en est le principal exploitant forestier.

Le président: Si le gouvernement provincial savait que le
gouvernement fédéral allait utiliser la technique du baton, il
agirait différemment dans ce dossier, non? Si le projet de loi n’est
pas adopté, cette possibilité n’existera pas.

Mme Barlee: La technique du baton ne l'effraie pas. Il ne
s’attend pas a ce qu’il y ait des retombées négatives.

D’apres certains hauts fonctionnaires, le gouvernement de la
Colombie-Britannique envisage de laisser certaines espéces
disparaitre. Si nous voulons les convaincre de la nécessité de les
protéger, nous devons leur fournir des arguments économiques.

Le président: Vous parlez du gouvernement provincial.

Mme Barlee: Oui. Il est en train de révoquer le code des
pratiques forestieres et la loi environnementale, déja tres faible,
qui protege les espéces en péril. Si la technique du baton
s’appuyait sur des mesures séveéres, la situation serait différente.
Or, il n’y a rien qui se passe de ce coté-la.
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The Chairman: I do not want to characterize it as a hammer
hanging over anyone’s head, although those were my words. The
intent is that there will be a certain amount of weight brought to
bear, and perhaps coercion in some cases.

The information for which we have asked, and which you have
undertaken to send to the clerk, needs to be sent forthwith.

Ms. Barlee: How many days would that be?
The Chairman: Three.

Ms. Barlee: I am not back in British Columbia for three days.

The Chairman: By next Tuesday?

Ms. Barlee: I will do my very best.

The Chairman: Failing that, next Thursday.

Ms. Barlee: Next Thursday is much better. Thank you.

Senator Baker: I would note that the former Premier of Nova
Scotia, Senator Buchanan, who was speaking a moment ago,
passed various pieces of legislation, not only on provincial
jurisdiction matters but also federal jurisdiction matters, all
having to do with conservation. I hate saying this because it was a
Tory government, Mr. Chairman, but he deserves it. It was one of
the first governments that actually passed legislation to protect
against destruction of birds by aerial sprays in our woodlands.
This proposed legislation, Mr. Chairman, is now doing what
Senator Buchanan did when he was the premier. It is encroaching,
yes — he is right — on provincial jurisdiction, but, as you say, it is
needed.

The Chairman: Thank you, senators. Thank you very much,
Ms. Barlee. I am grateful, as we all are, for your having accepted
the number of questions that you did and for answering them as
clearly as you did. We look forward to getting the other
information.

Ms. Barlee: Yes. It will be there on Thursday.

Senator Milne: Will the steering committee put together a
letter?

The Chairman: Yes. I will ask you and Senator Spivak to have
a short discussion right now, since we have a few minutes.

Senator Christensen: In our report, if in fact we do attach an
addendum, we should highlight provinces that do not have strong
or matching legislation. Those provinces would be subject to
ongoing scrutiny.

Le président: Je n’aime pas tellement parler de la technique du
baton, méme si j’ai utilisé cette expression. L’intention ici est de
faire en sorte que des pressions soient exercées, que des mesures de
coercition soient prises dans certains cas.

Les renseignements que nous avons demandés, et que vous
vous étes engagée a faire parvenir au greffier, doivent étre envoyés
sans délai.

Mme Barlee: Combien de jours me donnez-vous pour le faire?
Le président: Trois.

Mme Barlee: Je ne serai pas de retour en Colombie-Britannique
avant trois jours.

Le président: Mardi prochain?

Mme Barlee: Je vais essayer de faire de mon mieux.
Le président: Sinon, jeudi prochain.

Mme Barlee: Jeudi prochain, c’est mieux. Merci.

Le sénateur Baker: Je tiens a signaler que I’ancien premier
ministre de la Nouvelle-Ecosse, le sénateur Buchanan, qui a pris la
parole il y a quelques instants, a adopté diverses mesures
législatives dans des domaines qui relévent non seulement de la
compétence provinciale, mais également de la compétence
fédérale, et toutes ont trait a la conservation. Méme s’il
représentait un gouvernement conservateur, monsieur le
président, il mérite qu’on souligne ce fait. Son gouvernement a
été 'un des premiers a adopter une loi qui visait a protéger les
oiseaux contre I’épandage aérien dans nos foréts-parcs. Monsieur
le président, ce projet de loi vise a faire ce que le sénateur
Buchanan a fait quand il était premier ministre. Il empiéte — oui,
il a raison — sur les compétences des provinces, mais, comme
vous I’avez dit, on ne peut pas faire autrement.

Le président: Sénateurs, merci. Merci beaucoup,
madame Barlee. Nous vous sommes reconnaissants d’avoir si
clairement répondu aux questions du comité. Nous avons hate de
voir les renseignements que vous allez nous faire parvenir.

Mme Barlee: Vous les aurez jeudi.

Le sénateur Milne: Est-ce que le comité de direction va préparer
une lettre?

Le président: Oui. Comme il nous reste quelques minutes, je
vais vous demander, ainsi qu’au sénateur Spivak, de discuter
briévement de la question.

Le sénateur Christensen: Si nous comptons ajouter une annexe
au rapport, nous devrions, dans celle-ci, indiquer quelles
provinces n’ont pas adopté de loi sévére ou de loi
correspondante en la matiére. Ces provinces devraient faire
I’objet d’un suivi continu.
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The Chairman: We have, I think, a consensus that there will be Le président: 11 est donc convenu que nous allons joindre des
observations along with the bill, whatever its disposition. observations au projet de loi, peu importe ce qu’il adviendra de
celui-ci.
Senator Christensen: At the very least. Le sénateur Christensen: C’est le moins que nous puissions
faire.

The committee adjourned. La séance est levée.
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